ZEBULON
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
September 9, 2024
6:00pm

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

. RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

A. East Wake High School

i. Esmeralda Martinez-Hernandez — Student
ii. Christopher Howell — Teacher

B. Proclamation Recognizing National Recovery Month and Empowered Citizens

. PUBLIC COMMENT

. CONSENT

A. Minutes
i. May 15, 2024 Work Session
ii. May 21, 2024 Work Session

B. Finance
i. Wake County Tax Report —June 2024

. OLD BUSINESS

A. Finance
i. Non-Profit Funding

B. Parks and Recreation
i. Football Field Use Fees

C. Governing Board
i. Interim Town Managers contract

. NEW BUSINESS

A. Administration
i. Board Appointments
a. Parks and Recreation
b. Board of Adjustment



B. General

i

ii.
iii.
iv.

May 30, 2024 work session meeting minutes

Resolution 2025-02 — Barrington 2H & 21 Infrastructure Acceptance
Resolution 2025-03 — Barrington 3B Infrastructure Acceptance
May 6, 2024 regular meeting minutes

8. MANAGERS REPORT
A. Monthly Financial Report (attached as addendum)

9. BOARD COMMENTS

10. ADJOURN



ZEBULON

NORTH CAROLINA

PROCLAMATION
RECOGNIZING NATIONAL RECOVERY MONTH
AND EMPOWERED CITIZENS

WHEREAS, Substance use and Mental Health Challenges can be very daunting to deal
with, and

WHEREAS, the youth that struggle with these issues can feel isolated and alone, and

WHEREAS, individuals and groups that provide services for our youth to overcome
these challenges are invaluable, and

WHEREAS, the vision of Wendi Watson founder and CEO of Empowered Citizens, saw
the need to provide specific services to the young people ages 13-21 in Zebulon with
Evidence Based Practices that support and guide them to recovery, and

WHEREAS, in 2015 Empowered Citizens was established creating that safe space for
young people to seek help and support to transform their lives; and

WHEREAS, in 1989 September was specified as National Recovery Month; and

WHEREAS, recognizing those that provide endless support and hope to those
recovering from substance use and mental health challenges is so important,

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, do here
by recognize September as National Recovery Month and Wendi Watson with
Empowered Citizens for the work they do and for providing an invaluable service to the
young people in the Zebulon community.

Adopted this the gth day of September, 2024

Glenn L. York—Mayor

Seal

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Work Session
‘Minutes
May 15, 2024

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Jessica Harrison, Quentin Miles, Beverly Clark, Shannon Baxter,
Amber Davis, Joe Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works,
Bobby Fitts-Finance, Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Sheila Long-Parks and
Recreation, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Shannon Johnson-Economic Development, Sam
Slater-Attorney

Mayor York called the meeting to order at 5:02pm.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to approve the agenda.

Commissioner Davis asked to add discussion about the time change for the work session to the
agenda.

Commissioners Harrison amended her motion to approve the addition of the time change to the
agenda. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Clark. There was no discussion and the
motion passed unanimously.

MINUTES
Commissioner Baxter asked to change the date on the minutes to March 6.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve the March 6
minutes as amended. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to unseal the March 6, 2024
minutes. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

FY 25 BUDGET

A. Community and Economic Development
Shannon Johnson introduced Julie Brenman from Fountain Works. Ms. Brenman reviewed the
process for the economic development strategic plan.

Stakeholder engagement opportunities were held, and it was found that residents wanted more and
better amenities including full-service restaurants, grocery stores, entertainment options and
recreation options. Residents also wanted better access to healthcare, less traffic, public
transportation, connectivity, a variety of jobs with better pay, career advancement opportunities
and increased access to education and training opportunities. The information was gathered from
community conversations, stakeholder meetings, staff meetings, surveys and the information was
used to create the vision.



Board of Commissioners

Minutes

May 15, 2024 ‘ y
The vision components were big town economy, small town feel, regional player, honoring town * -
history, sustainable, inclusive, vibrant and diverse. The five key focus areas for the economic
development strategy were leverage regional assets, inclusive economy, key economic growth
areas, support for businesses and economic readiness. Examples were given for reach of the area.

Shannon Johnson stated comments could be submitted to Fountain Works and spoke about the
next steps of the plan. The FY’25 budget included an MSD feasibility study and was a digital
marketing package and video to leverage regional assets and key economic growth districts.

B. Parks and Recreation
Sheila Long reviewed the recreation impact fees that were collected over the last two years. The
vision map from the Parks and Recreation Master Plan was shown and identified areas for future
neighborhood parks Ms. Long showed the proposed projects from the master plan. There was
discussion about conservation and partnerships with Wake County Parks and Open Space and a
map of Wake County open space was shown.

The Play Zebulon Master Plan reflected a low general fund investment and a large bond needed to
implement. The impact fees were not intended to solely fund additional parks, new facilities and
park expansions. Staff asked the Town attorney to provide information on how recreation impact
fees could be used. Mr. Slater explained the constitutional framework on using impact fees. The
fees also had to be used to acquire a park or improve an existing park.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the fees could be used toward a splash pad. Sam Slater stated in that
example the fees could be used toward a new splash pad that would draw in the community.

Staff shared the proposed CIP projects including sports floor and HVAC replacement at the
Community Center, amenity replacement, Beaverdam Creek fence repair/replacement, Zebulon
Elementary School trail and stair repair, Wakelon fence extension, Zebulon Community Park site
plan, Gill Street Park community engagement and development and open space policy.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the square footage for the Wakelon Elementary School fence
extension and staff would provide that information to the Board.

The requested CIP projects included a neighborhood park acquisition, greenway designs, a site
plan and tot lot for Whitley Park, and municipal park pickle ball courts. There was discussion
about pickleball courts not being located close to neighborhoods because of sound issues. The
pending CIP project considerations were Little River Park Phase 1 and Gill Street Park soil
remediation. Staff was waiting on the final environmental report for Gill Street Park and a
remediation plan would be put in place.

The Board’s requested items included bathrooms at Gill Street Park and improved dug out shade
structures. Staff requested $30,000 for community planning in FY25 and $500,000 for
development in FY26 for Gill Street Park. An accurate estimate for the park could not be provided
at this time because staff was waiting to evaluate the final environmental report. Staftf would work
through remediation results and identify options for the Board.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 15, 2024

Ms. Long explained staff did site visits to other balls fields and spoke about what they found to
accommodate for sun shelter. One option was to raise the fence around the dugout and add a
screening to the top and to add sunscreen dispensers. Commissioner Baxter had concerns about
sunscreen breaking down in heat with dispensers and asked for examples from other communities.
Staff could provide examples and spoke about the two feet screening that could be added to provide
additional sun protection.

Mayor York stated there would be a 10-minute recess.
The meeting reconvened at 6:47pm.

Sheila Long asked the Board about their priorities, what items needed to be added to the Capital
Improvement Plan and what items had elevated priorities. Commissioners Baxter and Harrison
wanted to see the splash pad moved up as a priority. Commissioner Miles suggested adding the
splash pad to Whitley Park where the previous pool was located. Staff suggested working with the
community on the future location and site plan for a splash pad.

Commissioner Miles stated he agreed with the splash pad and wanted the bathroom at Gill Street
Park to be a priority in FY25. Commissioner Harison asked if staff reached out to a local church
or business to partner with them for a bathroom. Ms. Long stated she had a meeting with the church
about partnership opportunities and would discuss potential access to bathrooms.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the sunshades and splash pad were placed in the budget. Joe Moore
stated staff could add funds to the budget for sunshades and do research on costs. There was
consensus to add a $5,000 placeholder for the sunshades.

There was discussion about adding funds for the Gill Street bathroom. Staff showed the funds were
under Park Development, but Commissioner Miles wanted the bathrooms listed under a separate
line item. Joe Moore stated the soil remediation report was not final and could be incredibly
expensive. The funds would be a placeholder and the actual costs would be based upon the report
and remediation. There was consensus among the Board to have a separate line item for Gill Street
bathroom.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the HVAC replacement at the Community Center. Chris Ray
stated there were 13 individual HVAC units and the costs covered replacing the remaining 11 units
that were 15 years old.

Commissioner Miles asked if the Barbee trailhead bridge replacement could be pushed to a
developer. Michael Clark explained the location of the bridge was not on the development site and
the developer could not be required to replace the bridge. It was asked if the Scouts of America
could replace the bridge. Sheila Long stated that was something staff could investigate, but there
were challenges with the stream and permits.

Commissioner Baxter asked if any of the recreation impact fees were available for Little River
Park. Staff stated 100% of the funding could not come from impact fees and some fees from Jasper



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 15, 2024

Place could be used. Funding for Phase I was already allocated in the budget and progress should
be seen in the upcoming fiscal year. There was discussion about the bond process and bond options
to fund future projects.

Sheila Long gave details of the Sustainability Committee proposal. It was explained that a
sustainability committee was needed to address the Bee City and Tree City initiative. Therefore,
staff recommended forming a committee to look at environmental sustainability issues. The
proposed makeup of the committee was detailed. The next steps would be adopting a sustainability
committee, adopting the Bee City Resolution, submitting the Bee City application, and identify
focus and commitment to sustainability. Commissioner Baxter wanted an idea of funding needed
to create the committees. Joe Moore explained funding was included in the FY25 budget to further
the Tree City and Bee City programs with a Sustainability Committee. The Parks and Recreation
Advisory Board was currently acting as the Tree Board, but some members did not want the
responsibility of serving on a Tree Board.

Commissioner Harrison wanted to move forward with the committee and wanted a committee
specific to sustainability. Commissioner Davis agreed with having a sustainability committee.
Staff was asked to get a consensus from advisory board members of who would have interest on
serving on a sustainability committee.

There was consensus to create a Sustainability Board that would be over Tree City and Bee City.
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board would serve the role as the Sustainability Board until
members were appointed.

C. Strategic Plan Grants
Joe Moore reviewed the Strategic Plan Grant policy.

Mayor York stated there would be a 5-minute recess.
The meeting reconvened at 8:00pm.

Mr. Moore explained it was suggested that the current grant amount was not enough at the Strategic
Plan public meeting. There was discussion about start-up support of non-profits. The Board could
help with fund-raising events with a fee reduction or waiver. The total budgeted amount for a fee
reduction or waiver was $5,000. Some non-monetary assistance options were identified. The FY25
budget included $25,000 for Strategic Plan grants.

There was discussion about the amount of non-profits to give funds to, having non-profits report
how their funds were spent and the Board’s ability to reduce a facility use fee. Commissioner
Baxter spoke about giving fee waivers to non-profits. There was detailed explanation about fee
waivers, facility use fees and personnel costs for events.

Commissioner Harrison had concerns about being equitable when giving fee waivers.
Commissioner Davis also expressed concerns about showing favoritism by granting fee waivers.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 15, 2024

Joe Moore stated there would be $25,000 budgeted for FY25 and the Board would have further
policy discussions about how the funds would be allocated.

ZEBULON BEARCATS FEE WAIVER REQUEST

Joe Moore gave an overview of the fee waiver consideration. Sheila Long gave a copy of the
Bearcats application and reviewed the Cost Recovery Policy. The Bearcats’ anticipated fees were
$4,680. If the existing policy was applied for a certified non-profit organization the reduction
would be $3,276. The anticipated cost to the Town would be $2,845 plus one-week field closure
for overseeding.

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommended changing the language to the Cost
Recovery Policy for a 501(c)(3) or school organization to receive the resident rate less 50%. Sheila
reviewed the fees from the fee schedule.

Sheila Long stated the Vikings also requested to use the field but were not requesting a fee waiver.

Commissioner Harrison explained the Town’s policy reduced fees for non-profits but the Bearcats
were not an official non-profit.

Commissioner Clark asked how the rental would affect Town programs. Sheila Long spoke about
the limited space but have been working with both organizations to find solutions to support both.

Commissioner Baxter asked if someone from the Bearcats was available to speak. George Roa
stated their 501(c)(3) status was still pending and the Bearcats were waiting to get approval.
Information about the football program was detailed.

Commissioner Harrison wanted to wait to approve the waiver until the non-profit status was
approved. There were concerns about not following policy by approving the waiver. Sam Slater
explained it could be structured that if the non-profit designation did not come through the Bearcats
would have to pay the money back.

Commissioner Baxter suggested reducing the FY policy change fee to $2808 and using the fee
waiver policy to offer an additional $1,000 fee waiver bringing fees to $1,808. Joe Moore stated
that would be a policy the Board could adopt and the fee waiver would be an additional policy.

Commissioner Baxter suggested moving the discussion of the fee waiver to the May 21, 2024
meeting.

WORK SESSION MEETING TIME CHANGE

Commissioner Davis asked to move the start of the work sessions from 5:00pm to 6:00pm. Lisa
Markland suggested making a motion to move the time of the May 21, 2024 meeting to 6:00pm
and a change to the meeting schedule would be added to the next meeting for Board consideration.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to change the meeting
time to 6:00pm for the May 21, 2024 meeting.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 15, 2024

CLOSED SESSION
Commissioner Miles made a motion to go into closed session. Motion died for lack of a second.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to move the closed
session to the May 21, 2024 meeting. There was no further discussion and the motion passed with
a vote 4 to 1 with Commissioners Baxter, Harrison, Davis and Clark in favor and Commissioner
Miles in opposition.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 9™ day of September 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Work Session
Minutes
May 21, 2024

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Jessica Harrison, Quentin Miles, Beverly Clark, Shannon Baxter,
Amber Davis, Joe Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works,
Bobby Fitts-Finance, Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Sheila Long-Parks and
Recreation, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Eric Vernon-Attorney

Mayor York called the meeting to order at 6:04pm.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor York asked to amend the agenda to add a closed session to consult with the Town Attorney.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve the agenda as
amended.

Commissioner Baxter stated she thought the closed session should be at the end of the meeting
and not at the beginning. There was no further discussion and the motion passed with a vote 4 to
1 with Commissioners Clark, Harrison, Miles and Davis voting in favor and Commissioner Baxter
voting in opposition.

CLOSED SESSION
The Board needed a motion to go into closed session under NC GS 143-381.11(a)(5) for the
purpose to consult with the Town Attorney.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to go into closed session.
There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NOTE: In closed session, Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark
to come out of closed session. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to amend the agenda to
remove the closed session minutes. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to add a work session on
May 30 at 6:00pm. There was no further discussion and the motion passed with a vote 4 to 1 with
Commissioners Davis, Miles, Baxter and Harrison voting in favor and Commissioner Clark voting
in opposition.

FY °25 BUDGET

A. Travel and Training
Joe Moore presented the proposed travel and training budget for the governing board. The budget
was increased from $20,000 in FY24 to $32,500 in FY25. The budget included $2,500 for clerk

10



Board of Commissioners
Minutes

May 21, 2024 8
training, $4,000 for Board dues and events, $6,000 for travel and training for the Mayor and $4,000
for travel and training for each Commissioner. The cost for national conferences, state conferences
and continuing education classes were detailed. Commissioner Baxter stated she was fine with
knowing there may need to be a budget adjustment if there are additional expenses that arise.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the Administration travel and training budget. Lisa Markland
stated that included training for all staff within the Town, supervisory training, as well as training
and conferences for the Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, IT Director, HR staff, and
Communications Director.

Commissioner Baxter asked Chris Ray about the line items for travel and training for Public
Works. Staff stated one was for property management and the other was for operations and spoke
about how those funds were allocated.

B. Dialogue
There was discussion about funds for appointed board appreciation events. Commissioner Baxter
asked Lisa Markland to find out the costs for board appreciation events at the Mudcats and to share
the information at the May 30 meeting.

There was a question raised by Commissioner Baxter about the budgeted fund for the National
Register Historic District. Michael Clark stated the funds were for a study for the Barbee Street
corridor and landmark buildings along Shepard School Road. Commissioner Baxter also asked
about the Main Street Conference. The costs would be for the Main Street Board and Coordinator
to attend the conference.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the Main Street promotions line item which staff explained
included events, marketing materials and assisting the Parks and Recreation activities within the
main street boundaries. It was also stated by Commissioner Baxter that she wanted to make sure
the Christmas parade was added to the budget and asked staff to bring estimated costs to the Board
at the May 30 meeting.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to adjourn. There was
no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 9" day of September 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

) 11



XX’}N@ Board of Commissioners 161 919 856 6180

P.O. Box 550 ¢ Raleigh, NC 27602 Fax 919 856 5699

NORTH CARCLINA

SHINICA THOMAS, CHAIR
SUSAN EVANS. VICE-CHAIR
VICKIE ADAMSON

MATT CALABRIA

DON MIAL

CHERYL STALLINGS

TARA WATERS

August 20, 2024

Ms. Lisa Markland

Town Clerk

Town of Zebulon

1003 North Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, North Carolina 27597

Dear Ms. Markland:

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on August 19, 2024,
approved and accepted the enclosed tax report for the Town of Zebulon.

The attached adopted actions are submitted for your review; no local board action is
required.

$incerely,

Py 46"16(
Yvonne Gilyard
Clerk to the Board”

Wake County Board of Commissioners

Enclosure(s)

17



¢ NOINIHZ MO

AND 103 paeqay sapaadoay ¢ I8°LIE 00°0 60 00°0€ TE'L6T a11vaay

VIOL

SINNODDV

ALAdoUd

TVRAIAION]

paeqay v.o_tup—c.-m T I§°LTE 00°0 6¥'0 00°0€ Ee°L6T UOA STVLOLENS
NINVINTE TAVHIIN N1V 000000 €T0T ¥COT  868LTOLO00  PTOT/IT/90 SP'TIE 000 000 00°0€ I3 A4 150588
SHWVI NVINE AN TVM 000000 €20 €20  9SST989000 YTOT/ST/90 8E'S 000 6170 000 687 T1y88

_ SINNODDV A LAdOUd

TVNAIAIANT

HJAL 304 uvar UALINNN qLvd  gaLvdaad ISAYALNT  ASIT oVL UAGINNN

YANMO  ONITIIF ¥vIX NVL INNODOV  SSID0OYUd  1VIOL aarng A1V ALD ALHAd0ONd alvaad
NO'INgdZ it o it
YTOT/OE/90 - $TOT/10/90 ALNNOD
! Wd Z1:8%¥ $T0T/30/L0 S|EI9q Mooy AIVM
HOVA HWLL awa uoneSITIWPY X1 AJuno)) e WUI\\.&"

18



SN IV 40§ pAegIY sonuadorg 901 70°S90'11 000 SErTY 00°5L8°1 ¥9°S9L'8 :[8)0], puEID)
AdAL wod dviIA HIGWAN JIVA  q3lvadd 1SAUALNT IS OVL HAGWIN
WINMO  ONITYE ¥VIA XV INNODDV  SSID0Ud  “IVIOL a8 ALVl ALD ALd3doud FLvaTd
e

NONg3Z

¥T0Z/0S/90 - $202/10/90 ALNNOD

1 Wd TI:8yiy ¥Z0Z/80/L0 e AV

9ovd ILL qiva uoyEAISILWPY Xg], AHUN0D) EAL ’l.l\ll\

— |

19



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON  Fy 2025 STRATEGIC PLAN GRANT FUNDING

NORTH CAROLINA SEPTEMBER 9, 2024
Topic: FY 2025 Strategic Plan Grant Applications
Speaker: Bobby Fitts, Finance Director (introduction of applicants)
From: Bobby Fitts, Finance Director .
Prepared by: Bobby Fitts, Finance Director
Approved by: Joseph M. Moore Ii, PE, Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board will hear from non-profits seeking Strategic Plan Grants for Fiscal Year 2025.

Background:

The Town requested non-profit funding applications from January 8 through January 31,
2024. March’s Regular Meeting offers applicants the opportunity to briefly present their
organization’s purpose and how they intend to use the grant in accomplishing the goals
of the Town'’s Strategic Plan. Funding requests received this year include:

Preservation Zebulon

Brown Bag Ministry of Wendell

Positive Attitude for Life

East Wake Education Foundation

Zebulon Shrine Club

James E. Shephard School Alumni Association
The North Carolina Community of Coalitions (NC3)

Information:

There is no decision before the Board at this time. The presentations are an opportunity
for applicants to describe their organization and how their efforts could support the
goals of the Zebulon 2030 Strategic Plan.

Policy Analysis:
An analysis will be presented to the Board at a later date. Each application will be
scored on the following questions/categories:

Is this service a local government function permitted by statute or charter?

Does this service support or supplement a Town of Zebulon service?

Does this service support a community need identified by resolution or policy?
Does this service strive towards, or achieves, a Town of Zebulon Focus Area goal?

Staff Recommendation:
No Staff recommendation. Board decisions are necessary at this time.

Attachments:

Preservation Zebulon

Brown Bag Ministry of Wendell

Positive Attitude for Life

East Wake Education Foundation

Zebulon Shrine Club

James E. Shepard School Alumni Association

The North Carolina Community of Coalitions (NC3)

NOO AW

126



TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORMATION IDate: Jirn . 9< o3
Agency/Organization Name: Pre<ecvation Zela lon

Mailing Address: Q)Y Zaot 4orhun Secee

City: Zedout en |State: 1o |Zip Code: D255
75’-’hisical Address (if different from mailing).

Primary Contact & Title: \Nacue N ( s rpenter | Lvpr e, Oy cior

Phone Number: 9 (§ 24 -23, + Fax Number. )

Ema“AddreSS:mm'jwoPMWhuﬂwmﬁ Website: WD, Poe sersvtied Jaa0 00 d(f

CRGANIZATION INFORMATION

“1 |s your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? Eers O No. If "Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2, Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? & Yes 0 No

'3, Number of years organization has been in existence: ">

4; Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously?"Z Yes u]
No Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners? ¢S

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how

the funds were used, ,

5) Listyour organization's Mission Statement: preservation Zebulon advocates for the preservation of historic buildings
and landscapes that embody important elements of the history and culture of Zebulon and promotes their
conservation for the enrichment of residents and businesses.

6)_Describe the service or braiect vou intend to aooly this grant towards: .
Funding will help PZ with its Tax Credit workshop postage and printing for publicity. It will also assist with our Fall

Zebulation where we highlight stories of elderly residents on film. It will help us with our Historic Homes tour In
April 2025 to promote Zebulon’s history, and with our Spring and Fall walking tours. We ask the Town to support
our efforts to highlight and promote history and preservation in the area.

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within:

(Ref. www.Zebulon2030.com) )
(% Smali-Town Life  [f Vibrant Downtown  [§ Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?
Small Town Life and Vibrant Downtown— Our historic downtown walking tours promote downtown’s history and
cultural significance. Our Historic Homes Tour draw people to Zebulon to see these restored structures. Our
Zebulon Memory Project captures pre-1980 photos and stories from long-time residents to record and educate

people about our past.

Growing Smart - Our National Register historic district allows businesses and houses which contribute to the
district to receive tax credits for restoration of their structures, which helps revitalize the area and increases
economic development opportunities. 127



| 9) How many Zebulon citizens do you serve annually? 8o . K,Qwﬁ».:wi:_@ bt &

1 10) In the upcoming year. list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds are
effectively progressing towards meeting the service goal or need?

i

| Al e L 1

! I . :

' Annual budget. ;‘ﬂﬂ_ 35T : % Administration £ - Sources of revenue by amount and %

| Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %): Membershi P

| erships 20%
Events $11,059 57%
Grants $3.500 18%
Donations 5967 5%

REQUEST INFORMATION
% Amount requested from Town of Zebulon: ¢ r-w .

Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please indicate the location and the |
| duration of your space needs): 1

Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no rgore than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? )] Yes O No

Certification
We certify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is

accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what
progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in
determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
commissioner also serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in self-dealing with regard to
award of a grant to that nonprofit.

| Signature: [V lgcAce s (ool i I

Print Name & Titlev (/i et Cavpo er Zuciiiie O iecuu |
4] L 7

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:
Town of Zebulon
Attn: Bobby Fitts
1003 N Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, NC 27597
thtts@iownoizebulon.org
i? ‘
“Jetrics include number of people attending the historic house tours, number of voh.mteers, and numt.:er of structures
nen tor tours. people attending our events ( walking tours, Zebulation annual meetmg_, Memory Pro_)et:t N
~rescntations and Historic Homes Tour (500). Other numbers include households receiving our educational mailings
(300 )and Facebook followers (3,600) for our events and Zebulon Memory Project stories.

128



NTERNAL REVENUE SERVICF DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

P, GC. BCX 2508
CINCTNNATI, OH 4520°

N =rployer identiricalicn Nunber:
! B1-5112597
DN .
260H3441005347
RESERVATION ZELRJLON Contact Person:
274 F HORTON STREEI CUSTOMER SERVICE IDg 3954
ZEBUILCN, NC I7857-000C Contact Telephone Number:
(877} 829-55C0
Account:ing Per:oc¢ knding:

larte: f

v

Decemhe!

i Charity sStatus:

L7C (o (2) (A (vwih
Form #9G/990-£22/980-N Required:
nifective Date of Exemption:
Novemper 18, 201e
Contripution Deductibility:

ves
Addendaun Applies:

No

we'lte nleasea Lo tell vou we Qelevymilnes voeu're esempl from federal income tax
uncer (nterial kevenue Coce (IRC) Sect on 507 (@) i), Doners car deduct

coniripulions tney make Lo you under IRC Section 170. You're alsc guaalified
tax deduct:ble peguests, devises, Lransfers or gifte under

[C receiv
etter gould nelp rescive guestions on your

€

Section 20%5, 2106, or 2522. This
exempl status. Please keep it for your recoirds.
Organizat:ong exemnt under 'RC Section 501 (c){3) are f{uither ciassified as
either publ:c charities or private founda:tions. We determwined vou're a pub.ic
Charily unaer thne (RC Section listed at the top ¢of this lecter

fowe dndicated at the top of this letiter tratl vou ' re regu red to file “orm
290/990-E2/¢90-N, our reccords show you're regiuired to
Foirm 960-22) or electren:c nctice (Formw 990 N,

ce for three

revohed

information revurs (Form 390 o
the e-rostcard}. 1f vou aqor't file & reguirea
corsecut1ve vears, vour exermprt siatus will be automati:cal.y

cLuUIn Oy noit

t we 1naicated at tne top of tihis lerter that an addendum applies, the
enclosed addenaum & an inteara! part of this ietter.

For important informAation abCul your vesponsibllities as a Lax-exempl
PU'" . the sea:rch par

orgarization, go Lo www. i's.gov/charities. Enter "4221 3
te view Publication =221 PC, Compl ance Guide for 501 (¢ (3 Public Charities,

wiicl describes youl recoridieening ecorcing, anc disclosure regulrements.

129



TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORMATION |Date:
Agency/Organization Name: Brown Bag Ministry of Wendell

Mailing Address: po Box 512

Clty Apex IState: NC |le Code: 57502
Physical Address (if different from mailing): epa | ions Club Rd. Wendell, NC 27591
Primary Contact & Title: | 2,ra ponerty, Site coordinator

Phone Number: 919 366-2923 Fax Number;

Email Address: BBMofWendell@gmail, com Website: Brownbagministry,org |

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) ls your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? EkYes O No. If "Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2) Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? @ Yes O No

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: 14 years our location (19 yrs bbm)
4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? O Yes Bx
No (Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners?

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how

the funds were used.

5) List your organization's Mission Statement:
We are an all-volunteer 501(c)(3) charitable organization that serves the
hungry.

6) Describe the service or project you intend to apply this grant towards:

Purchasing food to prepare lunches, which includes a sandwich, fruit and two
snack items.

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within?:
(Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
&kSmall-Town Life 0O Vibrant Downtown K Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?
We provide an opportunity for citizen to become engaged community members

through the preparation and/or distribution of weekly bagged lunches that help
serve and meet the needs within the community. 200 lunches go directly to the
Boys and Girls club, Zebulon and 300 lunches get distributed to the Wake
County Housing units in Zebulon.

130



9) How many Zebulon citizens do you serve annually?

10) In the upcoming year, list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds are
effectively progressing towards meeting the service goal or need?

Annual budget; $3>:000.0@ our , % Administration 9% all volunteers

Sources of revenue ?or annual budget (by amount and %):
Private donations of supplies, bread and fruit, cash donations and NC Food Bank

REQUEST INFORMATION

Amount requested from Town of Zebulon:

Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please indicate the location and the
duration of your space needs): N/A

Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no more than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? @ Yes O No

Certification
We cetrtify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is
accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what
progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in
determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
commissioner also serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in self-dealing with regard to
award of a grant to that nonprofit.

1 A i
Signature: AOouNey \ o\ -W

Print Name & Title: | a3,ra Doherty, dite Coordinator

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:

Town of Zebulon

Attn: Bobby Fitts

1003 N Arendell Avenue

Zebulon, NC 27597

rfitts @townofzebulon.org

131



STAFF ONLY
1) Does the proposed service or project advance upon goals noted within the Zebulon

Vision 2030 Strategic Plan?

2) Does the organization provide the proposed service or project in a more efficient and
effective manner than if provided as a Town of Zebulon service?

3) Does Staff recommend award of grant?

Attachment: Resolution 2020-07; Session 2021 Senate Bill 473

132



RESOLUTION 2020-07
NON-PROFIT FUNDING POLICY

1.0 PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to Board and staff in making decisions regarding
funding requests by local non-profit organizations. The Town of Zebulon wishes to contribute to the
efforts of these organizations when their focus areas align with those of the Town of Zebulon Vision 2030
Strategic Plan.

2.0 POLICY STATEMENT:

The Town of Zebulon is committed to providing financial assistance to those non-profit agencies which
supplement the Town services that are provided to its citizens. Non-profit agencies should also focus on
one or more of the Town of Zebulon’s focus areas defined in the Strategic Plan. The focus areas and
priority goals within those areas are:

Focus area 1: Vibrant Downtown — We will have a clean, attractive, and historic
downtown with a variety of special events, entertainment, shops, restaurants, businesses
and housing to serve as the heart of Zebulon, providing a gathering place for the
community and a destination for visitors.
o Goal: Revitalize downtown Zebulon
o Goal: Develop events, entertainment, and cultural attractions to draw people
downtown

Focus area 2: Small Town Life — We will preserve and enhance our small-town feel by
developing more activities and locations to gather with family and neighbors, making
Zebulon a safe, connected, family friendly and walkable town.

o Goal: Promote more community events and festivals

o Goal: Enhance and create more community gathering places

o Goal: Increase the connectedness and walkability in the community

Focus area 3: Growing Smart — Our community is growing and we will plan for the
growth with appropriate staffing and service levels to address land use and traffic
concerns; promote economic development and preserve the affordability of our community
o Goal: Plan for appropriate land use to meet transportation and housing needs
o Goal: Pursue economic development opportunities with our community partners
o Goal: Maintain appropriate staffing to support expected service levels for the
growing community

3.0 NON-PROFIT AGENCY ELIGIBILITY FOR TOWN FUNDS:
It shall be the policy of the Town of Zebulon to consider providing assistance to non-profit agencies
meeting the criteria detailed below.

3.1

Eligibility Requirements

All non-profits shall verify their non-profit status by submitting an IRS tax exempt letter
confirming 501(c)(3) status, and IRS 990 form and a current solicitation license from the North
Carolina Secretary of State (or if exempt, the exemption letter). Additionally, non-profit
organizations must not have their revenue suspended by the North Carolina Secretary of State or
have overdue federal or state taxes.

1331



4.0

3.2 Accountability

Non-profits agencies shall adhere to accountability standards set by the Town Manager and as
required by law. Compliance with these standards is a criterion for funding. These standards
include but are not limited to:

Complying with all financial requirements including the submission of financial statements or
audits as specified by the contract.

Complying with program performance measurement requirements including quarterly reports to
the Board of Commissioners.

3.3  Funding Eligibility

A non-profit agency must have operated for two years by December 31 of the year preceding the
application deadline.

Non-profit agencies may not use a third party arrangement to meet requirements for eligibility.
Only one application per agency will be considered each year.

Grants are for operating costs. The Town will not fund the purchase, maintenance, or repair or
capital assets in excess of $5,000.

34 Use of Funds

Application must identify what project or program will use funds.
Application must identify and explain how project or program meets one of the goals of the
Strategic Plan.

FUNDING APPLICATION PROCEDURE:

4.1 Application Timeline

e The application will be available on the Town of Zebulon website
(www.townofzebulon.org) the first business day of the calendar year.

e Completed applications must be returned to the Finance Department no later than the date
indicated in the public notice. Applications received after the published deadline will be
deemed ineligible for that year.

e All applicants must appear and make a brief presentation at the March Board of
Commissioners meeting (1* Monday of every March).

4.2  Application Requirements

e A completed and signed application is required, along with all required documentation by
the advertised deadline.

4.3 Funding Award

e Requests for funding will be handled as part of the annual budget process.

134



e Town staff will provide analysis to assist the Board of Commissioners with how the
applicant aligns with the Town’s focus areas and goals.

e The Board of Commissioners will approve final funding for non-profits when the Annual
Budget is adopted.

e Applicants will be notified of final funding no later than June 30",

e The total amount of funding available for award to all non-profit organizations shall not
exceed $5,000 for any fiscal year, with no more than $1,000 awarded to any single non-
profit organization.

e Funds distributed by the Town of Zebulon may only be spent as indicated on the
application submitted by the organization. In the event funds are not used as indicated, the
full amount of funding will be required to be returned to the Town.

e Any organization receiving funding will hold the Town of Zebulon harmless from any
claim or liability that may arise or result from the operation of any program or service
assisted with funding from the Town of Zebulon.

5.0 GRANT REPORTING AND MONITORING

Each funded agency must present a report to the Board of Commissioners at a Regular Council meeting.
Each agency shall also provide a written report documenting funds received and spent. Funded agencies
who do not report will not be eligible for consideration of Town grants in the next fiscal year.

6.0 EXCEPTIONS
Other non-profit entities may receive funding at the Board of Commissioners discretion. The Board may

consider other factors such as:

Does it promote an established Town initiative?

Does the entity provide a public purpose outside the Town’s focus areas?

Does the entity have a substantial presence in the community?

Does the entity have a proven track record over time of contributions to the benefit of the
Town, its institutions and citizens?

Does the entity stimulate or encourage community participation in non-profit activities?

This policy replaces Resolution 2008-27 adopted December 3, 2007.

This policy shall remain in effect until such time as amended by the Board of Commissioners.

Adopted this the 6™ day of January, 2020
Effective this the 6™ day of January, 2020

135



GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF NORTH CAROLINA
SESSION 2021

SENATE BILL 473
RATIFIED BILL

AN ACT TO ENHANCE THE INDEPENDENCE OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT OF UNITS OF
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PREVIOUSLY THE SUBJECT OF AN AUDIT BY THE STATE
AUDITOR, TO REQUIRE GARNISHMENT OF CERTAIN MONIES OWED TO AN
ELECTED OFFICIAL OF A UNIT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN CERTAIN
INSTANCES, TO PROVIDE IT IS A CRIME FOR AN ELECTED OFFICIAL TO MISUSE
THE ELECTED OFFICE FOR PERSONAL FINANCIAL GAIN, AND TO PROVIDE
THAT A PUBLIC OFFICER ALSO SERVING ON A NONPROFIT BOARD SHALL NOT
ENGAGE IN SELF-DEALING WITH REGARD TO AWARD OF PUBLIC AGENCY
CONTRACTS TO THAT NONPROFIT.

The General Assembly of North Carolina enacts:

SECTION 1.(a) G.S. 147-64.6(c)(14) reads as rewritten:

"(14) The Auditor shall notify the General Assembly, the Governor, the Chief
Executive Officer of each agency audited, and other persons as the Auditor
deems appropriate that an audit report has been published, its subject and title,
and the locations, including State libraries, at which the report is available.
The Auditor shall then distribute copies of the report only to those who request
a report. The copies shall be in written or electronic form, as requested. He
The Auditor shall also file a copy of the audit report in the Auditor's office,
which will be a permanent public record. In addition, the Auditor may publish
on his or her Web site any reports from audits of State agencies not directly
conducted by the Auditor. If the report is the result of an investigation of a

unit of local government subject to Article 3 of Chapter 159 of the General

Statutes. the Auditor shall notify the Local Government Commission that a
report has been published with respect to that unit of local government.

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as authorizing or permitting the
publication of information whose disclosure is otherwise prohibited by law."
SECTION 1.(b) G.S. 159-34 is amended by adding a new subsection to read:

"(d) Notwithstanding the requirement that the auditor is selected by and reports directly to
the governing board in subsection (a) of this section. the Commission may require the governing

board of a local government or public authority that has been the subject of an investigative audit
with findings by the State Auditor. upon receipt of the investigative audit report in accordance
with G.S. 147-64.6(c)(14). to select the certified public accountant to conduct the annual audit
required by this section from a list of three certified public accountants provided by the
Commission. The Commission may instruct the Secretary to issue a request for proposals when
selecting a certified public accountant under this subsection. Upon exercise of this authority
granted by this subsection. the certified public accountant shall report directly to the Commission
and governing board. shall comply with all rules of the Commission. and shall be paid by the
governing board. The Commission may exercise the authority granted by this subsection for up

to three fiscal vears after the release of the investigative report with findings by the State

Auditor."
* S 4 7 3 -V — 4 *




SECTION 1.(c) This section is effective when it becomes law and applies to any
investigative audit issued by the State Auditor on or after that date. The Local Government
Commission, in its discretion, may use the authority established by G.S. 159-34(d), as enacted
by this act, with respect to any unit of local government that has been the subject of an
investigative audit by the State Auditor on or after July 1, 2018.

SECTION 2.(a) G.S. 153A-28 reads as rewritten:

"§ 153A-28. Compensation of board of commissioners.

(@)  The board of commissioners may fix the compensation and allowances of the
chairman-chair and other members of the board by inclusion of the compensation and allowances
in and adoption of the budget ordinance. In addition, if the ehairman-chair or any other member
of the board becomes a full-time county official, pursuant to G.S. 153A-81 or 153A-84, his-the
compensation and allowances may be adjusted at any time during his-that person's service as a
full-time official, for the duration of that service.

(b) In addition to any other enforcement available. the finance officer of the county shall
garnish compensation paid under this section to any chair or other board member to collect any
unpaid monies due to the county for county services until such debt is paid in full using the
procedure for attachment and garnishment set forth in G.S. 105-368 as if unpaid monies due to
the county for county services were delinquent taxes and that finance officer were the tax
collector. The provision of G.S. 105-368(a) that limits the amount of compensation that may be
garnished to not more than ten percent (10%) for any one pay period shall not apply to this
subsection."

SECTION 2.(b) G.S. 160A-64.1 reads as rewritten:

"§ 160A-64.1. Withholding compensation; money judgment against council member.

(a)  Inaddition to any other enforcement available, the finance officer of a city that obtains
a final judgment awarding monetary damages against an elected or appointed member of the city
council, either individually or jointly, may enforce that final judgment using any of the remedies
set forth in G.S. 105-366(b) or the procedure for attachment and garnishment set forth in
G.S. 105-368 as if final judgment awarding monetary damages were delinquent taxes and that
finance officer were the tax collector.

(b) In addition to any other enforcement available, the finance officer of the city shall
garnish compensation paid under G.S. 160A-64 to any mayor or council member to collect any
unpaid monies due to the city for city services until such debt is paid in full using the procedure
for attachment and garnishment set forth in G.S. 105-368 as if unpaid monies due to the city for
city services were delinquent taxes and that finance officer were the tax collector.

(c) The provision of G.S. 105-368(a) that limits the amount of compensation that may be
garnished to not more than ten percent (10%) for any one pay period shall not apply to this
section.”

SECTION 2.(c) This section is effective when it becomes law and applies to any
compensation paid in accordance with G.S. 153A-28 or G.S. 160A-64 on or after that date.
SECTION 3.(a) Article 31 of Chapter 14 of the General Statutes is amended by
adding a new section to read:
"§ 14-234.2. Public officers or employees financially benefiting from public position.

(a) No elected officer of a political subdivision of this State shall solicit or receive
personal financial gain from the political subdivision of this State for which that elected officer
serves by means of intimidation, undue influence. or misuse of the employees of that political
subdivision of this State.

(b) This section shall not apply to financial gain received from a political subdivision of
this State for acting in the elected official's official capacity or financial gain received with the
approval of the governing board of the political subdivision of this State for which that elected
officer serves.

(©) Violation of this section shall be a Class H felony."

137
Page 2 Senate Bill 473-Ratified



SECTION 3.(b) This section becomes effective January 1, 2022, and applies to
offenses committed on or after that date.

SECTION 4.(a) Article 31 of Chapter 14 of the General Statutes is amended by
adding a new section to read:
"§ 14-234.3. Local public officials participating in contracts benefiting nonprofits with

which associated.

(@)  No public official shall knowingly participate in making or administering a contract.
including the award of monev in the form of a grant. loan, or other appropriation. with any
nonprofit with which that public official is associated. The public official shall record his or her
recusal with the clerk to the board. and once recorded. the political subdivision of this State may
enter into or administer the contract.

(b)  Anyone knowingly violating this section shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.
The exceptions listed in G.S. 14-234(b) and (d1) through (d5) shall apply to this section.

(©) A contract entered into in violation of this section is void. A contract that is void under
this section may continue in effect until an alternative can be arranged when (i) an immediate

termination would result in harm to the public health or welfare and (ii) the continuation is

approved as provided in this subsection. A political subdivision of this State that is a party to the

contract may request approval from the chair of the Local Government Commission to continue

contracts under this subsection.
(d) For purposes of this section. the following definitions shall apply:

(1)  Nonprofit with which that public official is associated. — A nonprofit
corporation, organization. or association, incorporated or otherwise, that is
organized or operating in the State primarily for religious, charitable.
scientific, literary, public health and safety, or educational purposes and of
which the public official is a director. officer, or governing board member.
excluding anv board. entity, or other organization created by this State or by
any political subdivision of this State.

(2)  Participate in making or administering a contract. — Any of the following

actions by a public official:

a. Deliberating or voting on the contract.

b. Attempting to influence any other person who is deliberating or voting
on the contract.

C. Soliciting or receiving any gift, favor, reward, service. or promise of

reward, including a promise of future employment, in exchange for

recommending, influencing, or attempting to influence the award of a
contract by the political subdivision of the State with the not-for-profit
with which that public official is associated.

(3)  Public official. — Any individual who is elected or appointed to serve on a
governing board of a political subdivision of this State. The term shall not
include an employee or independent contractor of that political subdivision of
this State.”

SECTION 4.(b) This section becomes effective January 1, 2022, and applies to

offenses committed on or after that date.

138
Senate Bill 473-Ratified Page 3



SECTION 5. Except as otherwise provided, this act is effective when it becomes

law.
In the General Assembly read three times and ratified this the 30" day of November,
2021.
s/ Phil Berger
President Pro Tempore of the Senate
s/ Tim Moore
Speaker of the House of Representatives
Roy Cooper
Governor
Approved .m. this day of , 2021

139
Page 4 Senate Bill 473-Ratified



IRS Department of the Treasury —~ -
Internal Revenue Service

-

012558

P.0. Box 2508 In repiy refer to: 02486462390
Cincinnati OH 45201 Feb. 16, 2012 LTR 6168C EO
20-2979998 000000 GO
000623500
BODC: TE

BROWN BAG MINISTRY

% DAVID LEGARTH

PO BOX 512

APEX NC 27502-0512

Employer Identification Number: 206-2979998
Person to Contact: MR. PATTERSON
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear TAXPAYER:

This is in response to vour Feb. 07, 2012, reauest for information
regarding your tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that yvou were recognized as exempt under
section 501C(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination
letter issued in MARCH 2006.

Our records also indicate that vou are not a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described in
section(s) 509(a)(l) and 170(b) (1)CA)(vi).

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code., Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to vou or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code.

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual informatien return for three
consecutive vears results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt

status was revoked under section 6033(j) of the Code on our website
beginning in early 2011.

140



0268462390
Feb. 16, 2012 LTR 4168C EO
20-2979998 ooco000 0D
00023501

BROWN BAG MINISTRY

% DAVID LEGARTH

PO BOX 512

APEX NC 27502-0512

If vou have any questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely vours,

s Pteap b

S. A. Martin, Operétions Manager
Accounts Management Operations

141



TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORMATION |Date: 01/30/2024

Agency/Organization Name: Positive Attitude for Life

Mailing Address: 8601 Six Forks Raod, suite 400

City: Raleigh [State: NC |Zip Code: 27615

Physical Address (if different from mailing): 4933 Stonewood Pines Drive, Knightdale, NC 27545

Primary Contact & Title: Keturah Powell, Founder and CEO

Phone Number: 984-297-8281 Fax Number:

Email Address: kp@palinc.org Website: www.palinc.org

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) Is your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? B¥Yes O No. If "Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2) Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? BYes ONo

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: 17 years

4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? O Yes &
No (Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners?

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how
the funds were used.

5) List your organization's Mission Statement: our mission is to provide a holistic approach by
educating young women and young men ages 12 to 18 about consciously and positively
preparing for their futures with the appropriate tools to better navigate their lives.

6) Describe the service or project you intend to apply this grant towards:

Workshops for the youth that will include community service projects, team building activities
and excursions, as well as discussions and events geared towards the well being of our youth.

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within?:
(Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
M Small-Town Life O Vibrant Downtown [ Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?

Our mission is to provide a holistic approach by educating young women and young men ages
12 to 18 about consciously and positively preparing for their futures with the appropriate tools to
better navigate their lives.

142



(1Y

9) How many Zebulon citizens do you serve annually? 10 youth this past year, but more to com

10) In the upcoming year, list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds are
effectively progressing towards meeting the service goal or need?
positive post-surveys from youth and from parents, increase in positive behavior in school

Annual budget: $98,500 : % Administration 30%

Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %):
Grants: $35000 (35.5%), Corporate Sponsors: $30,000 (30.5%), Fundraisers: $17,000 (17.2%)

Community Sponsors: $10,000 (10.2%), Memberships: $6,500 (6.6.%)

REQUEST INFORMATION

Amount requested from Town of Zebulon: $20,000

Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please indicate the location and the
duration of your space needs): Zebulon Recreation Center, 1-2 times/month for the fiscal year

Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no more than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? B'Yes O No

Certification
We certify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is
accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what
progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in
determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
commissioner also serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in self-dealing with regard to
award of a grant to that nonprofit.

Signature: ijﬁ‘k@w

Print Name & Title: Keturah Powell, Founder and CEO

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:

Town of Zebulon

Attn: Bobby Fitts

1003 N Arendell Avenue

Zebulon, NC 27597

rfitts @townofzebulon.org

143



STAFF ONLY

1) Does the proposed service or project advance upon goals noted within the Zebulon
Vision 2030 Strategic Plan?

2) Does the organization provide the proposed service or project in a more efficient and
effective manner than if provided as a Town of Zebulon service?

3) Does Staff recommend award of grant?

Attachment: Resolution 2020-07; Session 2021 Senate Bill 473

144



RESOLUTION 2020-07
NON-PROFIT FUNDING POLICY

1.0 PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to Board and staff in making decisions regarding
funding requests by local non-profit organizations. The Town of Zebulon wishes to contribute to the
efforts of these organizations when their focus areas align with those of the Town of Zebulon Vision 2030
Strategic Plan.

2.0 POLICY STATEMENT:

The Town of Zebulon is committed to providing financial assistance to those non-profit agencies which
supplement the Town services that are provided to its citizens. Non-profit agencies should also focus on
one or more of the Town of Zebulon’s focus areas defined in the Strategic Plan. The focus areas and
priority goals within those areas are:

Focus area 1: Vibrant Downtown — We will have a clean, attractive, and historic
downtown with a variety of special events, entertainment, shops, restaurants, businesses
and housing to serve as the heart of Zebulon, providing a gathering place for the
community and a destination for visitors.
o Goal: Revitalize downtown Zebulon
o Goal: Develop events, entertainment, and cultural attractions to draw people
downtown

Focus area 2: Small Town Life — We will preserve and enhance our small-town feel by
developing more activities and locations to gather with family and neighbors, making
Zebulon a safe, connected, family friendly and walkable town.

o Goal: Promote more community events and festivals

o Goal: Enhance and create more community gathering places

o Goal: Increase the connectedness and walkability in the community

Focus area 3: Growing Smart — Our community is growing and we will plan for the
growth with appropriate staffing and service levels to address land use and traffic
concerns; promote economic development and preserve the affordability of our community
o Goal: Plan for appropriate land use to meet transportation and housing needs
o Goal: Pursue economic development opportunities with our community partners
o Goal: Maintain appropriate staffing to support expected service levels for the
growing community

3.0 NON-PROFIT AGENCY ELIGIBILITY FOR TOWN FUNDS:
It shall be the policy of the Town of Zebulon to consider providing assistance to non-profit agencies
meeting the criteria detailed below.

3.1

Eligibility Requirements

All non-profits shall verify their non-profit status by submitting an IRS tax exempt letter
confirming 501(c)(3) status, and IRS 990 form and a current solicitation license from the North
Carolina Secretary of State (or if exempt, the exemption letter). Additionally, non-profit
organizations must not have their revenue suspended by the North Carolina Secretary of State or
have overdue federal or state taxes.

145 :



4.0

3.2 Accountability

Non-profits agencies shall adhere to accountability standards set by the Town Manager and as
required by law. Compliance with these standards is a criterion for funding. These standards
include but are not limited to:

Complying with all financial requirements including the submission of financial statements or
audits as specified by the contract.

Complying with program performance measurement requirements including quarterly reports to
the Board of Commissioners.

33  Funding Eligibility

A non-profit agency must have operated for two years by December 31 of the year preceding the
application deadline.

Non-profit agencies may not use a third party arrangement to meet requirements for eligibility.
Only one application per agency will be considered each year.

Grants are for operating costs. The Town will not fund the purchase, maintenance, or repair or
capital assets in excess of $5,000.

3.4  Use of Funds

Application must identify what project or program will use funds.

Application must identify and explain how project or program meets one of the goals of the
Strategic Plan.

FUNDING APPLICATION PROCEDURE:

4.1 Application Timeline

e The application will be available on the Town of Zebulon website
(www.townofzebulon.org) the first business day of the calendar year.

e Completed applications must be returned to the Finance Department no later than the date
indicated in the public notice. Applications received after the published deadline will be
deemed ineligible for that year.

e All applicants must appear and make a brief presentation at the March Board of
Commissioners meeting (1* Monday of every March).

4.2 Application Requirements

e A completed and signed application is required, along with all required documentation by
the advertised deadline.

4.3 Funding Award

o Requests for funding will be handled as part of the annual budget process.

146



e Town staff will provide analysis to assist the Board of Commissioners with how the
applicant aligns with the Town’s focus areas and goals.

e The Board of Commissioners will approve final funding for non-profits when the Annual
Budget is adopted.

e Applicants will be notified of final funding no later than June 30,

e The total amount of funding available for award to all non-profit organizations shall not
exceed $5,000 for any fiscal year, with no more than $1,000 awarded to any single non-
profit organization.

e Funds distributed by the Town of Zebulon may only be spent as indicated on the
application submitted by the organization. In the event funds are not used as indicated, the
full amount of funding will be required to be returned to the Town.

e Any organization receiving funding will hold the Town of Zebulon harmless from any
claim or liability that may arise or result from the operation of any program or service
assisted with funding from the Town of Zebulon.

5.0 GRANT REPORTING AND MONITORING

Each funded agency must present a report to the Board of Commissioners at a Regular Council meeting.
Each agency shall also provide a written report documenting funds received and spent. Funded agencies
who do not report will not be eligible for consideration of Town grants in the next fiscal year.

6.0 EXCEPTIONS
Other non-profit entities may receive funding at the Board of Commissioners discretion. The Board may

consider other factors such as:

Does it promote an established Town initiative?

Does the entity provide a public purpose outside the Town’s focus areas?

Does the entity have a substantial presence in the community?

Does the entity have a proven track record over time of contributions to the benefit of the
Town, its institutions and citizens?

Does the entity stimulate or encourage community participation in non-profit activities?

This policy replaces Resolution 2008-27 adopted December 3, 2007.

This policv shall remain in effect until such time as amended by the Board of Commissioners.

Adopted this the 6™ day of January, 2020
Effective this the 6™ day of January, 2020

147



GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF NORTH CAROLINA
SESSION 2021

SENATE BILL 473
RATIFIED BILL

AN ACT TO ENHANCE THE INDEPENDENCE OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT OF UNITS OF
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PREVIOUSLY THE SUBJECT OF AN AUDIT BY THE STATE
AUDITOR, TO REQUIRE GARNISHMENT OF CERTAIN MONIES OWED TO AN
ELECTED OFFICIAL OF A UNIT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN CERTAIN
INSTANCES, TO PROVIDE IT IS A CRIME FOR AN ELECTED OFFICIAL TO MISUSE
THE ELECTED OFFICE FOR PERSONAL FINANCIAL GAIN, AND TO PROVIDE
THAT A PUBLIC OFFICER ALSO SERVING ON A NONPROFIT BOARD SHALL NOT
ENGAGE IN SELF-DEALING WITH REGARD TO AWARD OF PUBLIC AGENCY
CONTRACTS TO THAT NONPROFIT.

The General Assembly of North Carolina enacts:

SECTION 1.(a) G.S. 147-64.6(c)(14) reads as rewritten:

"(14) The Auditor shall notify the General Assembly, the Governor, the Chief
Executive Officer of each agency audited, and other persons as the Auditor
deems appropriate that an audit report has been published, its subject and title,
and the locations, including State libraries, at which the report is available.
The Auditor shall then distribute copies of the report only to those who request
a report. The copies shall be in written or electronic form, as requested. He
The Auditor shall also file a copy of the audit report in the Auditor's office,
which will be a permanent public record. In addition, the Auditor may publish
on his or her Web site any reports from audits of State agencies not directly
conducted by the Auditor. If the report is the result of an investigation of a

unit of local government subject to Article 3 of Chapter 159 of the General
Statutes, the Auditor shall notify the Local Government Commission that a

report has been published with respect to that unit of local government.

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as authorizing or permitting the

publication of information whose disclosure is otherwise prohibited by law."
SECTION 1.(b) G.S. 159-34 is amended by adding a new subsection to read:

"(d) Notwithstanding the requirement that the auditor is selected by and reports directly to
the governing board in subsection (a) of this section. the Commission may require the governing
board of a local government or public authority that has been the subject of an investigative audit

with findings by the State Auditor, upon receipt of the investigative audit report in accordance
with G.S. 147-64.6(c)(14), to select the certified public accountant to conduct the annual audit

required by this section from a list of three certified public accountants provided by the
Commission. The Commission may instruct the Secretary to issue a request for proposals when
selecting a certified public accountant under this subsection. Upon exercise of this authority
granted by this subsection, the certified public accountant shall report directly to the Commission
and governing board, shall comply with all rules of the Commission, and shall be paid by the
governing board. The Commission may exercise the authority granted by this subsection for up
to_three fiscal years after the release of the investigative report with findings by the State

Auditor."
* S 4 7 3 -V - 4 *




SECTION 1.(c) This section is effective when it becomes law and applies to any
investigative audit issued by the State Auditor on or after that date. The Local Government
Commission, in its discretion, may use the authority established by G.S. 159-34(d), as enacted
by this act, with respect to any unit of local government that has been the subject of an
investigative audit by the State Auditor on or after July 1, 2018.

SECTION 2.(a) G.S. 153A-28 reads as rewritten:

"§ 153A-28. Compensation of board of commissioners.

(a) The board of commissioners may fix the compensation and allowances of the
chairman-chair and other members of the board by inclusion of the compensation and allowances
in and adoption of the budget ordinance. In addition, if the ehairman-chair or any other member
of the board becomes a full-time county official, pursuant to G.S. 153A-81 or 153A-84, his-the
compensation and allowances may be adjusted at any time during his-that person's service as a
full-time official, for the duration of that service.

(b)  Inaddition to any other enforcement available, the finance officer of the county shall
garnish compensation paid under this section to any chair or other board member to collect any

unpaid monies due to the county for county services until such debt is paid in full using the
procedure for attachment and garnishment set forth in G.S. 105-368 as if unpaid monies due to
the county for county services were delinquent taxes and that finance officer were the tax
collector. The provision of G.S. 105-368(a) that limits the amount of compensation that may be
garnished to not more than ten percent (10%) for any one pay period shall not apply to this
subsection."
SECTION 2.(b) G.S. 160A-64.1 reads as rewritten:

"§ 160A-64.1. Withholding compensation; money judgment against council member.

(a)  Inaddition to any other enforcement available, the finance officer of a city that obtains
a final judgment awarding monetary damages against an elected or appointed member of the city
council, either individually or jointly, may enforce that final judgment using any of the remedies
set forth in G.S. 105-366(b) or the procedure for attachment and garnishment set forth in
G.S. 105-368 as if final judgment awarding monetary damages were delinquent taxes and that
finance officer were the tax collector.

(b) In addition to any other enforcement available, the finance officer of the city shall
garnish compensation paid under G.S. 160A-64 to any mayor or council member to collect any
unpaid monies due to the city for city services until such debt is paid in full using the procedure
for attachment and garnishment set forth in G.S. 105-368 as if unpaid monies due to the city for
city services were delinquent taxes and that finance officer were the tax collector.

(©) The provision of G.S. 105-368(a) that limits the amount of compensation that may be
garnished to not more than ten percent (10%) for any one pay period shall not apply to this
section."

SECTION 2.(c) This section is effective when it becomes law and applies to any
compensation paid in accordance with G.S. 153A-28 or G.S. 160A-64 on or after that date.
SECTION 3.(a) Article 31 of Chapter 14 of the General Statutes is amended by
adding a new section to read:
"§ 14-234.2. Public officers or employees financially benefiting from public position.

(a) No elected officer of a political subdivision of this State shall solicit or receive
personal financial gain from the political subdivision of this State for which that elected officer
serves by means of intimidation, undue influence. or misuse of the employees of that political
subdivision of this State.

(b)  This section shall not apply to financial gain received from a political subdivision of
this State for acting in the elected official's official capacity or financial gain received with the
approval of the governing board of the political subdivision of this State for which that elected

officer serves.
(©) Violation of this section shall be a Class H felony."

149
Page 2 Senate Bill 473-Ratified



SECTION 3.(b) This section becomes effective January 1, 2022, and applies to
offenses committed on or after that date.

SECTION 4.(a) Article 31 of Chapter 14 of the General Statutes is amended by
adding a new section to read:

"§ 14-234.3. Local public officials participating in contracts benefiting nonprofits with
which associated.

(a) No public official shall knowingly participate in making or administering a contract,
including the award of money in the form of a grant, loan, or other appropriation, with any
nonprofit with which that public official is associated. The public official shall record his or her
recusal with the clerk to the board, and once recorded. the political subdivision of this State may
enter into or administer the contract.

(b)  Anyone knowingly violating this section shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor.
The exceptions listed in G.S. 14-234(b) and (d1) through (d5) shall apply to this section.

(c) A contract entered into in violation of this section is void. A contract that is void under
this section may continue in effect until an alternative can be arranged when (i) an immediate
termination would result in harm to the public health or welfare and (ii) the continuation is
approved as provided in this subsection. A political subdivision of this State that is a party to the
contract may request approval from the chair of the Local Government Commission to continue
contracts under this subsection.

(d)  For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

(1)  Nonprofit with which that public official is associated. — A nonprofit

corporation, organization, or association, incorporated or otherwise, that is

organized or operating in the State primarily for religious. charitable,

scientific, literary. public health and safety. or educational purposes and of

which the public official is a director, officer. or governing board member,

excluding any board, entity. or other organization created by this State or by
any political subdivision of this State.

(2)  Participate in making or administering a contract. — Any of the following

actions by a public official:

a. Deliberating or voting on the contract.

b. Attempting to influence any other person who is deliberating or voting
on the contract.

©, Soliciting or receiving any gift, favor, reward, service, or promise of

reward, including a promise of future employment, in exchange for
recommending, influencing, or attempting to influence the award of a
contract by the political subdivision of the State with the not-for-profit
with which that public official is associated.

(3)  Public official. — Any individual who is elected or appointed to serve on a

governing board of a political subdivision of this State. The term shall not

include an employee or independent contractor of that political subdivision of
this State."

SECTION 4.(b) This section becomes effective January 1, 2022, and applies to
offenses committed on or after that date.

150
Senate Bill 473-Ratified Page 3



SECTION 5. Except as otherwise provided, this act is effective when it becomes

law.
In the General Assembly read three times and ratified this the 30® day of November,
2021.
s/ Phil Berger
President Pro Tempore of the Senate
s/ Tim Moore
Speaker of the House of Representatives
Roy Cooper
Governor
Approved .m. this day of , 2021

151
Page 4 Senate Bill 473-Ratified



e e e e

THE TREASURY

INTERNAL REVENUE SRERVICE DEPARTMENT I
LYy LMEN L JF e
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201
1 Number

pate:  OCT 2 3 2007 g ey bl

LN
19 {300
POSITIVE ATTITUDE FOR LIFE Contaor p
g 2 ‘ "W 1 yYeres
C/0 KETURAH BULLOCK THOMA < R D# 2 €
MAS K 2 F L
X 23 (
i‘(" BOX 2303 contact Frele ane Number
GARNER, NC 27529-2303 (877 R29
| BA9
Accounting Period Ending
SEPTEMBER 130
Pub] i Charity sStatus
L70(b) (1) (A) (v1)
Form 990 Required:
YES

Effective Date of Exemption
JANUARY 18, 2005

Contribution Deductibil ity:
YES

Addendum Applies:
NO

Dear Applicant:

tion for tax
=T

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal
under section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are alsoc qualified to recei 1

tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section
or 252z of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

]

Organizations exempt under section 501(c) (3) of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are

2 public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this

letter.
Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an

exempt organization.

If you distribute funds to individuals, you should keep case histories showing
the recipient's name and address; the purpose of the award; the manner of
selection; and the relationship of the recipient to any of your officers,

directors, trustees, members, or major contributors.

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
152






TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORMATION Date:
Agency/Organization Name:€as Y \Wake £ ducahon Foundahon
Mailing Address: YO Box 1404
City: lWenadel [State: NC_|Zip Code:c) 7 S5 |

Physical Address (if different from mailing): \(o £Fo=Y Fourth Stieed [Wendell
Primary Contact & Title:xSY 0o Lonire - Hlecutve, Dg reCADr —
Phone Number G113 - 3 olo -5 S0) Fax Number:

Email Address: S5\ ohive &0 Website:{ 51000 Eastioake edaCohon
€osruake educatontound ahon.or 9 “%\MW
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) Is your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? IYes ONo. If"Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2) Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? &'Yes 0 No

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: 2O\ e~

4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? BYes n]
No (Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners? (Yo

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how
the funds were used. D&

5) Listyour organization's Mission Statement: See Adocned

6) Describe the service or project you intend to apply this grant towards: e = 4 Hached,

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within?:
(Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
&Small-Town Life O Vibrant Downtown [ Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?

Seeftconed

154



9) How many Zebulon citizens de'yo‘u' serve annually? See -Ha(‘ L{Q(‘l

10) Inthe upcomlng year, list the metnc(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds are
effectwely progressmg towards meeting the service goal or need? S ech H‘OCJAQ d

Annual lw_dget"&\-\ 7) T q : % Administration s20%
Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %)

eeAttackiod

REQUEST INFORMATION

Amount requested from Town of Zebulon: &) V00O : :
Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please lndlcate the location and the
duration of your space needs) Sce, A ]-lao,ln ed

WII you have a representatlve make a brlef presentatlon {(no.more than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commtssroners on Monday, March 4@6: 00 PM'? EI Yes O No

Certifi catlon

We certify to the best of our knowledge that the lnfonnatfon pmwded in thts application is
accurate and comp!ete and is endorsed by the organization. -

If awarded a grant I understand and am prepanad to-make a iepon‘ to the Board of -
Commissioners at a Regular Board meetmg on how the grant is-being used and what

progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to présent can be a factor used in
'"detenmmng if subsequent grants are awarded.

‘We also certtfy that we have read Session. 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
‘commissioner also servingon a nonprofit board shall not engage in setf -dealing with mgard fo
_ _award of a grant to that nonprot” it.

r'\fl " ﬂ-n.”

Signature: -
Print Name & Title: Shan O whﬁmgm__

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
“Please return your appllcatlon to

Town of Zébulon

Attn: Bobby Fitts

1003 N Arendell Avenue

Zebulon, NC 27597

rfitts@townofzebulon.org |

155



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

P.O.Box 2508
Cincinnati, OH 45201

Date: January 13, 2003 Person t> Contact:
Ms. Benson #31-07273
Contact Representative

Toll Free Telephone Number:
8:00 a.m. fo 6:20 pm. EST

East Wake Education Feundation g77-8:29-55C0
P.O. Box 1204 Fax Number:
Wendell, NC 27591 513.263-3753

~ Federal Identification Number:
—=-  58-181258860

Dear Madam:
This is in resporse to your ielephona raquest regarding your crganization's iax exampt status.

Our records indicate that a delermination lefier ssusc in July 1684 grented your orgarization exemption
from federal income tax under seztion 507213 of the Internzl Ravence Coce Thatleteris stllin effect.

Based on information subseguently sLbmiited, we ciassi“iat your crgenzalion as one tmzt s not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) ¢f (ne Coce becaLse 1 is 2n organizaton cescr bed in
sections 509(a)(*) and 170(B) (1 (A vi.

This classification was tased on e a,Sumpuo*: that your crganization's op
in the 2pplication. I your organization's sources of suppo, o its chiaracle
purposes have changed, please et us know $o we ¢arni consider the sifect of
status and foundation siatus ¢f your o ganization.

a1

Your organization is required to file Form 830, Return of Organization Exempt from Inzom:
gross receipts each year are normally mcre than 528,000, If atelurr is requred, I musi =
day of the fifth month after the end of the organization's annual accountng cerod The law mocses 2
penaity of 520 a day, up to @ maximuri of $10,000. when a return s figd laie, urless (herz s reascracie
cause for the delay.

All exempt organizations (unless specifically exclucled) are liatle for taxes under the Federa! insurance
Contributions Act (social security taxe:) on remuneration of $100 or more paid tc gach employee suring @
calendar year. Your organization is not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemploymant Tax ~
(FUTA).

Crganizations that are not private fouridations are not subject {o the excise {axes uncer Chapter 42 of the
Code. However, these orgznizations are not automaticaliy exemp: fiom other federal excise taxes.

Donors may deduct contributions to yaur organization as previded in section 170 of the Coce. Bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to your organization or for its use: are deductib’e for federal estate and
gift tax purposes if they meet the applicale provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Ccde.

act

156



TOWN OF ZEBULON

NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
GENERAL INFORMATION [Date: 1/3¢/ 2 o 24

Agency/Organization Name: 7 b ulow < NAvne Club

Mailing Address: P 0 B [H2

City Qe bulen [State: ~i,.  [Zip Code: 23593

Physical Address (if different from mailing): |/ e | Weat Gannen

Primary Contact & Title: K y le, Cargont Lontel SF T2 Chiiip s

Phone Number. [G14] 3145 Aecl0 FaxNumber: Nono

Email Address: ‘' N A* Website: Ze blon Shewne Club

on F‘.‘CD&WB
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) Is your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? &.Yes O No. If "Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation. Dy .(:. le

2) Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? B Yes O No

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: Z

4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? O Yes ~
No (Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners?

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how
the funds were used.

5) List your orgapization's Mission Statement, Pc o Ut e~ placc toe Suinces
enddhae tami ies fomec b For PotldWghipan t Fuadraising
st Fau Ampan Tc.mplo oA d Gl e Shp weas (—‘Qfgn -L

20U e d oo | e T 1 c i on 22 ‘l"\'l-a‘('tdi"""v,'i‘\csn.}*' Ot ﬁ [ AN

Describe the service or project you intend to apply this grant towards; {

‘ . land

Conbipuc -,Eu,«\ in lpﬂ(,(:l\v'\l[(_ pynee s HOQ{)U‘* "

Masons o Home tor Chillecen

6)

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within?:

(Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
[® Small-Town Life O Vibrant Downtown [ Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?
Pﬂ pot he F,«hpn Y rare and dean sfbﬁ."hl"""‘ te & Shane €l

Hospubel attno cost

Uﬂb““({l(,.‘

157



9) How many Zebulon citizens do you serve annually? | ~ [, 4 & Shrwncin

rogp,fel
10) In the upcoming year, list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure thesegraﬁt funds are
effectively progressing towards meeting the service goal or need?

Annual budget: ; % Administration

Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %):

REQUEST INFORMATION

Amount requested from Town of Zebuion: - O

Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please indicate the location and the
duration of your space needs):

Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no more than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? & Yes 0 No

Certification
We certify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is
accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what

progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in

determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a

commissioner also serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in self-dealing with regard to

award of a grant to that nonprofit.

Signature: QI»& /;:)W

Print Name & Title: Tho e Dancaute “Jpecsupon

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:

Town of Zebulon

Attn: Bobby Fitts

1003 N Arendell Avenue

Zebulon, NC 27597

rfitts@townofzebulon.org

158



TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORNVATION [Date: Joanuer 31 2024
Agency/Organization Name: O tymes €. Shepgd Seipol Alumns A sseciation
Mailing Address: P.0. & ox 222

City, Z.€b ulor [State: N |Zip Code: 275497
Physical Address (if different from mailing): ¢ 2 Cccdar et N Liegicf ey 4/ C 2 7Yey
Primary Contact & Title: Shirley Snelling - Presden ’

Phone Number: 919- Z¥0-0 L& 5 Fax Number:  "/a
Email Address: < ke9m A (9479 [Website: 1e<<oa, orea
Sanat com -

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) Is your agency ir corporated as a non-profit organization? 8 Yes O No. If "Yes", please attach
a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2) Does your Boar of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? B Yes O No

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: \ Q14 - 4o — P reseny

4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? O Yes B
No (Skip to questions)

4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners?
4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a description of how

the funds were usec.

5) List your organization's Mission Statement: The Sames € Shepard Scheool Alimny
Assectation Missen 15 j}-@ ﬁ?(“”‘:“—-"ic‘ e Q":i'z) promol e $he »v-r:mcv'; Cim-ﬂ
|-e C TFawes & € he chedl  Strongtaer pemmberseip, provide €2 iy
C.é*‘; ﬂc ’éé, :{J{ |~? yi‘;;éfi) fvrt»"\%{e t["“tj\‘-xﬁ‘f‘ m\wuﬁi LEVY ‘ LP’ ‘ el
6) Describe the se-vice or project you intend to apply this grant towards:

© trwvaia o o Acvion by rove ny o lies Hat Qre

mMeuls during vhe Lohidau s, .- qeal 1sFor 10 famiies.
'Prc}m:Jlé Cu:f‘ u\whﬁmﬂe ‘Okuma#l 4o conmehack o Communiby o

sSu PPI)H Schelare ‘hip b}bﬁ'\v‘k uel < ’9,«')\;':&0— tloms Need ed Sox Cmnmwmlt»[ Svents
7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or project fit within?:

(Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
® Small-Town Life  § Vibrant Downtown (] Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?
. Houve Commenn . d &/ evenks and Q«V‘L’ﬁw'dﬂe CMIW l—(‘ ‘o jGA’

Invo\v<e ! ‘ . :
= 1‘{\ \f‘l% 4&\056 %ﬂ"’ \'\UJJ‘C mvvo&\ %w‘h Qures *D CUMt gllv’ S,P{—b)é,@

Lrents Q\H{."Apf‘l' S hotarsh Banqb,,(f;}‘ and D\H’-&o O, Hes P\LWWI-(:D
ond  Promoted by cssociation,

159



) How many Zebuton cmzens do you serve annual!y’? T5 4o 1Dd W

' 10) In the upcoming year, list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds are
effectave 2/ progres:mg towards meeting the service goal or need?

t;y(!&u7t’é ] -
uiAnnual budget: 3 o000t ; % Administration &Z - B
Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %):

VYooekions ¢ M&wbgg}ﬁgD,ufz.___ J0%

REQUEST INFORMATION S

‘(Amount requested from Town of Zebulon: FA xmq um  m uml' 2% @( wnt. /B¢ -
Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please mdlcate the location and fhe™ N\
lune ;a&ggij

duration of your space needs).” [pow T verd S %’w Ks, Rec.Ces L /l
Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no more than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? B Yes OO0 No

Certification
We certify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is
accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what
progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in
determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
commissioner alsc serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in self-dealing with regard to
award of a grant to that nonprofit.

{Slgnature \ Lw S L )&/ N L 7"
| Print Name & Tltle S_',;. N ,‘:\t C Snel) Wii / Vreadent - J

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:

Town of Zebulon

Attn: Bobby Fitts

1003 N Arendell Avenue

Zebulon, NC 27597

rfitts @townofzebulon.org

160



TOWN OF ZEBULON
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATON
FUNDING APPLICATION
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL INFORMATION Date: 1/29/2024

Agency/Organization Name: The North Carolina Community of Coalitions (NC3)

Mailing Address: 12 Iron Gate Drive

City: Zebulon State: NC I Zip Code: 27597

Physical Address (if different from mailing): n/a

Primary Contact & Title: EnJanet Joseph, Co - Founder & Executive Director

Phone Number: 919.410.8571 Fax Number: n/a

Email Address: Website: nccommunitycoalitions.com
nccommunitycoalitions@gmail.com

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

1) Is your agency incorporated as a non-profit organization? H¥es O No. If "Yes",
please attach a copy of your IRS tax-exempt designation.

2) Does your Board of Directors consist of non-paid volunteers? Wes 0 No

3) Number of years organization has been in existence: 4 years

4) Did your organization receive funding from the Town of Zebulon previously? [ Yes
0 (Skip to questions)
4A) Did you provide an update to the Board of Commissioners?

4B) If you did not provide an update to the Board of Commissioners, attach a
description of how the funds were used.

5) List your organization's Mission Statement: The mission of the North Carolina
Community of Coalitions (NC3) is to empower and support community groups in their
efforts to enhance the holistic quality of life for residents of affiliate NC3 communities.

6) Describe the service or project you intend to apply this grant towards:

With a strategic approach that mobilizes residents and collaborates with over 23
organizations across Wake County, NC3 focuses on diversifying stakeholders for a greater
impact, providing ongoing comprehensive support in education, housing, safety, economic
development, mentorship, health and wellness, and addressing uniqgue community needs.
In the Fall of 2023, NC3 established a mutually beneficial partnership with members of
the Zebulon Juneteenth Committee to establish the Zebulon Community Alliance (ZCA).
As members of the Alliance, ZCA engages the community to enhance the quality of life
in the vulnerable areas of Zebulon through investment, outreach and advocacy. As a

161



collaborative, services include 1) investing time, resources, and programming; 2)
organizing opportuntities for community members to engage, such as health and
resource fairs, and festivals; 3) and conducting focus groups and monthly community
meetings to create a platform for residents to advocate for their needs and learn about
existing resources. NC3 prides itself in cultivating relationships and trust when engaging
residents, in feedback protocols such as engagement, surveys, and stakeholder
partnerships fo better understand and address these needs.

The Town of Zebulon will be instrumental in supporting the expansion of resident outreach
services into the Zebulon community. Due to historical success in outreach measures, NC3
will specifically use grant funding to support ZCA in establish communication channels to
include a Call Multiplier robocall system, website design, and marketing on social media
platforms, as a means to connect residents to information regarding events, available
resources, and programming. To obtain materials needed for community outreach and
canvassing (brochures, fliers, volunteer shirts, and feedback tools), and the materials
needed to coordinate outreach events in vulnerable neighborhoods and facilitate in person
monthly community meetings throughout the year.

7) What Focus Area of Zebulon's Vision 2030 Strategic Plan does this service or
project fit within?: (Ref: www.Zebulon2030.com)
:aémall-Town Life o Vibrant Downtown o Grow Smart

8) How does this service or project accomplish a goal within the checked Focus Area?

Two of the main priority areas of the Zebulon Community Alliance are engaging family,
youth and seniors and providing community outreach and gathering events directly in
neighborhoods to create empowering opportunities for community cohesion, inclusion and
community pride, amongst families and neighbors and to enhance the connection of
vulnerable areas with and within the Town of Zebulon.

These efforts will lead to positive and sustainable community change by strengthening
family bonds, and promote the holistic well-being of children and families. Focusing on
community empowerment and well-being, contributing to a sense of security and
cooperation, ultimately fostering a stronger and more resilient community.

9) How many Zebulon citizens do you serve annually? 100+

10) In the upcoming year, list the metric(s) you will measure to ensure these grant funds
are effectively progressing towards meeting the service goal or need?

Number of outreach events in neighborhoods
Outreach engagement rate

Number of new members in ZCA group
Number of active members in ZCA group

162



Referral traffic
Social media analytics

Annual budget: $5,149.19; % Administration (50%)

Sources of revenue for annual budget (by amount and %):

Contributions: 6,000 (50%)
Contracts: $2,000 (20%)
Grants: $ 2,500 (30%)

REQUEST INFORMATION

Amount requested from Town of Zebulon: $1,000

Space requested from Town of Zebulon (Please indicate the location and

the duration of your space needs): Zebuion Community Center for Monthly
Community Meetings

Will you have a representative make a brief presentation (no Ig/n?re than 3 minutes) to the
Board of Commissioners on Monday, March 4 @ 6:00 PM? &Yes 0 No

Certification

We certify to the best of our knowledge that the information provided in this application is
accurate and complete and is endorsed by the organization.

If awarded a grant, | understand and am prepared to make a report to the Board of
Commissioners at a Regular Board meeting on how the grant is being used and what

progress is being made on the service goal or need. Failure to present can be a factor used in
determining if subsequent grants are awarded.

We also certify that we have read Session 2021 Senate Bill 473 and can attest that a
commissioner also serving on a nonprofit board shall not engage in seif-dealing with regard to
award of a grant to that nonprofit, .,

Signature:{(% W& ;,O },.)

Print Name & Title: EndJanet Joseph, Co-founder & Executive Director

APPLICATION DUE BACK TO FINANCE OFFICE BY JANUARY 31, 2024
Please return your application to:
Town of Zebuion
Attn: Bobby Fitts
1003 N Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, NC 27597
rfitts @townofzebulon.org 163




INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. 0. BOX 2508

CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:
Date: 83-4280830

JUN 21 2019 6053561005275

THE NORTH CAROLINA COMMUNITY OF Contact Person:

COALITIONS CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954
71 WOOD GREEN DRIVE Contact Telephone Number:
WENDELL, NC 27591-0000 (877) 829-5500

Accounting Period Ending:
June 30

Public Charity Status:
509 (a) (2)

Form 990/3990-EZ/990-N Required:
Yes

Effective Date of Exemption:
May 13, 2019

Contribution Deductibility:
Yes

Addendum Applies:

No

Dear Applicant:

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c) (3). Donors can deduct
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under

Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your
exempt status. Please keep it for your records.

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c) (3) are further classified as
either public charities or private foundaticns. We determined you're a public
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter.

If we iundicated ai Lhe wop of ihis leLter chat you're required to file rorm
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N,
the e-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar

to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public Charities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

Letter 947

164



THE NORTH CAROLINA COMMUNITY OF

Sincerely,

ST, 5. IINTRT

Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 947

165



STAFF REPORT
FOOTBALL FIELD USE FEES

ZEBULON SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

NORTH CAROLINA

Topic: Football Field Use Fees

Speaker: Sheila Long, Parks & Recreation Director
From: Sheila Long, Parks & Recreation Director
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners requested staff present fee waivers for the Zebulon Aggies
Football and Cheer programs for their consideration at the September regular meeting.

Background:

The Board of Commissioners received a fee schedule and cost analysis for the Zebulon
Bearcats Football and Cheer program field rentals at their May 15" work session per their
request.

At the August 5" meeting, staff was asked to return to the August work session with a cost
analysis for field use of the Bearcats and the Aggies. At the Work Session, staff provided the
applied rental rate and expected cost to the Town.

At the August 15" meeting, staff presented the cost analysis for waivers for the Bearcats and
Aggies. The Board waived fees for the Bearcats and requested the Aggies formally request a
fee waiver and to revisit the request at the September 9t meeting. On August 16", staff
confirmed with the Aggies that they received a letter confirming their 501¢3 status from the IRS
on August 15t

Discussion:
The Board will engage in discussion and provide direction to staff regarding fee waivers for the

Aggies.

Policy Analysis:

The Cost Recovery Policy identifies how to seek fee waivers and directs staff how to apply
reduced fees to 501c3/school organizations. By policy staff is authorized to reduce fees to
501c3/school equal to the resident rate less 50%. Per the Cost Recovery policy, requests for
reduced rental rates must be submitted in writing and include:

Item Status

Rental Application Received

Free or Ticketed Event Gate fees are not charged for practices
501c¢ documentation Verified thru IRS

Detailed explanation of how the event will benefit | Received

Town of Zebulon Residents directly

The Board has requested to consider fee waivers beyond what the Cost Recovery Policy
authorizes staff to implement.

Fiscal Analysis:

The Board approved the Fee Schedule and Cost Recovery Policy with the adoption of the budget
on June 25, Both policies provide direction to staff when determining field use fees to apply to
private parties seeking to use town facilities. Based on the Aggies’ field use request, the applied
use fee is $2040 and can be reduced to $1020 per policy. The collected use fee is revenue
applied to General Fund.

Attachment: Letter of Request: Field Expense Support 166



Zebulon Aggies Football and Cheer

August 27, 2024

Dear Mayor and Board of Commissioners,

The Zebulon Aggies Football and Cheer is a local 501c3. Our mission is to
transform adversity into opportunity by providing a beacon of hope for the youth
in our community. As former players who have faced our own hardships, we
understand the transformative power of sport in shaping young lives. By launching a
football organization, we aim to fill the void left by the lack of funding from local
parks and recreation departments.

We are driven by the profound desire to give back to the community that nurtured
us, and to see the cycle of support come full circle. However, we cannot achieve
this alone. We seek funding for field space to ensure that every child in our
community has the chance to experience the camaraderie, discipline, and joy that
football and cheer can bring. Together, let's make it all about the kids and create a
brighter future for our community.

Sincerely,

Kiara Staton, Secretary

Zebulon Aggies Football and Cheer

167



THIRD AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR EMPLOYMENT AS
INTERIM TOWN MANAGER

This Third Amendment to Agreement for Employment as Interim Town Manager (the
"Third Amendment"), made and entered into as of September _, 2024, by and between the
Town of Zebulon, State of North Carolina, a body corporate and politic (the "Town"), and City
Development Advisors, LLC on behalf of Taiwo Jaiyeoba, ("Manager") both of whom agree as
follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town desires to retain the services of said Manager as Interim Town
Manager of the Town of Zebulon pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §§ 160A-147 and
160A-148 and the Charter of the Town of Zebulon (the "Charter").

WHEREAS, the Town and Manager entered into an Agreement for Employment as
Interim Town Manager dated June 4, 2024 for a term that expired on July 1, 2024; a First
Amendment dated June 25, 2024 that expires on July 31, 2024 and a Second Amendment dated
July 26, 2024 that expires on September 10, 2024 (the original Agreement, the First Amendment,
Second Amendment and this Third Amendment, are collectively referred to as the “Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the Manager has agreed to continue his employment as the Town Manager
of the Town, subject to and on the terms, conditions, and provisions agreed to and set forth in
this Agreement.

WHEREAS, both parties desire to amend and restate the terms and conditions as
described in the Agreement, specifically including an extension of the term, and other matters
described in more detail below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Term

Section 2., Term, of the original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced
as follows:

Subject to earlier termination as provided in Section 8, Subsection D of the original
Agreement, the term of this Agreement shalt continue, and Manager shall serve as Interim
Town Manager, until the earlier of the date a permanent or interim Town Manager commences work
or December 5, 2024, whichever occurs earlier. Either party may terminate this Agreement with
not less than five (5) business days' notice of their intent to terminate the Agreement.

021848.0001-4117919v1 168



Section 2. Hours of Work. Physical Presence.

Section 7, Hours of Work, of the original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced as follows:

The parties agree that the Manager commits to approximately twenty (20) hours per week
to discharge his duties as Manager. Manager agrees to be physically present for all meetings of
the Board of Commissioners or delegate the Manager’s authority to the Interim Assistant
Manager when the Manager is unavailable. Manager agrees to be either physically or virtually
present for weekly management team meetings. Manager agrees to be available by telephone for
consultation and to respond to emergency situations. Upon Town request, Manager agrees to
provide transition consultation to the permanent or interim Town Manager, Planning Director
and/or Assistant Town Manager to promote an orderly transition. Transition consultation
services shall be provided in consideration of the same compensation and hours of work as
services provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 3. General Provisions
A. Entire Agreement. Upon execution, this Third Amendment supersedes the

original Agreement as well as any prior agreements or understandings between the parties,
whether written or oral, and this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

B. Binding Effect. Manager's rights and obligations under this Third Amendment
are not transferable by assignment or otherwise. The provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Manager and his heirs,
beneficiaries and personal representatives.

C. Amendment. This Third Amendment shall not be modified or amended except by
a vote of the Town Board of Commissioners (“Board”) and upon approval of the Board, a
written instrument executed by the Manager and the duly authorized representative of the Board.
No waiver of any provision of this Third Amendment will be valid unless the waiver is in writing
and signed by the waiving party. The failure of a party at any time to require performance of any
provision of this Third Amendment will not affect such party’s rights at a later time to enforce
such provision. No waiver by a party of any breach of this Third Amendment will be deemed to
extend to any other breach hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising by virtue of any
other breach.

D. Severability. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Third
Amendment is held unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Third
Amendment, or portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain
in full force and effect.

021848.0001-4117919v1 169



(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. The next page is the signature page.)
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Town Board of Commissioners of Zebulon, North
Carolina has caused this Agreement to be signed and executed in its behalf by its Mayor, and

duly attested by its Clerk, and the Manager has signed and executed this Agreement, both in
duplicate, effective on the date Second above written.

MANAGER TOWN OF ZEBULON

City Development Advisors, LLC

By: By:
Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Manager Glenn L. York, Mayor

Attest:

Lisa M. Markland, Town Clerk

170
021848.0001-4117919v1



ZEBULON STAFF REPORT

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

NORTH CAROLINA

Topic: Board Appointments

Speaker: Lisa Markland, CMC, Human Resources Director
From: Lisa M. Markland, CMC, Human Resources Director
Prepared by: Stacie Paratore, CMC, Human Resources Specialist
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners will consider applicants interested in serving on appointed
boards.

Background:
The Board of Commissioners appoints members to volunteer Boards (Planning Board,
Board of Adjustment, and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) who make
recommendations or decisions in their respective areas. Persons interested in serving on
these appointed Boards present applications to the Board of Commissioners for
consideration.

Discussion:
The discussion among the Board is who to appoint to the advisory boards.

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
There is one vacancy.

The Town received an application from the following:
¢ Quinton Crosson-Taylor applied for re-appointment.
e Marvin Howell applied for appointment.

Board of Adjustment
There is one in-town vacancy, one ETJ vacancy, one alternate in-town vacancy, and one
alternate ETJ vacancy.

The Town received an application from the following:
e Taylor Gray applied for appointment as an in-Town member.
» Nicholas Walton applied for appointment as in-Town member (2" choice)

Policy Impact:

Municipalities are statutorily required to have a Planning Board to make
recommendations on applications for rezoning, text amendments, and comprehensive
land use plan updates or rewrites (§ 160D-604) Municipalities are statutorily required to
have a Board of Adjustment to hear appeals and variances for development projects (§
160D-303(b)). Zebulon’s Unified Development Ordinance lists processes and procedures
to hear appeals (Article 2), and the powers, duties, and composition of the Board of
Adjustment (Section 10.2). Much like the Planning Board, the Board of Adjustment
requires ETJ representation because, the UDO has jurisdictional authority over both the
Corporate Limits and ETJ. A Board of Adjustment without ETJ representation is open to

171



ZEBULON STAFF REPORT

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

NORTH CAROLINA

challenges of their decisions on variances or appeals. A non-functioning Board of
Adjustment is also in violation of state statutes, and effectively dilutes or nullifies the
Town's development standards by rendering them unenforceable. Any ETJ
representation on a board requires approval from the Zebulon Board of Commissioners
and the Wake County Board.

Fiscal Impact:
NA

Staff Recommendation:
No recommendations on Board appointments.

Attachments:
1. Applications

172



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment Planning Board X Parks & Recreation Advisory

Name _Quinten Ciosson-Taylar

Address 401 Golden Plum Ln Zebaion NC 27597 -

E-mail o Date of Birth (month & Day)

Phone (Home) o (Work) (Cell) 417176355096

Employer _Siemens Energy Occupation _pyrehasing

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits _~ ~ ETJ YearsinZebulon 4
Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes .,  No  Ifyou answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).
Board/Commission/Committee From To
_Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 2022 Current

_Chamber of Commerce Spring2024 Current

_Main Street Executive Board Fall 2023 Current

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes y No___

Describe extent and meetings attended

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission?_My involvement with a person recreation board has notonly been

p lly fulfiling L enioy f I o for t .
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? _] believe | will be an asset to this board due to my experience and

Knowledge for the role and commitment to the departments vision s o =

What are your qualifications? Current Vice Chair, active community member, local business owner S

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? _My aim is to address the grawing

Members of our community and the ability to communicate the vision and plan to all. B

1 certify that the above information is correct. Iunderstand that this is an application to be considered for appoiniment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-

months from the date of application.
Date g/19/04 Signature P i -

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore ar Town Hall. If you have any question call 919-823-1802.

11319



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

_____Board of Adjustment Planning Board _____lé’arks & Recreation Advisory
Name }Kf, '/f; ¥ UI-V\ J EO we (_(_ R - - o - _
Address 20K LD Hovtono f‘”' reet o -
Email ML ndfiia b e & 4o /211 Date of Birth (month & Day) /2 // 5
Phone (Home) ) . (Workj .. e  (cemy 4)9 235 ¥799
Employer (QF/‘}‘\ vec ‘Y_»_;}.szt \E\: Toks &gssaet(i;{np " }L'sﬁw ys A'Hvac‘-kbm 5 MLMWﬁ”
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits _ v~ ‘ ETJ - Years in Zebulon _é ] f -
Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes  No «— _ Ifyouanswered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).
Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes___ No __/

Describe extent and meetings attended - _ - - —
= N\

3 ]

“ | / r
- .. 7 . / / f
Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? /[ /A Jet Je i pate A ru he é ine Tt .
- ~, 5 7/
| / [ % - - 4
~N o ] ~. 30, ) ‘ | 57 . 7 [
QAN O Hhe Authare D L ;ak:_,ﬁe J e »’@MA Ao (e bulbon C_l‘:i_zeﬂﬁ

-~

p——— J Py L d
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? [ hove woeviee, { Lo ;ax fa._g. . é ¥a3 ﬁ_(‘aj’(dﬂ’\

What are your qualifications? | iy, 0@ 4. €

- D ‘ - P
Vee tn R Lvenst /. dac lgears Q'__C wafk-écl
Ly ' o
What areas of concetn would you like to see the Board or Commission address? Futyve Qvp ?FLL e;'y_'&-

o

& o ) _ I < o PR :
FRY! Q@."‘;&Sﬁ(z_m NAN T Ta e ) 1__4_‘1 \li e Ca 1 le S QQ Lol fa L 0v1e

1 certify that the above information is correct. I understand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the date of application. /

oy J Pl | 77 7

{ A y o | i

Date f -~/ [ =% - Signature [/ / [NAST o~ AIO AL o

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. Ifyou have any question call 919-823-1802.
174019



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

¥__Board of Adjustment Planning Board Parks & Recreation Advisory

Address 104 E Sycamore Street Zebulon, NC

E-mail  9ray52@nc.mr.com Date of Birth (month & Day) 02/27/1983
Phone (Home) o (Work) (Cell) 919-754-7713

Employer Vision Cpntractors Incorporated Occupation Commercial Const. Proj. Mg_]r

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits X ETJ Years in Zebulon o
Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No X If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).
Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes x No

Describe extent and meetings attended Town Board meetings o

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? | would like to contribute to the community by getting involved
and seeing that land use decisions are fair and equitable, continuing responsible > growth and prosperity for Zebulon.
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? | consider various perspectives with a fair mindset.

| want to know more about land use policy and zoning. and | am willing to invest time into understanding and
applying the regulations.
What are your qualifications? With my contractor background | have experience with zoning reguirements on
caonstructions projects.
What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address?

I certify that the above information is correct. | understand that this is an application to be considered for appoimment 1o a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the date of application. P

/ » /4 s

e i o 4

q-,,w;f ¥ ' : I A ~]

Date "f#;»‘i A T Slgnature (LA i-"“"-'- ¥ | Wil B o ,\f <

y 4
| X i

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Parane}ﬁe at Town Hall. If \'¥iu have any question call 919-823-1802.

10-19
175



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

2  Board of Adjustment 1 Planning Board Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name Nicholas Walton o R S

Address 4014 Watsonia Dr. Zebulon, NC, 27597 o -

E-mail NicholasWalton2016w/a ¢mail.com L Date of Birth (Month & Day) 05/10/2002
Phone (Home) 407-748-1213 ~ (Worky (Cell) 407-748-1213
Employer Walmart - __ Occupation Hardlines Team Associate

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits \/ ET] Years in Zebulon 10 Months

Do you currently, or have you previou\slj, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes J No_

Describe extent and meetings attended I’ve attended almost every meeting and spoken in almost every public hearing
since December 3. 2023.

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? I want to serve on a town appointed board because 1 want to
serve my community. elevate my level of civic engagement from what it currently is. and to better advocate this
government to implement the Urbanist solutions I dearly want to solve various problems in our town.

Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? 1 would be an asset to this board because I have immense
knowledge of U.S. Histon and U.S. Politics. Which can be used to inform the board and the town government to make

What are your qualifications? | have immense knowledge of U.S. History and U.S. Politics.

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? Our current zoning laws. our inefficient
land use. efc.

176



I certify that the above information is correct. I understand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. 1alse
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6

months from the date of application,
- | 1 I
Date August 8. 2024 Signature “/ lJ dead ZA— Mx‘v e

Please fill out the form completely and return it 1o Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. Ifyou have any question call 919-823-1802.

10-19

177



Zebulon Board of Commaissioners
Work Session
Minutes
May 30, 2024

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Beverly Clark, Shannon Baxter, Amber Davis, Joe
Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works, Bobby Fitts-
Finance, Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Sheila Long-Parks and Recreation,
Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Shannon Johnson-Economic Development, Eric Vernon-
Attorney

Absent: Jessica Harrison
Mayor York called the meeting to order at 6:03pm.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to approve the agenda.
There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

MEETING SCHEDULE
Joe Moore presented the meeting schedule amendments:
1. Changing the work session start time to 6:00pm
2. Moving the June 11, 2024 meeting to June 13, 2024

3. Call for Public Hearing on the Bond for June 13, 2024

Commissioner Davis stated East Wake High School’s graduation was on June 13 at 4:00pm. There
was consensus to move the meeting to June 18.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to conduct the bond public
hearing on June 18, 2024 at 6:00pm. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to start all work sessions at
6:00pm. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

FY ’25 BUDGET

Joe Moore spoke about what was needed for the Christmas parade and suggested scaling back
other Town events to accommodate the parade. There were concemns about finding staff
availability to be able to hold the event.

Commissioner Baxter stated she had heard from people in the community that they wanted a
Christmas parade and wanted to allocate funds to secure volunteers to move forward.
Commissioner Miles agreed. There was discussion about working to get support from the
community to help hold the parade. Commissioner Clark stated the work should not all fall on staff
and had concerns about staff’s capacity. Joe Moore explained volunteers required staffing and the

12



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 30, 2024

sense of urgency would be the Board’s consideration to possibly remove other events to hold the
parade.

Commissioner Miles recommended adding $25,000 to the parade fund and ask local organizations
to help with the parade. There was discussion about a establishing a parade policy.

Commissioner Baxter suggested putting out a request for volunteers and talking about the parade
again at the June 3, 2024 meeting. Joe Moore stated there was not enough capacity of staff in such
a short time and recommended incorporating the items the Board wanted added to the budget
public hearing which included the parade, Gill Street bathroom and the splash pad. Commissioner
Miles suggested removing Candy Cane Lane to make the parade a priority. Commissioner Clark
did not want to sacrifice the Candy Cane Lane event for a parade and felt the event reached more
people than a parade.

There was consensus among the Board to bring back the parade discussion to the June 3, 2024
budget public hearing and to budget $25,000. Staff would bring back information for the Board to
consider.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the personnel market adjustments. Staff stated there would be
a 3% raise across the board except for hard to recruit positions which would receive 5%. Those
positions were primarily Police and Planning. The merit increase was up to 5% based on
performance and any lapsed salaries would be rolled back into the general fund.

It was suggested by Commissioner Baxter to remove the bridge repair project on Barbee Street to
fund an additional police officer. Staff stated that was an operating expense and the bridge was a
capital expense. Any offset to the operating expense would need to be another operating expense.
Commissioner Baxter asked to remove the Governing Board’s Administrative Assistant and there
would be less pressure on HR once a clerk was hired and additional personnel would not be
necessary.

There was a question about the costs for the police position. Chief Boykin stated the costs for an
additional officer would be approximately $180,000 including the salary, uniform, benefits
vehicle, and equipment. The recommended budget included two watch commanders and a
detective. Chief Boykin stated there were currently four positions open.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the market adjustments would help with the recruiting efforts which
Chief Boykin explained it made progress to where the department needed to be. Commissioner
Baxter stated she wanted employees to be paid what they were worth. The base needed to be
$52,000 to make the Police Department attractive within the labor shed. There was discussion
about the time to fill vacant positions. Chief Boykin spoke about the lapsed salaries for the
positions that could not be filled immediately. Joe Moore spoke about the ripple effect of
increasing starting salary in the Police Department and some recommended positions would need
to be eliminated to increase salaries.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 30, 2024

Joe Moore stated staff would include the options for the Board at their budget public hearing.
Either there would need to be a tax increase, or recommended positions would need to be removed
to fund the changes.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the fund balance percentage. Bobby Fitts stated it would be
approximately 40%. Moore explained that did not include the Board’s proposed splash pad and
Gill Street bathroom project and would bring the percentage down. The Town’s fund balance
policy was 30%.

There was discussion about the proposed Board’s retreat, salaries for the administrative assistant
and budget analyst, and professional services. Commissioner Miles asked about the costs for early
polling sites. Lisa Markland stated the cost was over $100,000.

Mayor York stated there would be a five-minute recess.
The meeting resumed at 7:31pm.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the line item for $130,000 for professional services in the
administration budget. Lisa Markland stated she would provide that information to the Board. It
was also asked about the safety committee budget which included safety software and conferences.

There was discussion about the website administrator and Kaleb Harmon provided an update on
the website services.

Commissioner Baxter suggested an employee survey to assess how the wellness program was
being received and utilized. Lisa Markland spoke about the wellness grant from Blue Cross and
Blue Shield and how the funds were utilized toward the wellness program.

Commissioner Miles stated he would like a copy of the contract with PEG Media and to look at
other options other than contracting with PEG Media.

There was a request for information on the Cost of Housing Infrastructure Program. Joe Moore
explained Michael Clark was in attendance and would provide that information to the Board.

Staff was asked to bring back information on the funding that was secured by Deborah Ross’ office
for expanded bus connectivity in eastern Wake County.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the internal market study audit for salary compensation and
Chris Ray stated there was a market study request for Public Works to ensure their salaries were
competitive.

There was a question about the Downtown Improvement grants. Shannon Johnson stated there
would be fagade grants in FY 25, but the Main Street Board was looking into adding additional
grants that were done in downtowns. There was discussion about the Main Street Coordinator’s
position, training and salary.

3 14



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 30, 2024

Commissioner Baxter stated she wanted to discuss what was involved with the fee schedule and
what it was charging for at the next meeting.

Staff was asked to have consistency on how CIP projects were prioritized.

Chris Perry was asked to speak about the knox boxes and why it was the Fire Department that
provided them instead of the business owner. The business covered the cost of purchasing and
installing the box. The cost to the Town was for a more secure key fob system.

Commissioner Baxter stated she was uncomfortable with the design and construction decision to
renovate Town Hall and the Police Station and asked staff to remove it from the budget.
Commissioner Miles stated he felt the same way. Joe Moore explained there was $170,000
allocated for Town Hall and $110,000 allocated for the Police Department. The goal was to utilize
the existing space now to make it usable with cubicles and renovation.

There was discussion about the land acquisition for fire station three. Joe Moore stated those funds
were to look for and acquire land for fire station three. Fire station two funds were already in the
budget.

Commissioner Baxter stated she did not want to put money into developing a large and expensive
renovation project and was agreeable to allocate $280,000 in funds to make office space in Town
Hall and the Police Department useable. Commissioner Baxter did not want the Police kitchen
renovated since it was done a couple of year ago. There was a request by Commissioner Baxter to
add the reorganization to the June 3 meeting for further discission.

There was discussion about the pedestrian bridge at Barbee Street. Commissioner Baxter asked to
have the $90,000 in funds removed from the budget.

Commissioner Baxter explained the Board was not comfortable purchasing a new park and wanted
more information before a park was purchased. It was requested that a contingency be added that
the $1.05 million in funds would be released only with Board approval.

There were concerns about the $350,000 allocated funds to complete the green spine with the
mudcats leaving. Sheila Long spoke about other options with Phase II of Beaverdam Creek and

the Downton connector segment of the greenway. The funds could begin the design process of the
greenway segments.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the splash pad for Community Park was included in the budget.
Sheila Long stated it was not because the splash pad was not recommended for funding at any park
for next year. The splash pad was included in the Parks and Recreation CIP for the future.

Mayor York stated there would be a ten-minute recess.

The meeting reconvened at 8:46pm.

4 15



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
May 30, 2024

CLOSED SESSION
The Board needed a motion to go into closed session under NC GS 143-381.11(a)(5) for the
purpose to consult with the Town Attorney.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to go into closed session.
There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NOTE: In closed session, Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter
to come out of closed session. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Davis made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 9" day of September 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

16



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-02
Ronsh osnoLrsl BARRINGTON PHASE 2-H&l
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Topic: Resolution 2025-02 — Barrington Phase 2-H&I Infrastructure Acceptance

Speaker: Chris D. Ray, Public Works Director (if pulled from Consent)
From: Chris D. Ray, Public Works Director

Prepared by: Joseph Collins, Public Works Construction Closeout Coordinator
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:

The Board of Commissioners will consider accepting roadway and storm-drainage
infrastructure constructed with Barrington Phase 2-H&I for ownership and maintenance
by the Town of Zebulon.

Background:

The Town of Zebulon follows a practice where the Board considers acceptance (i.e.,
ownership and maintenance) of roadway and storm drain infrastructure installed in new
subdivisions. In advance of this consideration, Staff determines whether the infrastructure
complies and meets the conditions of permits and Town standards.

DFC Barrington, LLC has completed the construction of roadway and stormwater
infrastructure in Barrington Phase 2-H&l. Barrington Phase 2-H&l will include 49
townhouse lots (with a total of 837 lots for all phases). The plat is expected to be recorded
with the Wake County Registrar of Deeds in the coming days. Staff and third-party
inspectors/engineers have certified all completed work meets or exceeds Town standards
and requirements, and City of Raleigh Utility Standards.

Discussion:

The Board must accept the dedication of streets, curb and gutter, street signage, and
storm drainage for ownership and maintenance if the dedicated work is consistent with
the UDO and complies with the latest version of Town standards.

Policy Analysis:

The infrastructure was installed per Special Use Permit 2017-01. The infrastructure
complies with the latest version of the “Town of Zebulon Street & Storm Drainage
Standards and Specifications” and is consistent with the Town of Zebulon Uniform
Development Ordinance section 6.10.4 for dedication of roadways.

Infrastructure Amount and Value
Barrington Phase 2H&I will dedicate one (3) streets totaling 1612’ LF linear feet (~.31
miles), and 1653 linear foot (~ .31 miles) of storm drainage valued at $281,574.55.

The infrastructure will be added to the Town’s Capital assets (re. Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report). Upon acceptance, the Town will own and maintain 40.79 miles of street
and 31.41 miles of stormwater pipe.

20



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-02
NORTH CAROLINA BARRINGTON PHASE 2-H&l
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Maintenance Cost

In addition to Staff's annual inspection and cleaning efforts, the Town of Zebulon annually
contracts the cleaning of approximately 10% (3.1-miles) of the Town'’s stormwater system
(FY '25 Budget $40,000). This work is done to meet one component of the “Pollution
Prevention and Good Housekeeping” objectives of the Town'’s permit (National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System # NCS000557) with the NC Department of Environmental
Quality (the permit regulating how the Town operates its stormwater system). The
acceptance of Barrington 2-H&I increases the storm drain network by less than 1%

Streets are designed to have a useful life of 20 years; therefore, the Town needs to repave
approximately 2 miles of street annually estimated at $440,000. The acceptance of
Barrington 2-H&I increases the street network by less than 1%

Revenue Streams
Maintenance costs for street paving are supported by the following dedicated revenues:

a) “Powell Bill” (gas tax) ~ $ 239,000 (Zebulon’s share of this revenue collected by the
State has grown proportionally with increasing population and street mileage).

b) Vehicle Tag Fee ~ $205,000 (this revenue will grow as new residents register their
vehicles within the Town’s limits).

There are no dedicated revenue sources to support stormwater maintenance (0.7¢ on the
property tax rate is dedicated toward stormwater capital improvements). Staff is reviewing
options for the Board to consider a stormwater fee.

Warranty and Insurance

The Town received a one-year warranty on all the dedicated assets. Staff will conduct an
11-month warranty inspection prior to the final overlay to ensure any issues or failures
are repaired prior to the final asphalt overlay by the developer.

The Town received a Subdivision Bond # US005404 in the amount of $339,565.80 from
Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company to ensure the final completion of
outstanding items (e.g., final asphalt overlay, striping, signage, sidewalks, SCM
conversion, landscaping etc.). The final completion of these items are intentionally
delayed to minimize the damage that may occur as individual lots are constructed. The
Site Improvement Performance Bond is automatically renewed or revised annually to
reflect items completed. The Site Improvement Performance Bond remains active until all
items have been completed. All inspection and development fees of $191,059.26 were
collected from the developer.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2025-02 to accept Barrington 2H&I roadway
and storm drainage infrastructure, warranty, and site improvements bond.

21



STAFF REPORT

ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-02

NORTH CAROLINA

BARRINGTON PHASE 2-H&l
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Attachments:
1. Closeout Documents

Engineer certification of roadway lengths and dedicated infrastructure
values

Engineer Certification for Roadways and Stormwater (Also see as-built for
certification)

Engineering Estimate for Letter of Credit/Bond

Subdivision Bond — Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company
Developer warranty/guaranty— Stormwater/Roadway

Developer warranty/guaranty — water and sewer

Third party engineering reports for sub-grade, stone, and asphalt
Engineering certification — Water and sewer

Developer — Release of Lien

Contractor — Release of Lien

Notice of conditional acceptance — City of Raleigh

Proof of payment for streetlights

Proof of payment for Town Inspections and fees

2. As-Built Drawings
3. Resolution 2025-02

22



dl

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC.

LAND USE CONSULTANTS /@;’
May 16, 2024 L}’\dj{;(
At

Mr. Chris Ray, Director

Town of Zebulon Public Works Department
450 East Horton Street

Zebulon, NC 27597

Q

Engineer’s Final Certification of Roadway Lengths
Barrington Subdivision 2 Tracts H and I

I, Tomas F. Craven, as a duly registered Professional Engineer in the state of North Carolina,
Certify that Barrington Subdivision 2, construction Tracts H and I includes a total of 1,612
linear feet of public streets according to the following breakdown per street.

No. Street Name Classification Public Length Right of Way Width
1 Downham Place Local Street Yes 199LF 45’

2 Dullingham Avenue Local Street Yes 1,037LF 45’

3 Barrington Key Drive Local Street Yes 376 LF 45’

This certification is issued based upon the approved construction drawings, construction staking
and as built surveys provided by this office.

“‘“.mxmn,,"%
j.t)aa F Coaxen f{g‘\:f Rocm,

£0
Thomas F. Craven, PE £2 i
Priest, Craven & Associates, Inc. % §
Y §
“ &

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS
3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

23



=+ 2

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC.

LAND USE CONSULTANTS
July 16,2024 Fite Dedicated Phase 2H and I Cost Estimate
DEDICATED INFRASTRUCTURE COST ESTIMATE %{
PROJECE: LNCINLIRS:
Barrington Subdivision Phases 2 H and | - 49 Lots Priest, Craven & Associates. Incorporated M
Zebulon. North Carolina 3803 B Computer Drive, Suite 104 y
Raleigh, North Carolina 27609 qb"'
I!‘!'!.’l.'l(, q
DFC Barringior, LLC ,l\‘

13000 Sawgrass Village Circle Building $. Suite 24
Pointe Vedra Beach. FL 32082

On behalf of DFC Barrington, LLC, an engineer's opinon of cost is heretn provided for the total cost of the site improvements for Barrmuton Phase 2G, that is to be
dedicated to the Town of Zebulon Quamtities were laking from corstruction drawings produced by Priest Craven and Associates, Inc Pricing was funshed by the Contractor

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT EXTENDED
NO PRICE PRICE

DIVISION { « STREET PAUING AND CURB AND GUTTER

1 CABC Stonc under Asphalt (8*) 4407 SY $11 95 $52,663 65
2 CABC Stonc under Curb (8™ 3186 LF $210 56,690 60
3 30" Concrete Curb and Gutter 3186 LF 51432 $45.623 52
4 First Lift of Asphalt Local Streex 4407 SY Si13C $49,799 10

DIVISION 11 - SEDIMENTATION AND EROSION CONTROL

| No Bond Item LLS S000 S
DIVISION 1] - CLEARING, GRUBBING AND EARTHIWORK 1 OR STREETS

1 No Bond ltem i LS $000S
DIVISION IV - WATER MAINS AND SERVICES

1 No Bond ttem 1 LS $600 S
DIVISION 1" -SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES

1 No Bond ltem I LS 000 S

DIVISION 17 - STORM DRYNAGE (PUBLIC ONLY}

1 15" RCP 279 LF £52.50 $9,067.50
2 18" RCP 228 LF 843 4u $9.895.20
3 24" RCP 492 LF $51 50 $25,338.00
4 30" RCP 591 LF $59.25 §35,016 75
5 Drainage Structures (21) I LS 830,757 78 $30,757.78
6 Inlet Castings Standard and Valley 27 EA $619 35 $16,72245
DIVISION 1 TOTAL $154.776.87
DIVISION 11 TOTAL $0 00
DAVISION HE TOTAL $000
DIVISION 117 TOTAL $0.00
DIVISION V 1OTAE $000
DIVISION VI TOTAL $126,797 68
TOTAL DIVISION I - V1 $281,574.55

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

24



PRIEST,

#5

CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC.

LAND USE CONSULTANTS

Aprd 232024
COST ESTIMATE FOR BOND

PROIEC T
Barvington Sutxlivision Phases 2H and |
Zebudon North Carolina

OWNLI

DFC Bampynon, [.1.C

1300C Sawgrass Viiage Cucle Budding 5, Sune 24
Poinfe Vedra Beach Fi 37082

To Whom It May Concemn

FA Phases 2H and | Cost Eshmate

ENGINELRS

Prest Craven & Assocates Incorporated
3803 B Compuget Dine Suiie 104
Rakeigh. Nonth Caroli 27609

the follownyg & a cost opion of the work and material required fo conplete the nstatianon of
sidewalks, 1" asphali overtay and comon area landscapmg within the above-mentoned project

The unit prices are based on the costs furmished by the contractor

115
NO

DESCRIPTION

IMVISIN £ - PAVING ANIICONRETT
5" Conerete Sidewatk

f

2 1"1-2 Asphali Owerlay
3 Marthoke Adjustrmenis

] Watervalve Adjustmeniy
5 Handicap Ranps

6 Strippmng

DIVISION # - Lundscapmg
! Street Trees

BPAVINION H] - Stormwater Akmagement amd Frosion Controf
Seedmy and Morithly Maricrance

S& Fencmg Remwoval

Stormwater Manepenen! Pond Comersion
Stormmwater Mamgenxrt Pond Landscapmg
4" Cham Lk Fence

[P TR N

PUVISION 1V - Alneelfuncons

I Geotechimcal Allowance at SCM
2 Construction Inspection

) Construction Staking at SCM

ToaF i

Thomas F Craven, PE
Priest Craven and Associates, Inc,

QUANTITY UNIE

PRICH

15370 St $4.86
4518 SY §599
IS EA $450 00
13 kA $330 00

8 EA $1.558.75
1LS $2.700 00

28 EA $375.00
0.26 AC 5167500
3577 LF §27%8
ITES $51.000 00
354 Each $400
478 LF 51200
A 3125000

14 DAY $920 00
ILS $1.250.00

DIVISION 1 1Q1AL

DHISION 11107141,
DIFISION 111 TOLAL
DIVISION 1V TO1A]

FOTAL DIVISION |- 1
CONSTRUCTION CPI @ 10% X

DESIGN s CONSTRUCTION ADM,. i@ 20%s X
CONTINGENCY @ 10 % ““.,,,,,,,”"' X
& V\
NGB 10141 S A (
-?‘Q~ % <88 \M\k '91;",
110% Mukipiser §- v X
£ 2
5 i
ESTIMATEDBOND AM F
EN K L
% ]
2, ® NGI @“"
"o,' F \\0‘
“uumm““

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

Mw\o{’gza
ot

EXTENDED

PRICE

$75.670 2¢
$27,062.82
56.750.00
$4.290 00
$12.470 00
$2.700 00

$10.500 00

5435 50
£7.086 75
$51.000.00
$1.416.00
$5.736 00

$1.250 00
$12.8%0.00
$1.250 00

$128.943.02
$10.500 00
$65.674 25
$15.380 00

$22049727
§22,049.73
£44,099 45
$22.049.73
$308 696 18
110

$339,565.80

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

25



(o
\{a‘f

SUBDIVISION BOND Q@

Bond No.:_US005404 Principal Amount: $339,565.80

Ol jemk)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we -
DFC Barrington, LLC ,mes
13000 Sawgrass Village Circle, Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32082 %
as Principal, and A -
Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company
800 Red Brook Boulevard, Owings Mills, MD 21117 a
Corporation, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto

Town of Zebulon

100 North Arendell Avenue, Zebulon, NC 27597

as Obligee, in the penal sum of
Three Hundred Thirty Nine Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Five and 80/100

- (Dollars) ($339,565.80 ), lawful money of the
United States of America, for the payment of which well and truly 1o be made, we bind ourselves,
our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these

presents.

MD

WHEREAS, _DFC Barington, LLC has agreed to construct in
Barrington, Phase 2H& 21 Subdivision, in Zebulon, NC the following
improvements:

Complete installation of sidewalks, 1" asphait overlay, and common area landscaping

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said
Principal shall construct, or have constructed, the improvements herein described, and shall save
the Obligee harmless from any loss, cost or damage by reason of its failure to complete said work,
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect, and the
Surety, upon receipt of a resolution of the Obligee indicating that the improvements have not
been installed or completed, will complete the improvements or pay to the Obligee such amount
up to the Principal amount of this bond which will allow the Obligee to complete the improvements.
As part of the obligations secured hereby and in addition to the principal amount of the bond, there
shall be included costs, reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorneys fees, incurred
by Obligee, but these costs shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the penal sum of the bond.

It is expressly understood and agreed that this bond will continue until released by the Obligee
upon written agreement to the Principal.

Upon approval by the Obligee, this instrument may be proportionately reduced as the public
improvements are completed.

Signed, sealed and dated, this 24th day of May, 2024.

DEFC Barrington, LLC Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company

Principal Surety

B)uéé L‘ By: QMM
es |. Moore, Attorney-in-Fact 26




STATE OF ILLINOIS

COUNTY OF DUPAGE}

On May 24, 2024, before me, Lisa Marotta, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, residing
therein, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared, James |. Moore known to me to be
Attorney-in-Fact of Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company the corporation described in and
that executed the within and foregoing instrument, and known to me to be the person who executed the
said instrument in behalf of the said corporation, and duly acknowledged to me that such corporation

executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the day and year stated
in this certificate above.

My Commission Expires, February 7, 2026 % @‘

V=
Lisa Marotta, Notary Public

Commission No.946275

OFFICIAL SEAL
LISA MAROTTA
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
My Coinmissien Expires Februacy 7, 2026

CRITE sy,

27



Allianz

A“ianz @ Trade

EULER HERMES NORTH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY
800 Red Brook Boulevard * Owings Mills, Maryland 21117

The number of persons authorized by this
Pawer of Attoraey is not more than: 1

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That EULER HERMES NORTIH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY (EULER HHERMES), a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of Maryland, does hereby nominate, constitute, and appoint the person or persons
named below, cach individually if more than onc is named, its true and lawful attorney-in-facy, for and in its name, place, and sicad 10 exceute on
behalfof EULER HERMES, as surcty, any and all bonds, undertakings, and contracts of surctyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof:
provided that the liability of EULER HERMES on any such bond, undertaking, or contract of surctyship exccuted under this authority shall not

exceed the limit stated below:,

NAME James | Moore appress 1411 Opus Place, Suite 450 LIMIT OF POWER

Downers Grove, IL 60515
$50,000,000,00
PRINCIPAL OBLIGEE

This Power of Altorncy revokes all previous powers issucd on behalf of the attorney(s)-in-fact named above,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, EULER HERMES has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate

ofticers and its corporate seal hercunder affixed this__ist day of November 2022 |
40 /A%
James Daly, President and CEO-The Americas Nicholas P. Verna b1, Senior Vice President

and Regional Head of Surety and
) Guarantee, Anicricas
State of Maryland, Connty of Baltimore

Onthis st dayof  November 20 22 , before me personally appeared Nicholas P. Verna 1, 10 nie known, being duly sworn, deposes and
says that he resides in Southeastern, PA ; that he is Senior Vice President and Regional Head of Surety and Guarantee, Americas of Euler Hermes
North America Insurance Company, the Company described herein and which executed the above instrument; that he know the seal of EULER
HERMES; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so aflixed by authority of the Beard of Directors of EULER

HERMES; and that hie signed his name thereto by like authority.

Notary Publi
Notarial Seal This Conmnission Expires February 2, 2026

‘This Power of Attorney is granted by authority of the follewing resolutions adopted by the Board of Dircctors of EULER HERMES
NORTH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY (Company) by unanimous consent on October 1, 2015,

RESOLVED: ‘That the President, Exceutive Vice President, Sentor Vice President, Viee President, Secretary, and Assistamt Viee Scerctary, be and
hereby are authorized from time to time to appeint one or more Atloreys-in-Fact to exceute on behalt of the company, as surety, and any and all
bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligation in the nature thereof: 10 proseribe their respective duties and all respective
limits of their authority; and to revoke any such appointment at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That the Company scal and signature of the aforcsaid officers and may be affixed by facsimile to any
Power of Attarncy given for the cxecution of any bond, undertaking, contract of surctyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof,
such signature and seal when so used being hercby adopted by the Company as the original signature of such officer and the
original seal of the Company, to be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as thought manually affixed.
CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas P. Verna [1, Senior Vice President and Regional Iead of Surety & Guarantee, Americas of EULER HERMES NORTH AMERICA
INSURANCE COMPANY, do hereby certity that the foregoing Power of’ Attomey and the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of October 1,
2015, have not been revoked and are now in full force and effect.

Signed and sealed this _24th  dayof _May 2024

g e T

. v s . P . N
Nicholas P. Verna 1, Senior Vice President and Regional
I ead of Surety and Guarantee, Americas

s Fleznres Noah Americs Dismance Company sl its aftiliated debt callection company are pan of the Altianz group and ket their products and seivives using the ‘Aiauz Trade indemarh.

- 20



DFC Barrington LLC \ ?@ : .

14701 Phillips Hwy
Jacksonville, FL. 32256

DEVELOPERS GUARANTY

RE: Barrington Phases 2 Section H&I Street and Stormwater Infrastructure One Year Warranty

Dear Mr. Ray,

DFC Barrington LLC guarantees and warrants that all roadways and storm sewer
infrastructure installed within Barrington PH2 Sections H&I Subdivision conforms with the Town
of Zebulon requirements, and that this warranty remain in full force and effect for a period of
one (1) year from the date of the acceptance of work. DFC Barrington LLC hereby agrees to
indemnify, defend, and hold harmiess the Town from and against all costs, loss, and damages,
including attorney fees, arising from the failure of the Work to conform to the Town’s
standards.

We understand the One Year Warranty shall begin on the date of the issuance of the
Letter of Acceptance. These improvements were installed per the approved construction
drawings for Phases 2 Sections H&I of the Barrington Subdivision and inspected by the Town of
Zebulon.

Witness the following signature and seal this 3‘ day of Huﬁwﬂ ,2023.

(Signature)

Title: Land Development Manager

Company: Dream Finders Homes — POA for DFC Barrington, LLC

State of N C_4 __; County/City of Uyn kL :

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5_/ day of { % UQ[Q g {: , 20)_1 3
My Commission Expires: ‘ (.O M[l I LL c\/ m ’-/— . “““ug‘{';'\““';;m.m%_

\

& O o i )
SRR VR
& & K
s 3
g 3
g 8
|
g %

% %,
22.%
Z, 3
%o NG
"‘J‘, € "‘“l-un""",( ;\-:'\
¢/
"'#.;,‘ A C OUN “.,W‘

it

29



w

@5’

DFC Barrington LLC N\kﬂ A7
6/30/2023 [/),,\iw

AU

e

Mr. Michael Derby
City of Raleigh
Public Utilities Inspections Division

3324 Lake Woodard Drive
Raleigh, NC 27604

RE: Barrington Phase 2H&! Water and Sewer Improvements

One Year Warranty

Dear Mr. Derby,

On behalf of DFC Barrington LLC, as Power of Attorney, we hereby grant the City of
Raleigh a one (1) year warranty on all water and sewer improvements located within Phase
2H&l of the Barrington Subdivision, Zebulon, NC.

We understand the One Year Warranty shall begin on the date of the issuance of the
Letter of Acceptance. These improvements were installed per the approved construction
drawings for Phase 2H&! of the Barrington Subdivision and inspected by the City of Raleigh
Public Utilities Department.

Please contact us immediately with any concerns or questions.

tand Manager

Dream Finders Homes, LLC

CC: Jonathan Massey, jonathanmassey@dreamfindershomes.com

30



September 5, 2023

Jonathan Massey

H&H Homes

7200 Falls of Neuse Road, Suite 202
Raleigh, NC 27615

Reference: Summary of Interior Roadways
Barrington
Zebulon, North Carolina
TME Project No.: 211145C

Dear Mr. Massey:

TM Engineering Inc. has provided construction testing services for the interior roadways within Phases 2H and
21 of the Barrington subdivision in Zebulon, North Carolina. These services included the observation of soil

subgrade and aggregate base course.

Subgrade conditions were evaluated by proofrolls and probing with a one-half inch diameter steel probe rod. The
contractor conducted repairs necessary to provide adequate stability in identified areas to repair near surface
issues. The aggregate base course was also evaluated by proofroll with no significant movement observed during
proofroll. Periodic stone density tests were performed on the aggregate base course which produced results of
100% compaction at the test locations. Stone depth was checked periodically at testing locations and found to
have 8 inches of stone in place. Concrete poured for the curb was sampled and tested for compressive strength.
Laboratory break results indicated all concrete sampled met the specified strength. Additionally, conditions
observed by proofrolls or testing are representative of the conditions at the time and could be altered for many
reasons such as weather or construction traffic. This letter provides a summary of observations documented in our

field reports and is not a warranty. No performance guarantee shall be assumed.

TM Engineering appreciates the opportunity to have provided you with our services on this project. Please contact
us if you should have questions regarding this report or if we may be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

TM Engineering, Inc. (C3201)

\\\\\\\IHHHM”/I

SR CARg 7,

e
Q

Bryant Mueller, P.E.

NC Registration No. 050303

E David Truesdale
§ Director of Construction

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Coutt | Cary, NC 275132 4743 | (919) 468 2545 | www.tmengineering.org

31



(GINEER
//%“ R"Vo\\

Project Number: 211145C /

4

G‘\V /'/
FIELD REPORT
Project: Barnngton West Client: H&H Contractors . 022123 )
City: Zebulon  porman: Brian Contractor: Kenneth West
Temperature: 58 Weather Conditions; Suany Number of Trips: ! v
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian ~ of Kenneth West of results
1* Trip Arrived: 8:00am  Lefi: 9:30am 2" Trip Amrived;:  Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors were preforming a proof roll of the subgrade of the upper portion of Dullingham Avenue
with the city of Zebulon. The proof roll was conducted with a fully loaded dump truck and also probed by the tech
with a 1/2” steel probe rod.

Tech found that most of the surface was wet and there were several places that the material was unsuitable. Tech
suggested removal of 4 inches of material and replacing with ABC stone. City inspector and contractor agreed.
Contractor was to complete removal of material before replacing with ABC stone.

Bhey 1

TME's presence on sile is to perform specific services limited to that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag with our client %ni fiot an  mcceplance or
approval of site activitics. Test rosults and inspections are representative of our ebservations only while onsite at that specific lime and location and may vary at other locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of wark by others and properly ying progress of work in prog At no time will TMF be responsible for Safety considerations for other partics
on the site

Signature:

TM Engineering, Inc. | 1063 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org
32



INEER >
SR

Project Number; 211145C
=)

R e G

" - Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington West Client: H&H Contractors  pge, 24123

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

33



Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT

project. BaIrington West Client; H&H Contractors p,qc. g2

Kenneth West

City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor:

v

Temperature: /9 Weather Conditions: Sunny — Number of Trips: 1
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian _of Kenneth West of results

1" Trip Arrived: 2:30pm Left: 3:30 pm 2" Trip Arrived; Left:

REMARKS
TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors were preforming a proof roll of the subgrade of the cul-de-sac of Downham Place with
the city of Zebulon. The proof roll was conducted with a fully loaded dump truck and also probed by the tech with
a 1/2” steel probe rod.

Tech found a few small soft areas that needed to be cut out. Tech suggested removal of 4 inches of material and
replacing with ABC stone. There was also one area of a utility crossing that was very soft. Tech suggested cutting
one foot out of that area, placing geo-grid, and filling with extra ABC stone. City inspector and contractor agreed.
Contractor was to complete removal of material before replacing with ABC stone.

), . 7.
Signature: C"\%? /j/

TME"s presence on sile is 1o perform specific services limited 1o that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag 1 with our client. This report &€ not an acceplance or
approval of sitc aclivities est resulls and inspections  are representative of our observations only while onsite al thal specific time and location and may vary at other locations. The
frequency of testing is bascd on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ying progress of work in prog At no time will TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties

on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-7545 | www.tmengineering.org

34



Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

. 02/22/23
Project: Barr |n_qt0n West Client: H&H Contractors Date:

21 - 563156 KaTIRaLL

GENE WHEELER 567 Driver Nase DRIVER, UNASSICKED

divery Method = ] G001 PARXS VILLAGE RD - 700 TONS MAX VEM NEIGHT
il BARRINGTON SUB PR 2+ TE760 LB

TOBAY 508 WEIGHT RIEASUREMENTS CASH SALE
05 RS NS ws ) METRGYONS | ey g

49713 GROBE (4300 .68 §1.46 TAxs

AR 27800 13.5¢ 12.61 WA

YOTAL S
 {PawTRECOWY
WEIGH PERSON ]

M. Gis60 10.78 18.8%

IACCRLGATE BASE)

LT W BINSTON/RT N CROSS/CONT Borth Carolina
AKE  2ND EXIT TG HKY 96S/1T BAME: LAWRENCE
ONT OLD BUNN RD/LT PAFKS LICH:

#OFCCALL B8 DUMPING® EXF2 1273071853
AN 9154276092 =,

€ Moightmaster
ol

20209 3 :G
G

o THE TERMS AKD CONDITIONS OF CAROLINA SUNROCK'S CREDIT & SALES

CONTRDY

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (519) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

35



Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
rroject: Barrington West cien: H&H Contractors e c2oom
City: Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor: Kenneth West
Temperature: 62 Weather Conditions: Sunny Numberof Trips: } V¥
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian of KennethWest — ,freqults
1* Trip Arrived: 8:00am Left; 9:00 am 2" Trip Arrived; Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors was preforming a proof roll on subgrade for areas of roadway on in preparation for ABC
stone for asphalt. Proof roll was preformed with a fully loaded (18 ton) dump truck. Tech also probed using a 1/2”

steel probe rod.

Several small sections were found to require repair. Tech suggested cutting those areas out 3 to 4 inches and
replacing with new ABC stone. There were two sections around utility areas that were very soft. Tech suggested
cutting those areas down 6 to 8 and placing geo-grid before filling with ABC stone. Contractor agreed and made
plans to complete repairs that day before placing stone.

& il
A ~
Signature: 3
TME's presence on site is to perform specific services limited 10 that schedufed by others based on the unde ding of our

-

g of our ag with our chient.  ThiCrepnt is ml%ccqﬂuncc or

approval of silc activilies est resulls and inspeclions arc representative of our obscrvations only while onsite at that specific time and location and may vary al officr locations The

frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ying progress of work in prog: At no time will TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties
on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www tmengineering.org




FONEER
Project Number: 211145C

%

4

* - Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

02/28/23

rroject: Barrington West client: H&H Contractors  pye:

! PoETE AT '.!.“
BRI
':-. ]

- 4T w4310
» Mk

All locations should be considered approximate and werc not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

37



RGINEERG:
7 9/ o\

Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Bamngton WeSt ~ Client: H&H Contractors Date; 030723
City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor: Kenneth West
Temperature: 6 __ Weather Conditions: SU0Y  Number of Trips: 1 b
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian of Kenneth West - of results
1 Trip Arrived: 8:30am Left: 10:30am 2" Trip Arrived: Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors was preforming a proof roll on subgrade for areas of roadway on in preparation for ABC
stone for asphalt. Proof roll was preformed with a fully loaded (18 ton) dump truck. Tech also probed using a 1/2”
steel probe rod.

Several spots were found to be unsatisfactory and were pumping. Tech suggested either scarifying those areas and
leaving them to dry for a few days and trying the proof roll again or cutting out the unsatisfactory areas to a depth
of 6 to 8 inches, placing geo-grid, and then covering with extra ABC stone. Contractor stated that he would have to
get with the subdivision owner to discuss the options and would get back with the tech on what they plan to do.

Signature: % = } jr

TME's presence on siic is 10 perform specific services limited to that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag with our client, Thls report is nol Bn acccplance or
approval of site activities. est results and inspeclions arc represeniative of our observations only while onsite “at that specific lime and location and may vary at other locations The
frequency of wsting is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ying progress of work in progress. At no time will TME be responsible for Safety conmderations for other panies
on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www .tmengineering.org
38



Project Number: 211145C

- Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

03/07/23

Project: Barrington West client: H&H Contractors Date:

-

LS/LT § ALT S/AATW
$65/0 CIRCLL TARE 3N

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

39



GINEERS
y, e R['Vo\

/

Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Bar”ngton West Client: H&H Qﬂnfracmff Date: 032223
City:  Zebulon Forman; Brian Contractor; Kenneth West
Temperature: 9 __ Weather Conditions: Overcast Numberof Trips: 1 VY
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian _of Kenneth West of results
1" Trip Arrived: 1030am Left: 12:00pm 2" Trip Arrived: Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors was preforming a proof roll on ABC stone for curb in preparation for pouring concrete
curb on Friday. Proof roll was preformed with a fully loaded (18 ton) dump truck. Tech also probed using a 1/2”

steel probe rod.

Several small sections were found to be below standard. Tech suggested cutting those areas out 3 to 4 inches and
replacing with new ABC stone. There was one section at a dead end that were very soft. Tech suggested cutting
that area down 6 to 8 and replacing stone. Contractor agreed and made plans to complete repairs that day.

,) B
Signature: %}//‘? 3/ . ; .

TME's rrcs:ncc on sitz is to perform specific services limiled To that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag with our cliem  Th is Bn  accepiance or
approval of site activities  Tes! resulls and inspections are representalive of our observations only while onsite a1 that specific time and location and may vary at other locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progress. At no time will TME be responsiblc for Safety considerations for other parties
on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www .tmengineering.org

40



Project Number: 211145C

. - Proof Roll

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

03722123

Project: Barrington WeSt Client: H&H Contractors Date:

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Courf | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineenng.org

41



approval of site activilics

Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Bamngton_ o Client: E8;H Contra_ctors Date; 032423
City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor; Kenneth West
Temperature: 92 Weather Conditions: Sunny  Number of Trips: ! v
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian of KennethWest of results
1" Trip Arrived: $:30am Left; 10:00 am 2™ Trip Arrived: Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractor was pouring concrete for curb in the Barrington West site. Tech took samples to perform
on-site temperature, chase air indicator, and slump testing. Tech created 1 set of 5 cylinders each left on-site for
over night curing. Tech will return to site on Monday to deliver cylinders to lab.

7) B

Signature:

T Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengingering.org

TME's presence on site 15 1o perform specific services limiled o thal scheduled by others based on the undersianding of our agreement with our cliemt Thiséé is noﬁ acceptance o1
Test resulis and inspections are representative of our observations only while onsite at thal specific time and location and may vary at other locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progress. At no time will TMF be responsible for Safety considerations for other partics
on the site

42



{éﬁinasa,”c
Project Number: 211145C /

CONCRETE FIELD REPORT
Project: Baﬂ'i_ngton Client: _':'laﬂ-! Contrﬂ(_{@ Date: ‘13121'??‘ o
City:  Zebulon - B Arrived On-Site: 8:30 am Left Site; 10:00 am
Temperature: 62 Weather Conditions: Sumy  Numberof Trips:
Material(s) Tested: [ ] Slab [J Foundation [] Wall [] Masonry [w] Other: Curb
Personnel: E["{ ___ Notified E[ik . of KemnethWest ,f regults

Concrete Supplier; S Re2 M gpecified Strength: 3,000 psi specified Slump:2-0 inches

Steel Reinforcement Installed Per Plans: Concrete Strength on ticket: 3,000 psi

TEST DATA
H20 No. of
Truck | Batch | Plant 5 Size of Slump Air Unit Wt. Concrete Daily Set
No. Time | No. RiskgliNe, Load Saonple (in) % (pef) (;':;:i) Temp. Sa::;;es No.
161 169341 10.00 | 08:24 1.5 5.00 | 143.71 0.00 80 5 1
195 169362 10.00 | 10:52 | 1.5 | 3.00 | 1456.33 | 0.00 79 5 2
163 |11:06 | 1 169368 | 10.00 | 11:35 | 1.0 | 4.00 | 146.71 | 0.00 80 5 3
Daily Set No. | Sample Type (Specified Strength Detailed Location
1 Concrete 3,000 psi First 1000 feet of curb
2 Concrete 3,000 psi Second 1000 feet of curb
3 Concrete 3,000 psi Third 1000 feet of curb
psi
psi
psi

The above report is the field rendition of the author only and subject to review

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.lmengineering.org

43




Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington Client: H&H Contractors 0312423

_ Date:

-
»
[ ]
— - » - v
® T b g Towens’ T
A : B .=
i

I el s e T Is T T - - T g
T N A TR S B oy s
J I Sliier ol et i

I p B 3 ’
- - ¥

o

Al locations should be considcred approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, tnc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

44



%“G‘NEER"VQ

Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
Project: BAIriNgton Clien: H &H Contractor p, e ommms
City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor; H&H contractors
Temperature: 84 __ Weather Conditions: Sunny Numberof Trips: 1 ¥
Personnel: Milan Notified Brian __of H&Hcontractors  of results
1" Trip Arrived; 10:00am Left: 11:45am 2™ Trip Arrived: _ Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived at the site as requested by the contractor.
Tech performed a density test on highlighted roadway (see below in plan). All the test passed with > 98%
compaction and within + 3% optimum moisture. The thickness of stone was found to be equal/excess of 8inches in

all tested locations.

Signature: _@

TME's presence on site is 1o perform specific services limied to that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag with our client  This report is not sn acceptance or
approval of sile activitics  Test results and inspections are representalive of our observations only while onsite a1 that specific time and location and may vary at other [ocations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progs Al no time will TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties
on the sife

TM Engineering, Inc, | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

45



B10°BuiiaauIBUBUN MMM | SHSZ-89b (6T6) | EbLb-ET52Z DN ‘ABD | N0 eyjemein €01 | oul ‘Bunssuibul i

3 4y 40 $31LIed J3I0 0] SUOYRIZP! A13)eg 10) gt 13q QAL
1|4 3wy ou )y “sFadBoad w om jo d Fuiiaauod Apadosd puu s1ago Aq yiom jo
Buynpayos Adwn uo paseq st Junsaj o K3uanbayy ay] ‘SUOIEO0Y L0 I8 AJRA ABUS pue
UONEIO| pur UL} JtaAdS JRYY I€ AISUO F|IYM AJUO SUGUBALINGO JNO JO dALBIUASAIA
8 suonaddsul pue simsr 1531 satAuSE s o jeacudde 10 ammdoooe ue
j0u ) uodaz siyp WAL 1IN0 Yum 13x 0o jo Jap pun gl uo pasey srYo
Aq poInpayas eyl o) PaRIY $331A135 igIoaus ULopSd 0) 51 alis o soudsasd QI

(s | smsopy :..“._os o...w“ez M.__,\H_M Ewﬂ.w.. (sa) Ga) Em—.%e it
Aisuag A1 % mig | mem A amnop | WOSPAM | PIOW | o000 | 100
YOLD0Ad INIOd-ANO
“AJuO U01EI0] 21J193dS JO 2ANEIIPUT JUE SYNSAL 5D,
01'8¢1
0004 8%e[d weyumog Zl 9%e|d weyumoq .’ 01'8¢1 0v's 086t 00y (U294 4
0°00L aoeld weyumog L1 8dejq weyumeq 01'gel 0P's 06 3¢ 1 09'¢ 08°¢¥l 5!
000l snueAy weybu|npy 01 enuaay weybuyinpy 01°8¢€1 or's 0r6€l | ose  |oovypl | 01
0001 anuaAy weybulInpY 6 enueAy weybulinpy 01'8¢l 0r's 00°6¢£1 05°¢ 08'erl | 6
0°00L enueAy weybulinpy 8 enuaAy weybuynpy 01'8¢1 ov's 06'6¢1 ov'y 0191 8
0°00L snuaay weybu|npy £ anuaAy weybuyinpy 01'8¢1 ov's 006¢l 08¢ 08°¢¥l L
0001 enuany weybulnpy 9 dnueAy weybuljinpy 01°8¢1 0F'S 0L6%1 06'¢ |OTSYL | 9
0001 enueny weybulinpy G anuany weybuyinpy 01'8¢1 (14 0z 6€1 09'€ €kl | €
0°004 snueAy weyBulinpy ¥ enuaAy weybulinpy 018¢l or'¢ 08'6¢1 (418 4 00'9%1 v
000, [+ Aex uoibuieg 2 10 Aay| uojbuiueg 018E1 ov'S 061 09¢  |obpbl | €
0'00L 1q £y uojbuieg Z ia Aeyy uoibuiueg 01'8¢1 or’s 0G5 6¢1 OL'¢ 0vpl | C
0001 1Q Aoy uoibuiieg 1 4Q Aoy uojBulueg apesdqng | o)'g¢) or's 06°8¢1 or'¢ 09°¢€v1 1
% Goa “@oa)
(%) 23uey JHg 307 uopEI0Y 1531, Asuipxoaddy ) (u/sq0 u...:“_eE Aysuaq SN Aysua N
. Rl a
uopdedwoy) AT aTan wawpdo g % P ==
VLVA LSAL 39NV ALISNAd DINOY.LDATA

% 86 ‘wonsedwo) bay Byo[] Amnn [] Aempeoy [ 1rem [] Suipping [] :paIsol uokedoT [e1ousn

o s1030813U00 ¥ I° ueng ‘PPUNON we gpiy ) PUSYT  we go:gp NS-UO PaALLY

:nw\_a“_uncoﬁon_ AL gz 03Bd J0J0BJUOD H® H slikliig} COH@C-Lme 1303loiyg

P
&7 N

4

2
Q)
\ 1

\ /
é@@@% ISPTTTZ Hoqunn 103foid

46



Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington ciienr: H &H Contractor .. ®1723

- [
S12E4VI352

ki AR 1
B N\EETVENTE LT /
n A
<108
-y . i
- = -

N
\‘;

; \ ~
N . N -

Al IUCalaSd MIUUIU DO LONdIUCICU ApPpLUAIIdIL dliu WLIC T surveytu.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www .tmengineering.org
47



.
/,éﬁmss%

Project Number: 211145C

FIELD REPORT
project; BAITington client: H&H Contractors . o123
City:  Zebulon Forman; Brian Contractor: Kenneth “_/fﬂ
Temperature: f_" —____Weather Conditions: w_ ___ Numberof Trips: 2
Personnel: Eik  Notifijed Brian of Kenneth West  ofresults
1* Trip Arrived: 8:00am Left: 9:30 am 2" Trip Arrived: 130pm  Left: 230pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.
Proof roll truck broke down on way to site. Tech was asked to return at 1:30 pm for proof roll.

Kenneth West contractors was preforming a proof roll on stone for Dullingham Ave, Downham Place and
Barrington Key Drive for asphalt. Proof roll was preformed with a fully loaded dump truck and the city inspector

was present.

All areas were found to be of firm bearing with no significant movement observed.

KQ i i

TME’s presence on sile is to perform specific services limited 1o that scheduled by others bascd on the ding of our ag with owr client rqmri is an acceptance o1
approval of site activities.  Tesl results and inspections are representative of our observations only while onsitc “al that specific time snd location and may vary olher locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ying progress of work in progress. At no time will TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties

on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www tmengineering.org

48



Project Number: 211145C

- Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington Client: H&H Contractors  pgee; *'*%

LT

(AR

very Math B b odd Urivee Wam GRIVA, SNASIIAED
Deld Method = D 601 PARES VILLAGE BO/1N TOMS Wi vEn vl
Logis) .. . Jhac o o
"..m. . WEOHT A ASUREMENS e
b g EY U e 1wy
PROUELT ) 193¢  anoes s
g 25680 2. M 1.6 .
ToTA Y
16,88
= 5o T e FRCD B
‘ ntEasiet
Worth Catolins public Welight
/LT S/LT W WINSTON/RT N CROSS/CONT ; i,
7 7@ CENCLE TAXT 2D EXIT 10 1Y #65/LT muu: LAWRENCE
W ik e nnn.:m:u;.s oFs | 12730/1899 09700500
"gz VILIAGE RD/°CALL B4 DUMPY

rod By: BRIAN 9154776892

s
wmmawm'“ﬂ"“"”m

2] 1S SUIUETY TO THE -

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

49



#6800 "ON @5U3217 - 51922 ON ‘yblajey -~ 8oL 94INS ‘WNoY uojbulldm 00ZE - "V'd U] ‘seibojouysa 0ag

ainjeudbls £202/L.2/¥ 8leg Hoday Aq paniwang

. \-““\ UOLOW "M [e_yaIN

50

'PBISBI 10 PBJIBUSUI SWIBY BY) O} AJUO 3)B81 SNSBI 858Y ] Yo JU[ SOIBOJOULDE [ 0BY JO JeADIdde UsHLM Joud Sy} JNOYIM “liny Wl 1089X8 "poINPAIdss 8] JOU JBYS Uode) SIYL
Miew Aqo *Aesuwiey jaine ‘aiepsani) pieq e Asjysy uonnquisia

"8E-0 WLSY Uitm 90uepIoooe Ul pswioyad sise) yibuang :S3JON

yiws suyo Aq pauuopad Sunsay yibusng yibuauys ubisep uey) sso =,

9 £20Z/61/S 3
4 00’1 08l't PR R A% 00'¥ 016'6€ :74 £20¢/iev a
Z 00’1 0158°¢ pA AN 00y oLL'vy 8z gzoz/iew ES)
4 00’1 .088°€ 152t 00y 0zL'8y 8c £202/1.21v g
Z 00} 00z'z 15721 00’y 9v9'L2 L £20¢7/LElE v
adAy lojaey (1sd) (zu1) (wy) (sa1) (sAep)
ainjoeay 1109 ybusng ealy l19j9welg peos aby aeqisalL aiod
isyJeway pioid
qIND JO '14 0004 1Sii4 :Judwase|d jo uoyeso]
Wv vZ'80  pajduweg pexin :awi}
101 ‘tH 000t :(sAep gZ) yibuang payloadg LYE69L #i9vouL L9l IONDPNIL
L'epl  :(od) yBlam yun 0'0L  :(Ao) peoT jo azig L ‘uoljeso jueld
‘payjisadsg oS (%) Jusjuon Ny 4008 sjdweg 4029 Aty :ainjesaduway XIN Apeay |ejides :1o1|ddng 9j010u0)
‘payidedsg 0S'L (ut) dwnjg :Aq pazuoyny INL :Aq pajdweg
sjsa| jesshyd v M £202/12/E 1qe Ul paAjaoay ejeq

uopew.oju| pjaid

000v :Wibuang ubiseq
000F :ON XIN

‘ON qor ualid

vO690LLCt ‘ON qor
L1987 ‘ON geT ON ‘uojngaz ; uojbulueg :Jo8loud
€202/¥e/e ‘1sed sjeq ‘ou| ‘Bunesubuz w1 ualD

2| ‘saibojoupajo ey

/o\v Lo synsey s8] yjbuans
y& by




¥680-D "ON 3asusd17 - 1922 ON ‘UBjajey —~ oL aung ‘Wno9 uojbulljepm 00ZE ~ "v"d “du| ‘salbojouysasjoan

ainjeubls £202/12/y 9req vodey Aq paywgng

— W

Wlws suy) Aq pausopad Bunse) yibusig

51

UOHOW ") |8BYOIN

'PBISe} 10 pejaRdSUl SWaN ay) 0 AUO ajBles SYNSA) 3S8YL “Wd IU[ SBIB0I0UYIE L 089 JO jeacidde UM JoUd BY) INCYIM ‘IiNg U 1dEoXe ‘PRINPAKIB; 9q JOU feys poded Siy|

e Aqo | ‘Aeswey [9neT ‘a[epsani) pIed ‘WIBW Aojusy  :uoRnqlasia
"6£-D WLSY UM 20uepiodoe Ul paiulopad $1se) yibuang :SojoN

yibuans ubisep uey) ssa =,

95 £202/61/5 3

Z o0’} 06¥°E PANAY 00’y zs8'ey 82 g£eoziery a

Z 00'L «009't 25°CL 00y S61'S 8z €20Z/12Iv o

Z 00t «0SE'E LSCL 00V 12 1% 4 8¢ £202/121v a

Z o0t 09v'e FASRAN 00'v 0€6'0¢ L €20¢/Le/E v

adAy 10304 (1sd) (zu1) (u) {sar) (sAep)
ainyoesy 1409 ybusng ealy Jajawelqg peo aby eegisal 8109
ISHHIeway piald
QN JO 14 000L pPUCDSS :judwade|d Jo UoledoT
AV 2501 pajduieg paxiy :awy)
101 IH 000V :(sAep gz) yibuasg payjoads 29€691 oI S6L  ONYomiL
€6yl :(19d) ybiap yun 001 :(Ao) proT jo azg i :uoyesoT jueld
:payjoadg XS (%) Juaguon ay 4062 asjdweg 4029 iy aimedadwe) XIN Apeay eyden :ialddng ajaioucn
‘payoadg 0g'L () dunig :Aq pazuoyiny Nt :Aq pajdweg
sjsa] jedisAyd iejem €202Z/22/€ iqe ul paataday ajeq
uonjewsoju] pjaid
000¥ :WiBuang ubisag :ON qor Juaid
000F :ON XIN vOB90LL2ZL iON qor
ZL98y :oN qeT ON ‘uojngaz  uojbunieg 30afoid
€20Z/veZ/E 1seD ajeq "ou| ‘Bunssuibuz w1 Jusio
L jo | :abed

sjinsay s3] yibuasg au| ‘saibojourps oDy




V680-D "ON 3suad|T -~ §19.Z ON ‘yBiajey - go1 auing ‘Unog uoibulijam 00ZE — "v'd “au| ‘se1Bojouysajoen

aJnjeubig

€202/12/y o1eq woday Aq pamwigng

— W

Yl siyo Ag peunopiad Bunse) yibueng

52

UOLIO "M [oByoIN

'paIsse) 40 parasdsut sway i) OF Auo alejas SYNSel 3SaYL "V U] $8160JOUYIS] 0%) JO jBACITUE UayuM Joud BY) Inoypm iy uj Jdeaxe ‘PeInpoidas 8q Jou yeys pedas Sy

e Aqo L ‘Aeswiey jaine ‘slepsani) pineq “ilew Aalusy  :uonnquisig

'6€-0 WLSY Ylm aouepiooaoe vl pawiopad siss) yibuang :S3JON

uibuans ubisep uey) sse =,

< 00’1 0L’y 1521 00y LL1'ES 8¢ RAA VA AL 3
4 00t 0SL'y FAIAS 00 8L1'2S 82 €202/L2Iy a
(4 00} 005’y LS°CL 00’y r19'9g 8¢ £202/1\2Iv )
Z 00'L 020'v PAAY 00'vy 695'09 8z £202/\2Iv q
Z 00'L 0£8°'2 L8721 00 045'GE L £20Z/Le/E A4
adAj lojoey (1sd) (zun) (un) {(say) (sAep)
ainjoely 40D yibuang ealy layaweiq peon oby sjeqisalL 8103
IS)HIeway plald
QinD Jo 14 0001 PIYL ‘JuBWdE| JO UOHEIOT
WY SEiLL pajdweg WV 90:LL Pexiiy dwil
He ) ‘I 000t :(shep gz) yibuasg payioadg 89£691 H1ed1L €91 ON YoNIL
L'9vL  :(jod) wbiaps pun 00L :(Ad) peotjo azig L uopeso juejd
:payoadg oY (%) Juvu09 Ay 4008 sjdweg 4029 Ay eumjeiedwia] Xip Apeay jeyden ualddng ajauou0n
‘payidedg o't {u1) dwnig :Aq pazuoyny INL :Aq pajdueg
sisa] |eoisAyd i9jeM £202/12/€ :ge uj peareaay ajeq
uonjewojuj pjai4
000t :yiBuang ubisaq ‘ON qof jualiD
000 :ON XIN V06904121 ‘oN qor
€198 [ON qe’ ON ‘uoingaz ; uojbuuieg BECICTE
£202/ve/c ¥seD ajeq "au| ‘Bunsauibuz W1 BU k)
| jo | :abed

sjnsay Js9} Ybuang U] ‘saibojoulpa| o D€y \




) o v
TORININGE | SHOLIARTR { S MOUSI) / IOTIE LANTLWENO 158 6T

[e1zs| DNJ ‘STLVIDOSSY B NIAVYY) ‘1SA1IJ

e~

.........
...........

w.v_...

Y

A"

>
- i
=7

DR} .' ... Ty -—.:
A e
._..?.._._x_ ’:w.f.f._,_;/
L I TR 4 B L L S |

53



o~ | P
——

QADC$ (Revisad) i s o
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
WORKSHEET FOR ROADWAY CORE SAMPLE DENSIYY DETERMINATION & COMPARISON
PROPECT NUMBER: ; 2//\/670’\/ meue kS35 C MDL% w7
g‘-—‘/‘;’lﬁ PLANT ,@@z‘i Iotre.
e | ptrie | sowmx | mmy o - o1 | pc TawcaT saswar| <4 QG TECENICIAN
= ok T, |menns| wE 7 | "P | ga | sa | we |[M% m*w'ﬁ,
123227 || 1 | 2% | o8 | 20029 |i/78 2277|2438 | __| #23 1@;{/ o
2 | 1% | 47BT | 7320| 9608 | 2296 | 92,/ 22567

. 3 | 2k | Jor23 | ponto| sewd | 2363 2.4

v |t | |mestssy| | 2%l 2.7

L8 | 74 (1383 | (383 7728 200k | 3
- e | j1s | )83 /503 8320 22¢3 | F2¢
[ 7 | 2k I5728] 1504t 3. 2226 9.3
—_— ‘ —4 ~+— T ——
S— I — _-—_4
S ! - T - =
= I === | el

i - ' _

‘ : -
I ~
S ~ ——— i e

= T
|




47

Nt 200 (& (ceH PP

20 Rew NORTH CAROLINA DEPAR™ENT OF TRANSPORTATION | mizan
DAILY CORE LOCATION & LOT SUMMARY Dare
ProjECT NO: __ Aot e N/ mar mr.no: s 24 CONTRACTOR: __ [0 T5... PLANT LocaTION: (Z#t
BASE TYXPE: _O/DWE& L4NE DESC: o [Ry— BASELINE:
N, Rsase. F Now | %1332 21 prgmcT
CORE # IEST SECTION ! RANDOM # W TEST SECTION CORE LOCATION sﬁ:g J—
| o | v [ | e | e | o | e | e ol e | e |
(11 | 308 | 230 | 933
2 ] | . | ﬁ& 22/
33| [ | | | 2% | 9¢
AN 1 1% | 9a7
sl || A | T % | 738 |
¢ ¢ / = /5 9.8
| 7|7 | ’ 1% | g3
} |
| ! |

10T AFERAGE 77. 7

CONSTRUCITON TYPE:
IBE mmm CUA.MRY WILL BE DEFINED AS PAVEMENTS,
THE FOLLOWING

EXCLUSIVE OF IRREGULAR AREAS MERTING ALL THREE OF
1) PAVEMENT PLAGED ON A NEW AGGREGATE O SOIL BASE COMPACTED LOT PASSES
10 TEE 08 PAVERGHT PLACED ON 4 \58 ASPEALT <
MIX LAYER (EX
LOT FAZLS

LEVELING);
2) PAVEMENT WHICE 1S WITHIN A DESIGNATED TRAVEL LANE OF INE

FINAL TRAFFIC PATIERN: AND
.uummmwn'uma.zumm WIRER.
WHEN THE FIRST LAYER OF MIX IS PLACED ON AN

mmmmcmn MWTEE

u' D BY LEITER OF
OR Mm’ REMOVAL

THE "OTHER" CONSTR < FILL INCLUDE ALL FPAVEMENY
mumamzm ALSOA!LS(»HJIMR TYPES.

55



¥

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC.

LAND USE CONSULTANTS

July 25,2023 7)&
7

Michael Fowler 4 h{;
Capital Improvement Management Division QL
3324 Lake Woodard Drive &K\

P.O. Box 590

&
QRV

Raleigh, NC 27602-0590

Re: Installed per Plans Statement Barrington Subdivision Phase 2
Sections H & 1 for Public Water and Public Sanitary Sewer.

Mr. Fowler,
Engineer Certification Statement

I, Thomas F. Craven as a duly registered professional in the state of North
Carolina, having been authorized to observe periodically, the construction

of the project, Barrington Subdivision, Phase 2 Sections H & I, hereby state
that, to the best of my abilities, due care and diligence was used in the observation
of the construction such that by my inspection of the constructed improvements
and my review of the as built survey data hereby certify that the (1) public
improvements, (2) private improvements and (3) public safety of the above
referenced project as constructed are in compliance with the requirements of the
improvements as prescribed in the approved construction drawings, approved
design documents, and / or any approved modifications, except as noted as
“strike throughs” on the “as built” drawings. Furthermore, I certify that the
“strike through” exceptions do not adversely affect the required performance

or public spfety aspects of the improvements.
Date: 1{ y 2, "Z_a")

anenH,,

\“\‘
& ?“‘6;{8"@4’9 %,
2/ /® o

Name:

Seal:

’,

Thomas F. Craven, P.E. Registration Number 10956
Priest, Craven & Associates, Inc.

““‘\““lllﬂnh."
%,

X

O\

Q{iee-
z
m
s

)
N
Y
LY

(/ . \)
“"uugﬁu“‘“

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

o Progect: 200307000 BARKIINGE @0 A, Builts Phases 202 U5 Bpsinea Cetdivabon ssuh ae line 72325 ey 56



DEVELOPER LIEN WAIVER AND RELEASE

I, the undersigned, am the owner of Barrington Phase 2 Sections H&I as indicated by my
respective signature below.

All work related to the Development of Barrington Phase 2 Sections H&I as shown on construction
plans prepared by Priest, Craven, & Associates, Inc. dated Revised June 3, 2022,

DFC Barrington, LLC has not made any financial considerations for the supply of any construction
materials for the development of Barrington Phase 2 Sections H&l.

Witness the following signature and seal this 3\ day of Aucsu.%"" _,202%
// v AP S (Signature)

Name: Jonathan Massgy

Title: Land Development Manager

Company: Dream Finders Homes — POA for DFC Barrington, LLC

State of AJC,-

; County/City of Qb—ﬂ& o H
( lﬂ[ l( ZMS# ,zodj

s,

QA Y,
()o‘“' %c ;xa u,',":\’i
-,

;‘%0 i J)

%,

RS
B
o

n
1 &)

pspennt™
S
o
ot

o,
P erzegay

&
>
i
(&)
%
A,
sy,

é:‘ ""':m‘:am\!‘“":‘{*

e

L, >
%,
%,
Yoy,

&
o~
&

>

57



(To Accompany Application For Final Payment)

CONTRACTOR'’S FINAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN — UNCONDITIONAL. % I eg;'h

\

UNCONDITIONAL FINAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN QV
The undersigned Kenneth West, Inc., in consideration of Final Payment in the amount of A»d
$ SEL&F , the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby waives and ’)\

releases its lien and right to claim a lien for labor, services, or materials furnished to DFC Barrington, LLC
("Owner") to the following property:

Barrington PH2 Sections H&!

Kenneth West, Inc certifies that all of its sub-contractors(s), supplier(s) and/or agent(s) furnishing labor,
services or materials to or for it in connection with its Work at the Property have been paid in full by Kenneth

West, Inc.

Kenneth West, Inc., for and in consideration of the above-referenced Final Payment, hereby unconditionally
waives, releases and discharges Owner, ifs agents, assigns, attorneys and successors-in-interest, of and
from any and all past, present or future claims, demands, obligations, actions, causes of action, rights,
damages, punitive or exemplary damages, attorney's fees, expenses, costs and/or compensation of any
kind or nature whatsoever, both at law and in equity, whether presently known or unknown, that Kenneth
West, Inc. ever had, now has or may hereafter have. for or arising out of, connected with, or in any way
resulting from Kenneth West, Inc. Work at the Property

This Final Waiver and Release of Liens constitutes a representation by the undersigned Contractor, for and
on behalf of its Subcontractor/Supplier, that the payment referenced above, once received, CONSTITUTES
FULL AND COMPLETE PAYMENT FOR ALL WORK PERFORMED, AND COSTS OR EXPENSES
INCURRED (including, but not limited to, costs for supervision, field office overhead, home office overhead,
interest, profit and general conditions costs, filing fees, and attorney’s fees) relative to all work performed
at the Property by its Subcontractors/Suppliers.

Kenneth West, Inc. acknowledges and agrees that this Final Lien Waiver and Release is executed and
delivered with the intent that the same be relied upon by Owner. This Final Lien Waiver and Release shall
inure to the benefit of Owner, its respective successors and assigns, and shall be binding upon Lienor, its
successors and assigns

DATEDon Quyuprk ¢ 2023

Kenneth West, Inc

[Kenneth West, Inc. Sig,‘ature]

|[Kenneth West, Inc. Name]

GARNEZ. N¢. 27529

[Kenneth West, Inc. Address]

Page 3of 5
46405040 vl

58



NEGEIVE

ALl IH /

Wake Electric INVDICE
Membership Corporation 2
Post Office Box 1229 ) [nvolce Date
Wake Forest, North Caroling 27588-1229 8/14/2023
Telephone: 919.863.6300 or 800.474.6300 Py
- L 1051256800
707 PRILIPS HAY SUTTES00 O azet0s
JACKSONVILLE FL 32256 HESCiRRgresite Jack Sapp
CPEPNEEES BARRINGTON PHASES 2H & | IM“" vocston 2716-03-2355
Quantily Description Price Amount
17 STREET LIGHTS INSTALLATION COST $3,972.75
Invoice B: df;‘ lé) (PIOO ‘7’
vendor: (4 K)Olkt_ r\/_](’ :
cotingg_ 19D RNCTN 105
Codivege 00000000
Coding:
Invoice Amount: 5_%_&1
T Sub total $3,072.75
ety 7% Utility tax $278.09
Total $4,260.84
LOM Approval: — )ICE INDICATES THAT YOU HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND
VP Approval: { 1S LISTED BELOW AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY SAME.
Date: _"% "2\ -L% S pLEASE RETURN ONE COPY WITH YOUR PAYMENT *4sesssesssases

For New Underground Services:

Work Will Not Be Scheduled For Construction Until Meter Base Has Been Installed And Wake EMC Is Notified.

Per current Wake EMC Standards, additlonal charges will be due if Wake EMC:
1) Has to dig or bore under pavement, concrete, or any other object

2) Encounters rock that requires additional work and/or materials to install cable.
Return charges apply if the crew is requested to pull off for member to remove rock.

3) Is requested to relocate cable at a later date

Wake EMC does not assume responsibifity for damages due to installation. Wake EMC will not re-seed disturbed areas or
replace gravel. Wake EMC requires access to cable at all limes; therefore no structures or trees are permitted to be placed

within 7.5 feet of the cable.
PAYMENT OF ALL CHARGES IS DUE PRIOR TO SERVICE BEING CONNECTED.
FOR OVERHEAD LINE EXTENSIONS, LINE CONVERSION AND LINE RELOCATIONS:

Payment of all charges is due prior to the work being released for construction. If any of the preceding work requires
underground cable trenching, the above information listed under new underground service also applies.

UTILITY TAX MUST BE COLLECTED FOR ALL INVOICED ITEMS.

59

/2 {L)/bd(
i
e

|




Land Check Request Form

Requested Date: August 21, 2023

Requested By (LAM/LAA): i - B o

DFII Division Name: aer [ wax [ ew[] cus[]

VPH Division Name: STD D SIG D

H&H Division Name: CHA D FAY D MYB D RAL E] WIL E]
MHI Division Name: AUS D DAL D HOU D SAT D

Division President Approval:

Division President Signature:

Division President Approval Date:

Vendor Name/Check Payable To: Wake Electric Membership Corporation

Vendor Supplier Code: 14WAKEMC »
Community/Subdivision Name: Barrington Phases 2H & |
NewStar Project Code: NewStar code 14BRRNGB6: Land code 99BRNGTN

NewStar GL or Major/Minor Code: NewStar code 6300; Land code 1034

Due Date: Augm S - —

Send To Division or Vendar: Division o o

Amount: $4,250.84 - o R
Reason: eet Light Installati 1l IS
Special Handling Instructions: e = = = ==

Requires Corporate Approval (Request Greater than $15,000): Yes D No

National VP Land Approvak

National VP Land Signature:

National VP Land Approval Date: B

Last Revised June 2, 2023



about:blank @

3/22/24, 10:18 AM

r Ameris Bank \
' Dream Finders Homes LLC 100 Southpark Bhvd 061201754
; 14701 Philips Highwey Sulta 104
i Jacksonwville, FL 322G6 St. Augustine, FL. 32086 P
H Daie Check Number H
i Aug 25, 2023 85494-939907119 i
1 Vuki sftar 90 duys
i Amount ﬁ
' Pay YFour Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Doliars 84 Cents * $4,250.84 1
| 3
H
2 To WAKE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP :
! The P.0. BOX 1229 s
! g;der Wake Forest, NC 27588-1229 2
] T ]
LN <
5 R
f -

E‘ ————— (e e [Sedl. o Sl N L TR (LU HE ME. R E 1 ¥ 3
v L e k0B 0375w 20LYLABALY.
N
...... >
: — 20| | 9
R | ' 5 a8 :
k - §
- ' i < mg l §
(- : b Tl B "_‘
H PR W=l B
[N B A B B e w I ¢
' — e 200 W X
! O B me T m
| 3 al g:.r,ﬂ D W sk T
e d SR mm
| - ﬁ:}.'u#:%'nr'
' - HHEEREGEE
{ f ﬁ:ﬂ‘acﬁh*»-o:ﬁ—g
I ! e ol & k=D
| mAE BEFTgH
[ o
. ~ 4 &
L Ny8 LRE-E
b H- @ [ ) o
. - it f’ <N m
- N ot 7
£ U R &‘ ",g [5Y
P h}y{ €. x
aas 2 9
S '&fe (I
' nEe & 3
; WA 8 3
¢ b et
' oie [ %
e i | t
61 1

about:blank



&

Payment (CRPMT) $4,250.84
I Account 1051256800 Aug 28 2023 933 34 AM
H & H Constructors Fayetiewlie Lic

Originating Process: iVUE Connect
Batch: 0
Batch Processed On: 08/28/2023
GL Journal: 307934
GL Bi Debit Atias: 13199
GL Bl Credit Afias: 142 00
GL UA Credit Alias:
GL UA Debit Alias:
Deposit Group: 2
Commenta:

62



\ \ \;!‘ ‘ﬁ\“b fév
‘”,’ f‘O
' {}Jﬁ

Raleigh
?“/’l \h\ﬁ

‘%3

Notification of Conditional Acceptance

of Water and Wastewater Infrastructure in Raleigh Water Merger Communities
(Gamer, Knightdale, Rolesville, Wake Forest, Wendell, Zebulon)

Project Name: BARRINGTON
Project Phase: PHASE 2-H, 2-1 AND OFFSITE WATER

Permit Number(s): W-3313

S - 4681

The City of Raleigh Water Department has completed field inspections and testing on the water
and/or wastewater infrastructure associated with the development project/phase referenced above.
Installation meets Raleigh Water specifications and the infrastructure is available for use. This
preliminary acceptance is conditional on a final review of digital as-built data, project records and
other submitted documentation. Formal notification of acceptance is pending and will be provided

on successful completion of the conditional review.

Inspector Name: MICHAEL R. FOWLER

Date: 10/17 12023

Comments:
FINAL / SIGNED ACCEPTANCE LETTER TO FOLLOW

Notes on Project Phasing: Acceptance occurs afier water and sewer infrastructure in an approved phase is installed
inspectedftested and the required supporting documentation has been received. Phases of construction must extend

from and/or connect to existing (or concurrently accepted) infrastructure to be considered for acceptance.
Acceptance boundaries are defined by the limits identified in the Raleigh Water approved utility phasing plan(s).
Acceptance of unapproved sub-phases and/or partially complete phases will not be considered. Additional
information can be found in the Raleigh Water Handbook at www.raleighnc.gov.

M pal Bulld ng | 222 West Hargett Street | Raleigh Nogh Caruline 27601
mie Dxchange Plaza | 1 Exchange Plaza | Raleigh North Carchina 2 /601
Faiing addiess City of Rateigh | Post Office Box 560 | Rale gh Noith Carclina 27602 0591
2 g 13

63



AT v A

952Z¢ ‘14 ‘ATTANOSHOVI
0Q0€ FLINS ‘AVMHIIH SdI'l[Hd TOLYT

OTT'NOLONIYYVE D4d
dINMO

ww:_ -0 ‘# WY1 wodusArIsaudg@esd =me
SHAANIONG / SHOATAYNS / SHANDISAA 34YISANYT/ SHANNVId
8821-28Z / 616 ¥ed 00E0-18L / 616 2u0yd
60942 "IN 'UB[IEY *$O1 NS ‘aaq 12andwio) @ - £0BE

N[ 'SALVIDOSSY 73 NIAVY)) ISl
‘LNVLINENOD

DO0LEL
( dv W ALINIDIA ]
\qum.u ¢ ) T,
(7=
.?wn v U] INWNETY 3 LAAREY) 0]
95601 JqunN uoHRSIINY Y'Y U 'f ¥R
/r@.d x?x s
5 E Y] mIE) ) sy

samasoadig g go maadse sapl spqnd so

ik ﬂ.a.:u..tua:..el .&!k!- JON V0. 05D 0 noay s,

P akiap
parasdds ‘duuesp : i paggiseaad
=y e wafasd pasuasagas

Smana o ) v iquiay "I Savins gaq o2 o) g0 uanMl >-_.-

Aq g
uopwALINga I Ul ?il:tﬂ-ai?ﬁﬁa!-.aas::l? !_3..... a
a1K1s £qe190} W FoRa325 T 3ex14d "o a1paRs sorkugaaeg ofosd 91 o
“eegorn
GHION JO 24416 333 W) [enoresajosd posarepias AINp & 6 BaARL) 4 Semoy ) |

,n....«r,,mmv.gum.u&mmu«m
AR BRI ST o 9701 i SOV i

OBHSAILYA\ 32D NSVIOW R o c e T5-~SRALYA

aser e T UONNGT ENLSXE

dYW INIOd Z-1-8Y cagpiaa0uL e e G UNCED A

LU LILYOLS090Y09D s v 3w e egarogao B e o e A0 B

133HS ¥3A00

€0R9T ON " TINALIAVE 007 BLNG FNIAY GOGAIZIRE bOWZ
STUATIAGLIZAYE 30 SB0MUSNCO # * 7 - T a3eCTEARC ALZBecRe

_.n_U _U,.DNDN gL SOUBILVLS 153roud
VNITONMVYI HLHEON ‘ND1Nng3z

12 8 HZ 3SVHd TV.LLINGNS WHO.LS NO1Ng3Z L1INg SV
12 ANV HZ S35VHd

NOISIAIAENS NOLSINIddVE




BEOD WAL/ MOUDASLOMSHJVOA DR QE21Z8L / 616524050 182 616 M54 60942 TN YBMIEY $01 K ‘s ko) - S0BE

ANBAY IHYHENIFING -

¥0'90 mzmmz_uzm“ / 3dVOSANYT/ SYINNVTA SLNVLINSNOD 380 ANV
#133Hs| "ON] ‘SALVIDOSSY 2 NIAVYH)) ‘LSAl
T ] oo 0

022009 S34°UN DNUSNG TW 4O NGUYIS
3430 TONCoST ¥z}

B ]
20 oo s .6 ke 3 900 1 O Bop
05T 43 K5 0 RO 31 D SR

O e A s 4 5360 310

By s 1y
.00 o 4 e 4= < g IME S DR,

VRS 0 2 4 & 0. Eh Sy e 12
DY I 9 It T T P . B

PR 20—
; i %.Ewu»a_
| Urmesszunon| o SSRE NG

TV #31d J6euniedad S3RRAN 4190d R,
VIN e

s U
Foma

sk

ErEEM WAL Jasuniedaq SaninN JRQNS SIS A1)
2I00GpRN S NP $ D 4R Jo sonEg139ds pUE
SRS 341 @ Bliajuod [ 159fo2d 5141 10} paSh spouoLl HORINATIY

34D Ax;

TS e Wuuad Wiaunuedag N pand Yo Jo A
400qpUTH KITHN 21ANd 5AND W) 10 SuoREDY s pu

130
Cumd. D UMOYS 3% WINSAS
#4041 Doy P 2wt o ov

IVAOHJdY INLLLIWHI SLIS HDI3TVY 30 ALID

SAAININBRZSVE AW T T T
VIR INSASENYIn BAUYAROIS -t
(ONLISDA NI MEMTE e e e

WALV 45 MO T
IWARYD

Bt I— 3

e

inleearivis i L




N0 < HEEwS NG T A 5+ B00 IR DO ET IS era - $:\B-O W\ it AN CEOE % ARAN WD CCCE D

09D | s S4VPSONVT/ SHENNYIA SUNVLTISNOO 35 NV m..__n_O«E ] Z(._n av 0u .._..__I

100100°9107 ¥IBAN L5 G0

#133qs| "ON] mm&<_uomm< B NIAVYED) ‘LsAnd ” ASNLNG 3 AR AZY NOLONRIRIVE [0 =wliz HONOUHL HZ SESVHd NOISIAIdENS NOLONNRzY

4300 MY 470w BPIY.

B - 2OV 1d WvHNMOJ AR AZ NOLONRVYE
ey faned o0ty ose oot 05T 00T (% oot 0s*0 000 0m+0‘ [lo’s osta [elog-1 osty ooty og*e oote -4 o0tT o8t o0t 0.m+0 [2loe) ...nwmqn..i., oot~
0 duy sueid pasnadde aip o ddaa e UjEsas (4 610 UL MR 3940 ; B i - P - .8, P A.“. % x : - { 3
iy ey LT T we tbsei s

7 .Sc e iseoz o]
(852) G2 B2 NN
e o0s

~ SEE - -

L (29T 0
z
¥

|

}o«Too-?v_qw =)

&

SHONTIC T

ax sy Grany

VT =NIS !

T iweder sATE.

|
o!
D)
o
: R R S
i ! H v
T SR ; ;
H -3 H
i i,\\ Y |
L 13 h
] = L, ¥ R .
t )
\‘ ===
[ R -
2
&
i
|
If
i
i
i
1
I
Qi
R
oy

iy |
— !
. 1
T eee [ 00<
sy P = )
o B % | S
R 1 I
N S [
A sl — HLEON— i
pb ¥ 1ltiE UNESSVE FOVNIVE R0,5 VARG o
= L —NOYiGE O NN ) G000 orERiE v

f e y SN N L,
— e TR \ VNG 7,

Er Ty R j 1L Moy 8GN 5 /./ ,_ e/ i e
LS e L2 / | oz ) \ o L W N TN
, I . ) .Mvi./. 0 N A \ , 4 M. v N R .
s ) I , Vel ﬁ/.mw ! /,,/J.y, W/./,,,. \ .83/.., = NS o
e S ; ST L W W b
Sy AR BTN m,/ b

LN NS Al — G MO AN

s_. \

T 63@53,&.}‘».5 bl

- —— e
O ZMEE T # Wusad Jusetrsmdog saeyInn Hiand \BRTEN Jo A% -
= @ EEEEM  lobapury sapiin JIng 2000 3t o Suomeayaads pue —
WA B, e e Dafoid 5i41 Joj past spotgLITl UOIALSIO) -~ -
DG BRI T 8 ENemavosuNo &
WA s g ———————— = # UL JusNIRdOO SIHTN AT UBRrwY Jo A1)
SEMCAERIES . Ty ek Sl 1A 13 41 SRS P
BAWAZYS T aee 1o3(03d 51 404 P spoIALE o)
S e ) By it ek
el e saem

VADHAAV DNILLIWNAA ZLIS HDITTVE 30 ALD




L RN RO DY BT T £ N P T 22 S i

SUFANIONE / SHOAZAUNS / SYINDISIA J4VISANV / SUINNVIA SLNVLINSNOD ESNANVT

#1335 | "ONJ 'SELVIOOSSY B NIAVYEY) ‘LSAd IZ HONOBHL HZ S38VHd NOISIAIdENns zokmz_ﬁ

200 w3y sarem Ay TR 49w 16amandaq SRIRN S0 S 10 A

DUE febiainu o4 L Uend 5141 UO UMOYS FE WISAS 13MIS Hand
%43 9 JO UOISuSIX? PUE GO[AULD) Iy 03 ST
_ & 1] SHLIST 1535 DES S0TTM.

TVAOUddV INILLINHAd ZLIS HOIATVH 40 ALID

laL1©=-9aL 1M

cZL e+ pTLN

JOG = i
) " o o X e N SN2 SR FY AT

foaviddy | | (I8 : o S e A0S S T o T i O g

o oy penssy i o sorsss iy SRR W SRS I oo

o o
T e stEedsq son A WA 10 A1) RO VR T | e B ST S S L
om Ray do Bpa- EVEEM ey sapiin oana 344 9110 SUOREIUDs pid e BN S AT wOHS S | | e s b
MY )40 |[¥y 8 133f0ud st INUGIE_ NOLYAYINE ANY 30 SNNNSZS s £ BN s g e e B Yy
L “ueid i BOR SAUNN SALEXT T 20 NOUYIX SR = ——
% & e 4 s o = s

IR e et
donn STIT3 e oy !nn._n!«_!!wm R U s A
i 2 Doir e
SpavpusLS 243 0 Uetoyiod [ ol6ud s 107 oS SRy UOHPIELG) SUOLIVEUNGD NOUNZLEY

'L ANOd Ol Waole

! 4 4 + +
ooT og*l Dm.'— os*C ocro Qm.ov [zo} oot 0st0 00_.0 osto o5t oers o oore o5z folosi4 oSt oot 080 o0ot0 ogto-
—m.vﬂ ' : | ezt - Pl
} P
i | , )
| 1 f 02552 =100]
i = £€£'56Z =(SOUNI
w ove 8¥°042=4O
m ' b ! 122} BFEET IO N
=t nanmNnFer»ﬂon.bﬁ\h( e e e e BOEFENINN
H SN AN,
| 66T s -

2-9.9T VA0S
3NN3AY WYHONITING

i

99T V208
ARG AZX NOLONIHEYE

= =

,N./,,/ | ose ,,_..

B9IT AVEOS




RO IS WD e 3D NI DTN L0t 30 | v - 6iad? WIAS i B2, SSE T, <) NPV GIOEIDE WK S0 R 10 I\ e AR LOTN £EEEONtL B S 13 V0 BRI DL 6.y WIATS 0 zerar £

BT B LT E e R T L T e T L T TL e T Ll
W SRHD o O/ WO SAROUN Y IA 3 BIZT TL/ 616 774" 00E0 182 /616 S04 60902 YN "B PO 9405 3440 shdare) 3 - £00E.

] L BoAL YNTOZVD HLION NO™Ear O™ NCONUZVE 0=0 'A8 CROGNCCT|
SYFANIONA / SHOAZAUNS / SHINDISIA 2AVISANY'T / SYINNVIA SLNV.LINSNOD 357 GNV'E ml__louu uz< Z‘\l_ﬂ ; = = o A M

# 15305 | ONJ ‘SALVIDOSSY B NIAVYY)) ‘LSdidd s TIVHLNO FILVMNINZOLS 2 5 |IZ HONOZHL HE S38VHd NOISIAIENS NOLONI

IO WA SO IR \ . TV s o S A oy s Gy i e L
et || T s s il g | | SEreEaciow' 5201\ s T 2%
ponssy || 02 - r:

Ei o 4 i
Jom Auy w3 i 113 4. u R g ey b i L
Pl i ' 3 aiaiAe onand

S, 9 Nt . hemn oot

OG = .1 piepuns oud
PUE (eI 3L
— e |70
L) 99| 1VAOUJAV DNILLIWYAA ALIS HOIFTVY 40 ALD
- -
alLIM=gzZL M bELI®~OVLI©® evLIio=TPL N eeLl®=a9ZL M
coe  ovr  oor  oe  oon omo oo oo o oon oo o000 oso orz 0¥l ool oo 000 OF0"  ose 00t 05T 00T OF1  00N 080 000 050
[ : i ost eozz=1no| [o]14
- - o
- 197= @I erreTra ANy feru), N0 AN = b T
Wi (i e 7
S e
S I i Ry

09T o L !

S SO AN

: WS SN

LI e IR L BS Spliaey £ewz=dol EIOiCEC

alL? N YEE. 8L 59z | Y [ i
...n.u _ It wﬂww.w_theun Bosre
.. b Yolo > N . L. ¥ESOdam
ONLENT
50 e oz | ¢ JN %950 B 95°cq
-4 T ] /A S
SLT e
L ST-GEIE |
zysiz=do] - ObT 0ObZ | ' 0ogT | ! v.” = |
| _ 5€292 =110 v - T : i : ”
ot I L .=y N | e ) — . S
L™ ed alT - s
| i P )
e ,.r\\l]ui o -t ... |
-89 AVaSY
FARAT AZH NOLONRRVE
99T AV AT NSy G99T AVaSy - =
NOLON 3NNZAY WYHONITING IANSAY WYHONITING / I: ut i

N\ e mo AN -7/ i
@ _/:m_ : / 5 m
. 1 f\ / ¥ /
] , Vo .
s / i
L




V) BOVO-D W L/ WALV WS BR21-282 / 616 T2 00ED 182 / 61630044 60922 YN \APIEY ¥ i aap( mandusor - S0BE.

PIGNBAOD WG L2 LICTGL e Sa\BendE 43 DY J0L IO v TG

3IMG 1207 e IO T s - ES 0T IR EEIN LTGT T O\ £ - 5.NF0a07 5 38 v 000 STCT T T, WOAR WS DE0C1DE N £ 20+ SINDoD 030 S BE O S0 26 13-V S £ DNRID PR e IZC0 T ENEACS NSNS L2 nz

#133+5| "ON] ‘SALVIDOSSY 2 NIAVY) ‘LSAN ]

/ / BdYDSANYT/ SHINNYTd SINVLINSNOD 35N ANV I_ mJ—lou& QZ( ZSQ

s esi s gncd e e ey 5

[YN"ORv2 HIAON NOT(163Z

0o S SR A P B 04 5 5 D

271 NOSNERVE 0=C 'AB CIIOENCas|

TIVELNO AFLVMNNEOLS S
O
1934340 maraay avem gey i JHand yiapng jo Ay e g uvaac) | ez o vres,
— T raosddy iuswdorassq s 10 AID e o || S R P e e Y]
g 3 N e Y B e
eaciddn 11e4s 259j0ud $143 oy paEn spowIaW SUGLMLIU0) PUS (I 3 “usid
5 Auy ‘pans s (Haey, NAGHE _ON Sty T v . e 3 3 £ e A
2500 payps oq 10w Aew [#ACIAGE UG S £31) 3K 1k (0 10 103 PEONL || o o e by A e eae | [T AT
: : T g ooy womp ey || SRR CERSE | |7 TSR
Ham Auy susrd panoadde au) jo Adoa € uees 4 KD 341 "Ma[3q 12210 AUOQPUSE SNTRN uﬁ_.._.m s, %%E::éz&..ﬂ O ot e 8 KBt 4 7Y S
e i i s i s ot
UL R EAUON> ponEs; Futaq 5 [ercsdie sy [eAAY HGOUNT | | 1 aun 10 Uolsuanca puB LOROSUGS D) 01 SHLSHICS SN 10 13 Ly B e o o \m\.r
&S R0 onand iered so 1) SROLIVRUND NN
HOOGPUSH £ NN S AN ) 10 SUONEIYLIdE pue
05 7,1 ey 233fud 3

wopniauo)

-aeyd 3 o
+A11) 941 10 UISUAXS PUE HOL>AULIG) 2u) 0 STUSFUSS YBLaIEY Jo Al
1) SULIad $omP3 PUE STIEM
o5 oo

7 TYAONddV DNLLLIWN3L BLIS HDIZTVY 40 ALD

aoLI©-0oOlL 1D

ooty os*e oore og*T oot os*l [elou o0gt0 00t0  0gtO~

(o2} avat rOAN
(bOLIOTEEN AN ¢

By

ﬁ. Lenez=doy|

oLz

SMSXS
‘ 500
aLT SLT -
| : _
ogz B Qaﬂlm
s =
- L. o e e B ot L e ol ek
-89 AVI0S

mna




. T e o —— e e P e ST — -
LD NN/ / H4VSONY/ SHERNYTA SINVLINSNOD 311 QNYT FH0Ud ANV NV 1d S e
[ wmor —— an] SvH:
#133+5| ‘ONJ SHLVIDOSSY B NIAVY)) ‘LSHRId — TIVHLN0 FILYMNNEOLS o =={IC HONOBHL HZ SBEVHA NOIBIAIdBNS NOLeNR:
B0 MY ST WY [rw— TONIaTa N~
o TEE || cemediiedones || otemen
sadce | | BT iy | | oo R = :
._s.ﬂ u e puv
‘om Ay suerd pancicdde 0 4000 TS {10 10 UL WA 390 I & by it b4
ae..in ey go A aloic 1 1) paen 5pONIRN) LOBSAEUE)
s y¥
a0 TESHS ¥ IUSd Isounedag Ntand Theren jo 1

5 bajerd
i 37
54812 93 ;0 UOLSUDIXa PUP U
RE

HOOQUT}} S2IR) HIGRg 8,43 31 0 TOREIYISSGs pur

TVAOUJJY ONLLLIWYAG LIS HOMETVY 40 ALD

9vLI©-lsLl©

baL1©-TIL 1M

ot oot oo [eloale]

[e=u} oo\ 050 00*0  05*0- osrT coT
H

050"

‘J‘i
B 1

) R E
. T -
- -~ -0bT |
- 3avast |
=D
e -GbT |
9282 =100 R ]
15Z8Z<Ni| i
i 98'482=dO.
SbT RS A R B 4 -00e!
oo R H - [Ru— k_ - h ﬂ
oo _ N A |
QO‘_
/‘0 Yﬂlrw! m
HiZEON —
89T MA0S <-29T AvaElEr 9-89T V205
ANNIAY WYHONITING 2OVd WYHNMOQ fv
J 7 R, N

Ty

QzLM e+ ocLM

oot 050 o0t0 080"

gvLI©=-LIL M

oote

i T ' ; ; !

os*te oorT [ oot og*0 00*0  0&*Cr
i e

%m_‘,..r ) A2

= B

SO S ool [ NSSRSOON S

8-99T V210G
SNNZAV WYHONITING




B0 v 2 1 D B ST AN A AR O 0TS GNEeCD e S AT o0 G oS3 A b0 O FIGE ST D GaNRAZ3 ik Nl S T, T G M b £ EE5 S £ §CT e e K T .

TIVE1LN0 AFLVMWNEOLS

DT NOZONRRVE 20 'A9 CRAOSNOSS|

VTN D3O

= |IC HONOAHL HZ S38VHd NOISINIAENS NOLEONHEY'S

SN IO NS G oS- Si30D VA DN 2% BONTIA S AR NI e A0 OTOE S A RSE DECAGEY AT G - S WA SEAMIICEN 222 S5 scenr: = oo s 2oz
. 9621281 $16194° 0T 162 616 0N 6092 T 8106t ( {J
Lo SYAENIINE / SHOAAAUNS / SYANDISEA JAVISANVT / SUANNVT SLNVLTASNOD 350 ANV mJ—louu nz Z n
" L7 f
a1z3s| ON] ‘SALVIDOSSY B NIAVYE) ‘LSANJ
30010 MY e Ul
L ——s ki a3 SRy
s || O PemESRERT
fuy pomssy 1ro0 somow eaid pur - s e o,
50 s o2 ke o AL D SO 1 o e |47 8 4 0 1 oot s o e o G [T SOSHRINTE | [ SRR
f TITE M W US4 jusuniedaq sanian difand K314 Jo £ IS NOLYArSGIANY, 10 SeNIcN FRAS SIS mATe,
e 5 ] e o oan sty | Lo Renomn & s oot | | Sremgziinmes
=y e s T Y et e s 2
A “Biapey jo K 3ul e e
AD SUOLOVAINGD NOUNALLY
— 3 S g 658
] ‘SRR 341 03 WOJUCD I[P 001044 SIs 0§ PN SPOYEI WAL
PUE (Rl WL "R 1) UO LMoY §¥ slaks IHGOG
% 5,01 943 }0 UOLTUTIXa puR U 0.
TVACHAdV SNLLLIWHAJ 4115 ROETY 40 ALD

lgLI® e+ e9LIn

oot o0&+ oot ost0 [Zlege]

OS5+0~

gLT

o AN"

oez

6V'882 =1LNO|
59'162=d01|

A

AT '~ 8bT |

T N9 _
= - NS .
VISOZ =110 |24, ) pmagg i :
00¢ Taaeenl | Gy orpsening o0g |
riegtaor |
Ceravie - -
e i .
L T T ] soel
i

G697 AVIOS
20Vd WYHNAMOQ

Aoy LS eoubdiuzg

S+ 00 0s*0 (24

e S PR

| 6Le o
ey Sy B R |

oz i
SIS Pl NI S
sgz ¢ i

Fo ok 2 1

-ObZ :

; SR S
Skt : i

| I I s !

+ .

- — AIVTIASHAvd
—— =
~ 5" L - e it
% = : —
i E et
) o (S
ﬁ h_ o | N
- = =
24 |
d ls] Zee ]
eze  [*gx7 =N e
= N
2 f
= L e I

89T MRSy
AR A NOLONRRRVE

QSN —

goLO-pILI© soLI©-glL1©

000 OS*Or oo0*T osrl oot 05*0  00'0 080"
Cle Y o o W e

e i)

76952 =100k
SE'09Z={riIN  (;
-9024200)

60°£92=dOL)

2-89Z VA0S
1AN020 WyHONITING

St meer
SARIA AT NOLONRRIVE




Sk o0 TR i G001 i YoM VY VLS WD N W (W OO L DAL 105 06 BT O

o, (e T Tr ] 1% HNOLLDAS Z Hd NOLONIINVE
1/ SUANNVIA SLNVLTNSNOD 350 ONVT
- — gz0z/sz/L aiva
18V | DN ‘SALVIDOSS Y %9 NIAVY 0)'LSAN] S dVIW INIOd i i
S
[ =
10 REEVEL LOFONOR0T GEOSLIN  EERL W 606202 RIGBSZG0ZE SEALLIEIL T650L \ -

HAM 815962 SR0'I0GHZE SLVGOLLISL TESTL SLERGTT GESUSIERY ESIESCELL SESOL P

M TBT6L TSEEOUNT EVOGELLIOL TESRL 90 (910 SHEREOTT (O GIELSL 0BSOL -

WA TOS'SEL EOCBIGHOET GYSLTLLIOL OESRL €0 LSTUSLL LS HMUOET PIESLLITOL GESOL ~ <

SLIBLLHL OLGBRE  GYECWLLISL 6T
9D CEBE'SGL GIIBLGALL WIEEELLINL WU

S FILSS6E ESEB0GNTZ EE6TEULIIL LTL

83 L0665 TS ULIT vIWDSBIIL 9LITL

93 L8682 LZI0GER0LL ZLLETEISL STOUL

A 9962482 SLTSIOROZT GSEBRBIIL VISTL
SLISTTLBT ELUONOBIRE EOORRISL €798

WM TSER'99Z AZTIONEE  Y9BE0GSTL TLRL
WM 65639 GSY'OT0GOTT EVETGRIOL  TZ9UL
WM BSOERZ SIE'STOROZT ZTOP'OGRTIL 0TS

19 2LS6BL KRN INITHEIOL 619LL

O 9SILBT OLTECH0CL SWETEAIIL FI9L

10 ERYE'VEZ 65 BOGHOZZ SEEGULEIN L19Z

) T08V'E6T 27906027 L60SOEBTAL 919X

82 P6IVTRL SOSEVOGOL STESTOIOL SIOLL
SLUWTR SIOBDBOLL STIOSSTN. 4192

M (ZYBTRE E6TLSDE0ZZ OGST'BEIOL SI9LL
MW OURRIZ  BTB'SBOGOZZ TISGEGONIL ZISTL
SLSGIEBLT Z60'9BOGOLT BGSUOGROL VISXL

€3 BULLBT TEYS06RT LIOEOTTL  OIITL

@) 6VLBLT GEGOLOSIRY GGLEGTTN.  609LL
601G MM TYTGO SOEGONG0ZT GYLODLIZIL BORL
dOL WA ELLVTR T95°SL060Z BEOL'ESTZN. EOSTL
ONODED VIES'LE 6SY'LI0OTE GEI0BINTSL F09L
HN SY9L'BLE 99ESBOBOYT T(B'EEOCIL SOBEL
INOIED WSP'LLL SETGORTZ  (STRYONSL DOIRL
INOIFI GLEVIST TLESKOGOZL BOEZTOOIOL €652L
HOLH3 SELY'LHC OVZ'9060ZL LT LOGTYL 26L
WM L0ZE262 TRVOLTBOZE GZIOWELIOL SS2L

SO LVBIT6L SILSLIGIZ ELT6UCLIY VRSLL
M ZOLET6E 6SEVSTO0ZT ELERRLIAL €9S1L
) RZSSTR SERV0G0I LUTTBHLIAL TBSLL
INOD U 6104 PR ¥SE'SB0G0TT BOOGLORTSL T8SUL
INODED ZSE1'4B2 £ALOSG0C  TROETYBISE 0BSEL
INODB) €TZS'EI 163066802 ETITCEBIAL 6L52L
WV T9TSGE  GTE BTGBOZL FAOTULLIN TUSEL
ONODBD SESR'E6Z TOWSIRT  WLGT LI USHL
ONOD 8D SVEVFR? GBC'ELGBOZC TSEG'SSBIGL 19522
INODBI PLLOVE. 66T DIGR0IT 9SCOLBLISL SSSUL
Q) ESEINT IITINOT LSLENTIIL 00R0L

80 €7609¢ ZETGLVGOTE TSBZONIIL BESOL

€ TRYOT TIOIEE0T VRLT'SZETIL B6SL

WA ZTLT SBYGIER0IE SLITEETSL L650L

@ EBINSLT YA  TELLOSIZIL BIS0L
WA SYRY'SZ Z60TSTGOC TBIVZVZZOL LBSOL
SLIKO'SIE BGUERIEONT ISLUYHEIOL 9BSOL
SLTEY'LLL LTG0 GLUEHIIOL SO
HATOGHUT SCOGTISRT VORI ¥ES0L
@ ¥B6YLL TSEEXIGNE SEWINIIL EIOL
6099022 SDSEIB0RE BALRLZIZN. THSOL

e SRISPOLIIL T80
FBEISL  0BSOL
9ELSO9BI0L BLSOL
0 2TL52 YSTRILEOLT EIBTSS6IL LSO
10 LY9T'ST 6SUTSIG0RT TERLVSBISL LLSOL
10 EL06VLE GLWSISORT T96STSOTL LSOL
10 205T4E YTORIG0ET IMLEETIL SISOL
10 (652990 VOLVEEE0IT 9996'LVITSL WISOL
KIBSYS 192 SLESEEOTZ OROUVAIZL ELSOL
KIBSYS92 G090GEE0TZ 6960TET2L 2USOL
835546997 TIGVIVERE IIRVESIIH TLSOL
HN 9E0CB LETOVGOLE  SLVESIZL DLSOL
SLEDOIEIL BETONWTT SEOIVGIZIL 63SDL
SLMZEUT LIE19E602E

SLETTUT EO0TEEEIT FHIGEIGIN SO
W GOTEOLT BLETOEO0Z 19G'TRBISL V9SO
HN SITS'BZ OCTEZPG0ZT LSSLSIGIOL 950
SLYISVELL SYGOZVGOCZ LZORLIGIL 2950L
SLIORI'ISZ SL866V60ZZ SLLYEARIOL T9S0L
W S2ET8Z THYTYbS02E ZREEUEALAL 0950L
AMB6OT'0RZ TED'EVEOZT SBVOTIBIHL 6550L
H3BLOC'ERT BETVSYGOLL VSCTEISIL S04
I T6EE'SLT S SONGOZT SOVOTOLOL 2SSO
BI 2610142 GOEVOMOZY GLOTTOIZRL 95SOL
) THE6' LELEVET (LIGOBTZH SSSOL
AW YELOO9T GBS YEVGORT TBZLBLLL ESSOC
WA 9TG'OT EEPEEVROZL LG'SELTIL TSSO
SUEUSE'SOL BOVLEVEQRZ STLULTZTIL TSSOL
AW 906SSIL BEVOSYBRZ ZIEOGEZZHL OSSDL
AW IBLS'SI EVSTSYE0Z2 SZ6TETZOL GYSOL
MAVE'SI  STZISYROZZ LGETVELIIL SYSOL
SLEOIVES BGO'BISEOZT TGEUTTL  LYSOL
M SS6EEI Z9VORSEIRT  LI95'90LC3L WSOL

dOL83 SETEEIL CRULSSEOZZ LTS VOLCSL SYSOL

SLIRVL GRELIECOE VTR 9L
8D EBOLVLZ EOVWOSEOZZ TLLUESETIL 650
AW G0BS'LLT T99TRE00L TSTE'ETIL €650

B [ N 7 B (L 7 [ N 3 G AN~ S 7

d018D (90E'EI SATGSE0IT BEVO'OETISL ¥SOL

AM OVZVEIL €66'SLSEOT 9T09LTZISL EVSOL
HNM LTPEST 66V'SISBNT LLIODERSL TVS0L

~
DU . 1920/ et -
S @) e [ -
Frae— @ pE— n A
o s e romomoss ° wk
WD »e Asvglom T . ~
esaan R 3 O3S ONa Qv i) e,

S Y HLYA anvuves

ANIOITI0BHAS

%
El
g

g

\
KEY DRIVE &

45RW 2£B-B

,
3 g

e

- — / ~ /) 2/ N o S\ /'
Lo 3 -/ J . 3 e e y 7




aavodin sull / “e8zi-TeL / /et6 o) 3- soBE 100'600-120T woglodd
/ 1/ SHENAVIS SINVLTRSNOD 351 GV /st o I8 H ZO—Fumm ¢ Hd ZOEOZEN:\m
28V | N[ ‘SELVIDOSSY 73 NAAVY 1) smm:mm dVH LNIOd o s
TISTATY | 0E=1 ATvos 0
e
HAM EWO66LZ TIEOVSS0ZZ EOBSHITSE 02026
WM TRIS'ERZ Z6ERIEOE 265 THINL GI0CE 0 =1
DTEL LIYTIRI600 WTHLISL  SIOL6 T TN
wsanss s S s ————
DYNOUT G2 SUESIIS 00T S o ° @ o =
WM IRITTLZ SIETRIB0RY ECRSEOETH EO0C6
UM SEUTRGIE SCTL TG
PSR ERIRET WOSINL G A ESSTBIZ TIVYGOBIIZ GGEINIOL  TIZIG
[ttt sk o R s THLINOD T8O SHTZIEOR TILSSZL  OLIIG Em— . 009/ 1M bt
WM GLIBTLT LOVESEG0LT GBOSSYECSL GGGT6 OCHo\ 985% L N GSIGLISORE JAGNCTANERY COLTD mowmcans ——— @) Jrs— "
0ETSERZZ TISEVELIL 6616 H.H”HMM wam--.“__..ﬁm Hwﬂ“ NM Dussavm e N .
snioev sose: ww o e ] e [ - -
Sanist et n i GeE GELONOD EBLIVIL BSENSRT LUOVESITH SOXN6 uma " o -
AW ETTR TR (YSEVEISL TS VYL G000 2T SGESIS0E  SOLLLTEZSL WOLTh wovsan s -9 oo e — ol
ik £ess T NETCTooice (ke ior SELONOD TS24 WODISCEIRE 66T 0216 L csmvem ovwrve
AN SSISTRY GSGGLYGOCT V9GP LVBTIL GHGT6 A SEXTLE SHIRENE) ScvIETL TR ANZOT) TORNAS
GOLHI OLE9S6L T96'STA0TL BLZGEOLISL BYSTS SIONCONRDL: S EArT o iSeEh RO D
A Eatat TGRcieis BESEIERSE et VIMA SOE(T SIS0 EGTTEZSL 66116
SZHAXE SOL06LT 696TZVG0T EONSTI EL2T6 RN O Slni TeonStow (L
06 51000 1B SLE [So eunct) ‘Sslmeras Sire VILINOD 6VBSSOZ VISTIVGZZ LLOBZVIISL L6116

TSLINDD LGLEB. LERTSOOET LUSTRISL TLZI6 SOLINOD TR09'SL SEULVGOTT - VORKOSIISL 96116
2529M0D CHIFMC LLIROGE CBce0RTL Ui OELONOD SSIZRLZ SEVIORGNZ TSWOTIRTL I6TTS
£8ONOD 96’687 JEREIBOZE EZOZOISIOL BOZT6 GZLONOD EETY'SLZ LDDBHIGRY LST'ESEISL 16116
ESLINGD SELU'IE SKLO0GT  IWSTOSLISL 816 SU6ISIG0LL §ISTU6G1SL 06LIG
WUS0A BNY'IEL GEVSIGNL GSIOELIN  LFI6 USELARE ER0LTO9L, OR1TS
o iveI T I e S22 MO0 I0TLZ %HHM MNNN MM
e T i e
00 BENTSE VORCHLEONE SIBSSLISL €16 E2LINOD BIOVBSE SETRTCLL  TLK LYK SHIIG

P e Vavey s ity it 224IM0D T4 BLOBSEROR ERBEICH BUIE
TSLINOD STOTYGZ VEV'SEE0LZ GOTY'TSLISL TS VELINGD WRT ERYEILGRL ELTEIN  EWTIE
65LIN0D TIC'VEL EOGBRL E6¥O'0GLISL EVET6 0D BETSIT BITLEORT IWWELGESL BLITE
EHN SE2E'SEL Z6YTGROZL VISEELISL 216 QILONOD 6IB660Z WIS ESHNZ LSTESLOZIL L9TI
3t 300 s | 2 SRR N OSTSOLLIN. SvEiE GOLINOD SE% 1L SI9 YSSAOZZ VLSTSUESL 99T
£SLINOD GOCER EO0'GREITT SOLTOVEISL OHT6 BNLSO8 SWSYIT 20VSHSE0T SUTORTH SITG
95LINOO CORE 68 IUBOLGAZL BELGSSHISY 6ELL6
ECHN BTELRE BSEVIONOZE LGSLBLESL BETIE
AW GBLOBT LYITIONZ STSOOEMSL LS216 200 T iR S isin

AW LSLSRZ GH'SI0G0LE TEETTGRSL 9ELNS phfit oot nmmgﬁh Lidid

N LSELTR. BSTUSWORT VG EERSL 65116

MM TR06EIT BIOBLSEORL 6L65'LLTTIL VITLE _
£0LNOD SSS6T9L 6BTSSG0LL  VAVOEZZOL  E9TI6
BOLONOD £BETZ9C 9SU'LSSE0ZZ EOEEWOZ29( 29116

AWM 90'9BT TSZSTOG0ZZ OFT'OGANOL  SETI6.
69211 569162 CBV'VEOGOLT TVGE'SIBISL VEZIE
6vLINOD 929702 RWL'I0G0TZ STELTEGIOL EETIG
SYLINOD ESTRZ  TOYEWGOIZ TG 09I ZEL16
TN TSRTRZ  TESLSOGOZT VRLIBKEISL TECTS
TEWN 9I6BLE LSLSH0GOTE SILEEGOLL 06
SILONDD TUI9'LLT B6Z60602Z  YRIY'DLTH 62216
¥9LONOD 6500 LLT TITLOGONT LIVRLONEHL 82216
dOLHY ITE'TBL SHE'OBOT TSSHESIZH. L2716
TVLONDD SOSCUE WOSEISOZ SOSBLITL 92216

AW EI9S SCETSYOZ SEVIEZZAL  BSUT6
AMGEOSSOT LVEOSYEOZT WOLSEZZIL LSTI6
BT L9297 TYEGEYEOZE TRESIZEOL 9STT6
A 000152 BHSVERGOZZ LLIZIEISL YSTI6
SLLONDD Z6O8SOT Z0VSEVGIRT YOGL'BLIZSL ESIT6
ITLONGD 6L (Z6SETE LTS ISTI6
2N TR0 SSYION0CL SLYTSIZL  ISUI6
TELINOD SYEYGOT ZEGOVGIT TERSOOLISL OSTTS
TN TEZUT  LGOTREGOR SISTOLIESL 6T
EELONOD 6RVZ'VLZ LIBTOPOT GIGEGODISL BVIL6
VELONOD WOVZ  ISSELEEORT STLLIO0ZIL LITE
L 662 LEVIBCOTT CLOTEEISL 0116
ELHN 290061 ESTIZVGOLL TEYLSIGIAL SHIIG
03 EOIBOLZ SIIGON  ISLECHITEL PIIIG e Tpatic il st
0069V LT BT VEELSLIL  ENEIE

Toa AT 13vd . AISOoN FId TR Ve THON 71

00 ZDSTLZ SETSEGORL  LSEZIVELH.
00 YOI9'TLZ LV6'6OE6OTT FOOE'EIRTI.
00 SWE'UZ EFEGLZGIL SSYSESELIL 9IS

0007 =, I dYWALINDIA |




RESOLUTION 2025-02
ACCEPTING ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR BARRINTON PHASE 2-H&I

WHEREAS, DFC Barrington, LLC the developers of Barrington Phase 2 H&I requests the Town
of Zebulon assume ownership and maintenance of the roadway and storm drainage infrastructure
within the public right-of-way or dedicated easements of Barrington Phase 2H&I consisting of
1,653 linear feet (LF) of drainage infrastructure, and 1,612 LF of roadway:

e 199 LF of Downham Place
1,037 LF of Dullingham Avenue
376 LF of Barrington Key Drive

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has inspected said infrastructure; and
WHEREAS, DFC Barrington, LLC has completed all punch list tasks; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has received all required documentation needed for Dedication
and Warranty; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has received a Subdivision Bond from Eular Hermes North
America Insurance Company for completion of final asphalt roadway overlay, five-foot sidewalk,
SCM conversion, access ramps, signage, striping, and asphalt and concrete repair and etc; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon may accept an offer of dedication of streets, sidewalks, curb
and gutter, and storm drainage by resolution of the Board of Commissioners per the Town of
Zebulon Uniform Development Ordinance section 6.10.4.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of
Zebulon accepts dedication of the roadway, and storm drainage.

Adopted this 9th day of September 2024.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC - Town Clerk

74



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-03
NORTH CAROLINA BARRINGTON PHASE 3B
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Topic: Resolution 2025-03 — Barrington Phase 3B Infrastructure Acceptance

Speaker: Chris D. Ray, Public Works Director (if pulled from Consent)
From: Chris D. Ray, Public Works Director

Prepared by: Joseph Collins, Public Works Construction Closeout Coordinator
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:

The Board of Commissioners will consider accepting roadway and storm-drainage
infrastructure constructed with Barrington Phase 3B for ownership and maintenance by
the Town of Zebulon.

Background:

The Town of Zebulon follows a practice where the Board considers acceptance (i.e.,
ownership and maintenance) of roadway and storm drain infrastructure installed in new
subdivisions. In advance of this consideration, Staff determines whether the infrastructure
complies and meets the conditions of permits and Town standards.

DFC Barrington, LLC has completed the construction of roadway and stormwater
infrastructure in Barrington Phase 3B. Barrington Phase 3B will include 26 Single Family
lots (with a total of 837 lots for all phases). The plat was recorded with the Wake County
Registrar of Deeds on August 15, 2024 (BM 2024, Page 01633). Staff and third-party
inspectors/engineers have certified all completed work meets or exceeds Town standards
and requirements, and City of Raleigh Utility Standards.

Discussion:

The Board must accept the dedication of streets, curb and gutter, street signage, and
storm drainage for ownership and maintenance if the dedicated work is consistent with
the UDO and complies with the latest version of Town standards.

Policy Analysis:

The infrastructure was installed per Special Use Permit 2017-01. The infrastructure
complies with the latest version of the “Town of Zebulon Street & Storm Drainage
Standards and Specifications” and is consistent with the Town of Zebulon Uniform
Development Ordinance section 6.10.4 for dedication of roadways.

Infrastructure Amount and Value
Barrington Phase 3B will dedicate one (1) street totaling 825’ LF linear feet (~.15 miles),
and 698 linear foot (~ .13 miles) of storm drainage valued at $129,033.53.

The infrastructure will be added to the Town’s Capital assets (re. Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report). Upon acceptance, the Town will own and maintain 40.94 miles of street
and 31.54 miles of stormwater pipe.

75



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-03
BARRINGTON PHASE 3B
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Maintenance Cost

In addition to Staff's annual inspection and cleaning efforts, the Town of Zebulon annually
contracts the cleaning of approximately 10% (3.1-miles) of the Town'’s stormwater system
(FY '25 Budget $40,000). This work is done to meet one component of the “Pollution
Prevention and Good Housekeeping” objectives of the Town'’s permit (National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System # NCS000557) with the NC Department of Environmental
Quality (the permit regulating how the Town operates its stormwater system). The
acceptance of Barrington 3B increases the storm drain network by less than 1%

Streets are designed to have a useful life of 20 years; therefore, the Town needs to repave
approximately 2 miles of street annually estimated at $440,000. The acceptance of
Barrington 3B increases the street network by less than 1%

Revenue Streams
Maintenance costs for street paving are supported by the following dedicated revenues:

a) “Powell Bill” (gas tax) ~ $ 239,000 (Zebulon’s share of this revenue collected by the
State has grown proportionally with increasing population and street mileage).

b) Vehicle Tag Fee ~ $205,000 (this revenue will grow as new residents register their
vehicles within the Town’s limits).

There are no dedicated revenue sources to support stormwater maintenance (0.7¢ on the
property tax rate is dedicated toward stormwater capital improvements). Staff is reviewing
options for the Board to consider a stormwater fee for FY 2026.

Warranty and Insurance

The Town received a one-year warranty on all the dedicated assets. Staff will conduct an
11-month warranty inspection prior to the final overlay to ensure any issues or failures
are repaired prior to the final asphalt overlay by the developer.

The Town received a Subdivision Bond # US005405 in the amount of $173,842.39 from
Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company to ensure the final completion of
outstanding items (e.g., final asphalt overlay, striping, signage, sidewalks, SCM
conversion, landscaping etc.). The final completion of these items are intentionally
delayed to minimize the damage that may occur as individual lots are constructed. The
Site Improvement Performance Bond is automatically renewed or revised annually to
reflect items completed. The Site Improvement Performance Bond remains active until all
items have been completed. All inspection and development fees of $120,405.87 were
collected from the developer.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2025-03 to accept Barrington 3B roadway
and storm drainage infrastructure, warranty, and site improvements bond.

76



STAFF REPORT

ZEBULON RESOLUTION 2025-03

NORTH CAROLINA

BARRINGTON PHASE 3B
ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE ACCEPTANCE
SEPTEMBER 9, 2024

Attachments:
1. Closeout Documents

Engineer certification of roadway lengths and dedicated infrastructure
values

Engineer Certification for Roadways and Stormwater (Also see as-built for
certification)

Engineering Estimate for Letter of Credit/Bond

Subdivision Bond — Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company
Developer warranty/guaranty— Stormwater/Roadway

Developer warranty/guaranty — water and sewer

Third party engineering reports for sub-grade, stone, and asphalt
Engineering certification — Water and sewer

Developer — Release of Lien

Contractor — Release of Lien

Notice of conditional acceptance — City of Raleigh

Proof of payment for streetlights

Proof of payment for Town Inspections and fees

2. As-Built Drawings
3. Resolution 2025-03

7



BARZTNGTOR DB H|

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC. \1*
6

LAND USE CONSULTANTS /“

June 4, 2024 &;y"

Mr. Chns Ray, Director

Town of Zebulon Public Works Department
450 East Horton Street

Zebulon, NC 27597

Engineer’s Final Certification of Roadway Lengths
Barrington Subdivision 3 Tract B

I, Tomas F. Craven, as a duly registered Professional Engineer in the state of North Carolina,
Certify that Barmngton Subdivision 3, construction Tract B includes a total of 825 linear feet
of public streets according to the following breakdown per street.

No. Street Name Classification Public Length Right of Way Width

1 Hallingsfield Way Local Street Yes 825LF 50°

This certification is issued based upon the approved construction drawings, construction staking
and as built surveys provided by this office.

Wy,
T e ey
& 20 o< %
F Coann A

&
Thomas F. Craven, PE § 109 3
Priest, Craven & Associates, Inc. 5, z ;

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

78



Breesvad 3y ~ #2

A
PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC. ” «

LAND USE CONSULTANTS M
5

June 26, 2024 Fée Dedicarion Phase 3B-Cosi Estimate

DEDICATED INFRASTRUCTURE COST ESTIMATE

PROJICE: LENGINEERN.
Barrington Subdivision Phases 38 - 26 Lots Priest, Craven & Assucries. Incorporalud
Zebulon North Carolina 3803 B Conputer Drive, Sute 104

Rakyh North Carolina 27609
Lincar Footage of Streers Hallmgsfield Way - 825LF

OINER

DFC Barnngon 11.C

13000 Sawgrass Vilage Cwck Bulding 5 Suite 24
Pomte Vedra Beach FI. 32082

Onbehallof DFC Barrington. LLC, an cnginicer's opnon of cost & herein prowided for the total cost of the st mpiowenxnts for Barmngton Phasc 3B, that is to be
dedicated (o0 the Town of Zebudon Quanidics were taking from constnuction drawings produced by Priest Cravenand Associates. Inc Pricing was fisished by the Comtractor

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT EXTENDED

NO PRICE PRICE

DIVISION - STREET PAVING AND CURE AND GUTTER

1 CABC Stone under Asphah (8") 1868 SY SI19s $22,322 60

2 CABC Stone uder Curb (87) 1604 LF $210 $3.368 40

3 30" Concrete Curb and Gutter 1604 LF $i432 $22.969 28

4 First Lifl of Asphak Loca! Street 2868 SY $1130 $32.408 40

DIVISION 1] - SEDIMENTATION AND EROSION CONTRO

i No Bond [tem LS S000$

I No Bond liem ILS 000§

DUVISION U - CLEARING, GRUBBING ANI EARITHWORK 11OR STREETS

i No Bond ftem 1 LS S000S

DIVISION 11 - WATER MAINS AND SERVECES

1 No Bond ltem ILS 5000 'S

DIVISION | -SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES

I No Bond em [y $000 S

DIVISION V1 - STORM DRANAGE (FUBLIC ONLY)

) 15"RCP 428 1F $32.50 $13.910 00

2 18"RCP 198 LF $43 40 $8.593.20

2 24*RCP M7 LE 543 40 S1,171 80

3 Drairmpe Structures (15) ILS S1747700 $17.47700

4 Inet Castings Standard and Valky 11 EA $619 35 $6,812 85
DIFISION [ TOTAL $81.068 68
DIVISION If TOTAL 5000
DIVISION {11 TOTAL ' $0.00

eI,

DIVISION 11 10141 “CAR o""h% 5000
DIVISION ¥ TO1 AL, 4 5000
DIVISION VT TOTAL $47.964 85

‘ F@’ N TOTAL DIVISION I - V1 $129,033.53

Thomas F. Craven, P.E. Registration Number 10956
Priest, Craven & Associates, Inc.

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

Foshzcd sars e Froeds 20032007 60 ] RORREN G0 0s Plaps Paases 30 P 510023 BRedhomen Prese $08 dis 79



PrRRRINGTON BB R

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC. }ﬁ“

LAND USE CONSULTANTS

Aprl 23,2024 [ Phase 3B Cost Fshnwie q]

COST ESTIMATE FOR BOND

PROJC L, ENCINER S
Barrington Subdivision Phase 3B Prest. Craven & Assocales tcorporated
Zebubon. North Caralie 3803 B Conmputer Dine. Sute 104 w

Rakgh. North Carulima 27609
UINER
DFC Barrigggon. LLC
13000 Sawyrass Village Crck: Bugkding 5, Swte 24
Porte Vedra Beach FL 32082

io Whom It May Concern
The folowing © & cost opinion of the work and nateral required (0 conpleie e mstallanon of

sidewalks, {" asphah overlay and comon area landscapmy withm the above- mertioned project
T umt prees are based on the costs furmshed by the contvactor

HHEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT EXTENDED
NO PRICE PRICE
DIVISION 1~ PAVING AND ¢ ONRI: T
f $' Concrete Sidewalk 5500 St $4 86 $26 730 00
2 1*1-2 Asphak Owerlay 2058 §Y §599 $12,32742
3 Manhale Adjustments 7 EA $450.00 $3.150.00
4 Watervalve Adjustments 3FA $33000 $990.00
5 Handicap Ramps 2EA $1.558 75 $3,117.50
6 Stripping ILs $500 06 $900,00
DIVISION I - Landseuping
I Sheet Trees i8 EA $375 00 $6,750.00
DIVISION U1 - Stormwater Managenent und Eroswn Control
{ Seedng and Monthly Marterance 0.45 AC $1.67500 §753.75
2 Si Fencing Removal 1480 LF §275 $4.070.00
3 Stormwater Mamsgement Pond Comersion 118 $32,000.00 §32.000 00
) Stormwatee Maragemen Pond Landscaping 248 Each §4.00 $992 00
5 4' Chain Link Fence 477 LF SE200 $5,724.00
DIVISION IV - Alrseetlunvons
i Geotechnical Allowance at SCM I LS $1.25000 $1.250.00
2 Construction Inspection 14 DAY $920.00 $12.880 00
3 Constnction Staking at SCM LS §1.250.00 $1.250 00
DIVISION {101 41 $47.214 92
DHISION 11 TOTAT 56,750 00
IHVISION T TOL AL $43.539.75
DUVISION 1V TUTAT $15.380.00
TOUAL DUVISION T 11 $112.88467
CONSTRUCTION CP1 @ 10% X $11.288.47
DESIGN « CONSTRUCTION ADM @ 20% X $22,576.93
CONTING o), X §11,288.47
S CAR,
St ym (o)) ’5, $158,038 54
Q
j X Iin
3
= S
‘ ‘ F ST . Ng $173.842.39
C( D&D \ 3 *
%
*.0)
Thomas F Craven, PE '4,,/114 CRP‘ “\@
) i se, »
Priest Craven and Associates, Inc. mmummm

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288 80



SUBDIVISION BOND N\V@

Bond No.:_US005405 Principal Amount: $173.842.39 w

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we
DFC Barrington, LLC e
13000 Sawagrass Village Circle, Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32082

as Principal, and
Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company .~

800 Red Brook Boulgvard, Owings Mills, MD 21117 a MO
Corporation, as Surety, are held and finmly bound unto

Yown of Zebulon

7

as Obligee, in the penal sum of
One Hundred Seventy Three Thousand Eight Hundred Forty Two and 39/100

(Dollars) ($173,842.39 ), lawful money of the
United States of America, for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves,
our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

WHEREAS, _DFC Barington, LLC has agreed to construct in
Barrington, Phase 3B Subdivision, in Zebulon, NC the following
improvements:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said
Principal shall construct, or have constructed, the improvements herein described, and shall save
the Obligee harmless from any loss, cost or damage by reason of its failure to complete said work,
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect, and the
Surety, upon receipt of a resolution of the Obligee indicating that the improvements have not
been installed or completed, will complete the improvements or pay to the Obligee such amount
up to the Principal amount of this bond which will allow the Obligee to complete the improvements.
As part of the obligations secured hereby and in addition to the principal amount of the bond, there
shall be included costs, reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorneys fees, incurred by
Obligee, but these costs shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the penal sum of the bond.

It is expressly understood and agreed that this bond will continue until released by the Obligee
upon written agreement to the Principal.

Upon approval by the Obligee, this instrument may be proportionately reduced as the public
improvements are completed.

Signed, sealed and dated, this 24th day of May, 2024.

DEC Barrington, LLC Euler Hermes North America Insurance Campany
Principal Surety

By: A L—V’ By:@ﬁﬂu&
mes |, Moore, Attorney-in-Fact 81



STATE OF ILLINOIS

COUNTY OF DUPAGE}

On May 24, 2024, before me, Lisa Marotta, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, residing
therein, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared, James |. Moore known to me to be
Attorney-in-Fact of Euler Hermes North America Insurance Company the corporation described in and
that executed the within and foregoing instrument, and known to me to be the person who executed the
said instrument in behalf of the said corporation, and duly acknowledged to me that such corporation
executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the day and year stated
in this certificate above.

. )
My Commission Expires, February 7, 2026 (m %7\

Lisa Marotta, Notary Public

Commission No.946273

A 0 T T T

OFFICIAL SEAL
LISA MARDTTA
ROTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
My Cainmission Expires February 7, 2026

%

82

H



Erosuapn 38 FY

"~ Allianz

Allianz () Trade

EULER HERMES NORTH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY
800 Red Brook Boulevard # Owings Mills, Maryland 21117

The number of persons authorized by this
Power off Attorney is net mose than, 1

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRUESENTS: That EULER HERMLES NORTH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY (EULER HERMES), a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of Maryland, does hereby nominate. constitute, and appoint the person or persons
named below, each individually if more than one is named, its true and Iawful attorney-in-facl, for and in its name, place, and stead 10 exccute on
behalfof EULER HERMES, as surety, any and all bonds, undertakings, and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof;
provided that the liability of EULER HERMES ouv any such bond, undertaking, or contract of suretyship exceuted under this autharity shall not

exceed the limit stated below,

NAME James 1. Moore Appress 1411 Opus Place, Suite 450 LIMIT OF POWER

Downers Grove, IL 60515

$50,000,000,00
PRINCIPAL OBLIGEE

This Power of Attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney(s)-in-fact named above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, EULER HERMES has causcd these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate
officers and its corporate seal hereunder affixed this__Ist dayof ____November 2022 ,

e il Y Z

s ¥ = - - Y " S
James Daly, President and C12O-The Americas Nicholas P. Verna (1, Senior Vice President
and Regional Head of Surcty and
Guarantee, Americas

State of Maryland, County of Baltimore

Onthis  Ist  dayof  November ,20 22 , before me personally appeared Nicholas P. Ve H, to nte known, being duly sworn, deposes and
says that he resides in Southeastern, PA ; that he is Senior Vice President and Regional Head of Surety ind Guarantee, Anwericas of Euler Hermes
North America Insurance Company, the Company described herein and which executed the above instnanent; that he know the seal of EULER
JIERMES; that the scal aflixed 1o said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so aflixed by authority of the Board of Dircctors of EULER

HERMES; and that he signed his name thereto by like anthority.

Notary Publi
Notarial Seal This Commission Expires February 2, 2026
‘This Power of Attorney is granted by aulhority of the following resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of EULER HERMES

NORTIH AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY (Company) by unanimous consent on October 1, 2015.

RESOLVED: That the President, Executive Viee President, Senior Viee President, Vice President, Secretary, and Assistant Vice Scerctary, be ad
hereby arc authorized from time to time 1o appoint onc or more Attorneys-in-Fact 1o execute on behall of the company, as surety, and any and all
bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligation in the nature thereof; to proscribe their respective duties and all respective
limits of their avthority; and to revoke any such appointment at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER: ‘That the Company seal and signature of the aforesaid officrs and may be affixed by facsimile to any
Power of Attorncy given for the exceution of any bond, undertaking, contract of surctyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof,
such signaturc and scal when so used being hereby adopted by the Company as the origival signature of such officer and the
original scal of the Company, to be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and cffect as thought manually affixed.

CERTIFICATION
1, Nicholas P Va1, Senior Viee President and Regional Head of Surety & Guaramtee, Americas of LULER HERMES NORTH AMERICA
INSURANCE COMPANY, du hereby centily that the foregoing Power of Attorney and the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of October 1,
2015, have not been revoked and are now in Iull force and elfect.

Signed andl sealed this _24th  dayof _May .2024

gl [ Z

ST TR T :
Nicholas P. Verna 1), Senior Viee President and Regional
Head of Surety and Guarantee, Americas

Fuler Henaes Nath Ameried fsuamce Company md its affilisted debt coflection contpany are paet of the Alianz group aasd market theie puoducts amd senyices aving the *Altine. Trade' wademarh,

o 83




> +#5

TrerINaN OB

‘t_

DREAM FINDERS [ HOMES

i)

Official Home Builder of the PGA TOUR N‘

DFC Barrington, LLC
Jacksonville, FL 32256

DEVELOPERS GUARANTY 4§ &

RE: Barrington Phase 3B Street and Stormwater Infrastructure One Year Warranty
Dear Mr. Ray

DFC Barrington LLC guarantees and warrants that all roadways and storm sewer infrastructure
installed within Barrington 3B subdivision conforms with the Town of Zebulon requirements, and that
warranty remain in effect for a period of one year from the date of the acceptance of work. DFC
Barrington LLC hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hotd harmless the Town from and against all

costs, lost and damages, including attorney fees, arising from the failure of the work to conform to the
Towns standards.

We understand the One-year warranty shall begin once the Town has accepted the Streets and Storm

Sewer. The improvements have been installed per the approved construction plans and inspected by the
Town of Zebulon.

Pltease contact me if you have any concerns or questions.

Witness the following signature and seal this[ﬁ dayof _ Juae .20 29.

“a— £ Signature

Jeif Burrous
Director of Land Development
Dream Finders Homes, LLC

State of _ﬂL ~ __: County/City Of_LMé s

Subscribed and sworn to before me this /& day of :{ng_ 20 3¢

) VLT
My Commission Expires: ({//Qz_ /203 o “;“ R "2" ",
Z;‘WK%\J

ROTAR

2,
.,6

r,,

i My Comm. Exp. i
11/23/2024

‘““lllllllu'" ”

N\
'S

-

£

§
<&
$

H

.'-’

49"‘ gy n-um‘ e\

o un\‘! o
g

\\\‘

84

o



Pagasp o BB #

ﬁ{vx? :
DFC Barrington LLC w 4

W

12/15/2023

Mr. Michael Derby

City of Raleigh

Public Utilities Inspections Division
3324 Lake Woodard Drive
Raleigh, NC 27604

RE: Barrington Phases 3B Water and Sewer Improvements

One Year Warranty

Dear Mr. Derby,

On behalf of DFC Barrington LLC we hereby grant the City of Raleigh a one (1) year
warranty on all water and sewer improvements located within Phases 3B of the Barrington
Subdivision, Zebulon, NC.

We understand the One Year Warranty shall begin on the date of the issuance of the
Letter of Acceptance. These improvements were installed per the approved construction
drawings for Phases 3B of the Barrington Subdivision and inspected by the City of Raleigh Public
Utilities Department.

Please contact us immediately with any concerns or questions.

Respectfully,, -
v
P
=
Jonathan Massey
Land Development Manager — as POA

Dream Finders Homes

85



RELEASE OF LIEN e
uﬁ'; 4
PROIJECT: OWNER:
Barrington Phase 3B DFC Barrington LLC

WHEREAS THE UNDERSIGNED, as Owner of this project does hereby certify to the City of
Raleigh Public Utilities that all materials and labor utilized for the construction of the
infrastructure of Barrington Subdivision, Phase 3B have been paid in full for labor, services,

materials or equipment for the above project in the capacity as Owner.

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY GUARANTEE THE RELEASE OF ALL LIENS OR CLAIMS OR RIGHT
OF LIEN, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AGAINST THE PROJECT AS PROVIDED BY THE

UNDERSIGNED.
7 |
Signed: Z N

By: Jonathan Massey as POA
Title: Land Development Manager

Date: December 19, 2023

“\“thlu‘”
Gl 7
kah "Il

/
Shed R
‘.\ q& w‘.mmm /",
State of North Carolina § .-*":\OTA’?;—%\ %,
§= My Comm, Exp.‘s £
H £
3 §

N

County of Wake 08-29-2028  §

0,

\)
Countyi®
", W
"""mmu\“‘“‘

Name: Ke‘; !“ | 'V\‘\,ks

Subscribed and sworn before me this 19t day of December 2023

Notary Public:  Signed: @M_

My commission expires: D% - 7«4 /201%

86



November 15, 2023 ,ﬁv{
/l/

Mr. Jonathan Massey

Land Development Manager

Dream Finders Homes

7200 Falls of Neuse Road, Suite 202
Raleigh, NC 27615

Re:  Laboratory Testing for Asphalt Cores
Barrington Phase 3B
Trimat Project 23-1933-14

Mr. Massey,

Please find attached with this letter the test results for the 3 asphalt cores delivered to us on
November 8%, 2023, by Blythe Construction. These 6” diameter asphalt cores represented one
asphalt mix, an RS9.5C with JMF 18-1332-271. Once the cores were received, they were
prepared to be tested as per AASHTO T166 - Standard Method of Test for Bulk Specific Gravity
(Gmb) of Compacted Asphalt Mixtures Using Saturated Surface-Dry Specimens.

Testing was performed at our AASHTO Resource approved RTP laboratory during the month of
November 2023 and the results are presented on the attached test reports. The average thickness
and percent compaction for the cores were 2.14” and 93.6%, respectively. North Carolina
Department of Transportation (NCDOT) compaction requirements for RS$9.5C is 92%.

If you have any questions or if further information is needed, please let me know. Thank you for
allowing Trimat to work with your company on this project, and we hope that we can help you
again in the future,

Thank you.

Sincerely,

%ﬂ‘ Ll b
Christopher Bacchi, PE Abhilash Kusam

Trimat Materials Testing, Inc. Trimat Materials Testing, Inc.
Attachments

87



60LL2 DN "dLY '00% 23Ing "aany(] a[dueli],

88

“LMIOUIIS # UONBOYILL ) SUWIDN pajusd
\\,ﬂuj Jﬁ 4 S06¥1 wesnyf ysepyqy TURIIUYOa
%9°'€6 34y

98] WBYSAIY) - aYIA[ - 100NpolJ SHIBWIY

002 £°¢6 L9 8%v'2 8922 L'80€T G'LeET 1°L0E2 €32 € 94221

8L'1 1'€6 6’9 8%v'¢ 092°2 20601 T'Ev61 6°LZ61 681 14 99621

vL0 ¥'ve 9'¢G 82V'2 2638 29981 6'L1%C 1°01%3 0€2 1 96241

00LX(0-aiv-8) 3 (ogliv=a 2 g v
a0°0) (%8 >) uonoedwio) SpIoA % (100°0) (€0°0) # ojdwreg S qe]
uoigdaosqy o,
% wuwyy quy I9jem ass Aig ‘YSey
Jual[) :£g pajdureg 1L2-288T-81 AL D9'6SY  ‘uondiiosa( [eliasely
(VINH) 3Py dsy xyq joy Jo K1suaq pup &11apug) o1f1ads wnwyxopy [oonal00yf 6071, OLHSVY
00T » J /(@ - ) 128N $PLOA A1y % Jog sy Sutang snoutunpg Suyduns gL OLHSVV
001 X (3 / Q) :asn uolpoedwo] v, 104 saumxipy Juzang snowrungg uadQ pup asuaq parooduio) ui SProA A1y uadadg 6931 OLHSVV
20N suauoadg S Burs() saamxyy poydsy Xy 100 pawndutod fo puv Kiavdn fads ying 9911 OLHSVV
iSeduaIajay
SSIIPPV JUBI[)
£802/8/11 ‘pRAIaDaYy e - ay1i1g SOUIeN Judin)
€30%/6/11 :a%e( 159, 4g 9aseyd uojdurireqg PuweN joafoxg
€308/ST/TT :938(] jx0doy y1-8861-£3 #303loag
V POYIdI - 692.L/991.L OLHSVV
SAINIXIN jeyqdsy uad( pue asua(] pajoedwo)) ul SpIo A IV JuddIag/suswrdadg
£L1q-eoejang pajeinyeg Suis() seanIXIpy yeydsy Xy JO0H pajoedwo)) Jo £31aeis) oyroadg yng
oujg ,mﬁumoﬁ STeLI9)BIAl JewWlL ],
2%02/80 ipasiaey 10¢ LIALL



Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington Phase 3B cijent: Dream Finders Homes Date: 11/02/23

All locations should be considercd approximate and were net surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org Q
89



June 21, 2024

Jeff Burrous

Dream Finders Homes

7200 Falls of Neuse Road, Suite 202
Raleigh, NC 27615

Re:  Summary of Interior Roadways 4% }+ S Ustizxd °Z

Barrington Phase 3B
Zebulon, North Carolina A

TM Engineering #230978C

Dear Mr. Burrous:

TM Engineering, Inc. has provided construction materials testing services for Hallingsfield Way within
Phase 3B of the Barrington subdivision in Zebulon, North Carolina. These services included the

observation of soil subgrade and aggregate base course.

Subgrade conditions were evaluated by proofrolls and probing with a one-half inch diameter steel probe
rod. The contractor conducted repairs necessary to provide adequate stability in identified areas to
repair near surface issues. The aggregate base course was also evaluated by proofioll with no significant
movement observed during proofroll. Stone density tests were performed with a frequency of 1 test per 150
linear feet on the aggregate base course which produced results of 100% compaction at the test
locations. These conditions observed by proofrolls or testing are representative of the conditions at the
time and could be altered by many factors such as weather or construction traffic.

This letter provides a summary of observations documented in our field reports and is not a warranty. No
performance guarantee shall be assumed. In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction
and quality of work, adherence to the plans and specifications, and scheduling testing services. Only the
client or its designated representatives with written consent may use this document.

TM Engineering appreciates the opportunity to have provided our services on this project. Please contact us
if you should have questions regarding this information or if we may be of further assistance.

Thank you,
TM Engineering, Inc. (C3201)

Kiron Allen

Toby Mallik , P.E.
Project Manager

NC Registration No. 026472

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Courl | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org 90



B;‘Qmm N 3% ﬁ’?
@‘c.ma%c

Project Number: 230978C

%

&

2
£
C

FIELD REPORT

Project:Barrington BB Client: Dreamf'ndEIE Date; 104723

City:  Zebulon Forman; Brian Contractor; Kenneth West o

Temperature: 52 Weather Conditions: Sunny  Numberof Trips: 2

Personnel: Erik Notified Brian ) of Kenneth West __of'results

1* Trip Arrived: 9:002m _ Left: 11:30am 2" Trip Arrived; :00pm _ [eft: 4:00 pm

REMARKS
TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West grading crew was on site to conduct a proof roll of the subgrade of the last third (from approximately
Sta 5+50 to 8+50) of Hallingsfield Way for ABC stone. Proof roll was conducted with the city inspector present
and was done with a fully loaded dump truck and probed with a 1/2” steel probe rod by tech. There were several
small areas that were in need of repair where tech suggested cutting out 4 to 6 inches of material and replacing with
extra ABC stone. Contractor and city inspector agreed and contractor proceeded to make repairs.

There were two areas that needed more extensive repairs. Tech suggested cutting out 8 or more inches and placing
geo-grid for stability. Then fill with ABC stone to grade and then repeat the process with geo-grid over that and
then place ABC stone. Contractor and city inspector agreed and proceeded to make those repairs as well.

A second proof roll was preformed of the first two thirds of Hallingsfield Way from Sta 0+0 to Sta 5+50. Proof
roll was conducted with the city inspector present and was done with a fully loaded dump truck and probed with a

1/2" steel probe rod by tech. In the first third (Sta 0+0 to Sta 2+50) a few small areas that were in need of repair
where tech suggested cutting out 4 to 6 inches of material and replacing with extra ABC stone. Contractor and city

inspector agreed and contractor proceeded to make repairs.

The proof roll of the middle third (approximately Sta 2+50 to Sta 5+50) was found to be wet. The section had three
to four inches of soft material all along the top. Tech suggested removal of the three to four inches of material and
replacing it with dryer material from on site. Contractor and inspector agreed and contractor stated that they would
make the repairs before placement of ABC Stone.

Contractor asked tech to return the next day for documentation of roadway repairs.

Z‘z L2y

TME's presence on site is 10 perform specific servives limited 1o that scheduled by others based on the f our with our client.  Th is not acceplanice or
spproval of sitc activities  Test resuhs and inspections are representative of our obscrvations only while onsitc II that speclﬁc time and location ai ) vary al r locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ving progress of work in prog At no time wifl TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties

an the sife
b

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org



Project Number: 230978C

@ - Proof Roll

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barr ington 3B Client: Dream Finders Date: iSes

All Tocations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

7’92



Project Number:

@ - Proof Roll

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

10/17/23

Project: Barrington 3B client: Dream Finders Date:

i 1

STAY BACK 200 FEET

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www tmengineering.org

93



Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Bamngton 3B __ Client: D"eﬁ_m Finders Date; 101823
City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Contractor; Kenneth West
Temperature: 37 Weather Conditions: Partly Cloudy  Number of Trips: 1 v
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian of Kenneth West ~ ofresults
1" Trip Arrived: 9:00am Left: 11:00 am 2™ Trip Arrived: Left; 4:00 pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West grading crew was onsite to proof roll the middle third (from Sta 2+50 to 5+50) of Hallingsfield Way
after repairs were made from the suggestions the day before. The proof roll was conducted with the city inspector
present and was done with a fully loaded dump truck and probed with a 1/2” steel probe rod by tech. Several small
areas were found to be in need of repair and tech suggested cutting out 4 inches of material and replacing with extra
ABC stone. One area was suggested to have 6 inches of material removed, placement of geo-grid, and replacing
removed material with extra ABC stone. Both city inspector and contractor agreed and contractor will make repairs
before placing ABC stone as called for by plans.

TME's Ipresmce on sile is to perform specific services limited 1o that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our with our client. 15 1$ mﬁ acceplance  of
approval of site activiies  Test results and inspections arc representative of our observations only while onsitc at that specific lime and location and may vary at t locations. The
ﬁ'eql:uncy of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and praperly ¢ ing progress of work in progi At no time will TME be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties
on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

H o4



Project Number: 230978C

@ - Proof Roll

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Project: Barrington 3B Client: Dream Finders Date: 19’18/23

L

aTar BADK 500 FLET

All locations should be considercd approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

7 o



Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Barnngton 3B Client: Dream Fi_nders Date: 101923
City:  Zebulon Forman; Brian Contractor; Kenneth West
Temperature: 3¢ Weather Conditions: Sunny  Numberof Trips: 2
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian of Kenneth West  ofresults
1" Trip Arrived: 8:30am Left:_10:00 am 2™ Trip Arrived; 11:00am  Left; 3:00pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West grading crew was on site to complete the road widening of Old Bunn Road at the entrance to the
subdivision at Hallingsfield Way. This road widening will be constructed of 10 inches of ABC stone, then *4
inches of asphalt binder, and then 3 inches of asphalt topcoat. Tech probed the area with a 1/2” steel probe rod and
found two small places that were in need of repair. Contractor dug out these areas another 12 inches and filled with
extra ABC stone. Contractor then placed geo-grid over the areas and placed the remaining 0 inches of ABC stone.
All other areas were found to be of firm bearing with no abnormalities.

Kenneth West grading crew was onsite to proof roll the ABC stone for curb on Hallingsfield Way. The proof roll
was conducted with the city inspector present and was done with a fully loaded dump truck and probed with a 1/2”
steel probe rod by tech. Several small areas were found to be in need of repair. Tech suggested cutting out 4 to 6
inches in these small areas and replacing with new ABC stone. After replacement, wet and roll those areas again.
Contractor and city inspector agreed and contractor will make repairs before curb is installed. All other areas were
found to be of firm bearing with no abnormalities.

Pay

. ¥
. Qv”’( 2

Z

¢

@\

Signature:
TME's presence on site is to perform specific services limited 10 that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our ag with our client. Thi is not acceptance_or
approval of site activitics. ‘est results and inspections are representative of our obscrvations only while onsitc a1 shat specific time and location and Tay vary at locauons. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progress. At no time will TME be responsible for Safety iderations for other partics

on the site

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

o 96

v~

o



Project Number: 230978C

@ - Probed Area

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

10/19/23

Project: Barrington 3B Client: Dream Finders Date:

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 77513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

1 o7



Project Number:

@ - Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS
. . 10/19/23
Project: Barnngton 3B Client: Dream Finders Date:
{ { 3 N - WT

—il
i

{
!

B ALY Eree

(o=
tl
e

+ . ¥ ) ~ St — ——

)

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org A"U

% 98



Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT
Project: Barrington 3B _ Clien: Dream Finders py. 0202
City:  Zebulon Forman; Brian Contractor: Kenneth West
Temperature: 56 Weather Conditions: Sunny  Number of Trips: 1 .4
Personnel: Erik Notified Brian - __of Kenneth West of results
1* Trip Arrived: 7:302m Left; 2:00 pm 2" Trip Arrived: Left:
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by contractor.

Kenneth West contractors were conducting a proof roll of the front entrance of the subdivision for the roll curb area
of the DOT section of the entrance. Proof roll was conducted with a fully loaded water truck and tech also probed
with a 1/2” steel probe rod. All areas were found to be of firm bearing with no abnormalities.

Kenneth West was on site to pour approximately 1800 linear feet of concrete for curb along Hallingsfield. Way.
Tech took samples to perform on-site temperature, chase air indicator, and slump testing. Tech created 2 sets of 5
cylinders each and left on-site for over night curing.

/

oy
M.M

Signature: ﬂ /-)
TME's presence on site is to perform specific services limited (o that scheduled by others based on the

ding of our agi with our chen ort is nol acceplance o1
approval of site activities.  Test results and inspections arc represemative of our observations only while onsite al that specific time and location y vary er locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progress. At no time will TMF be responsible for Safety considéfations for other parties
on the site

TM Engineering, inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-7545 | www.tmengineering.org

4\99



Project Number: 230978C

CONCRETE FIELD REPORT

Project: Barrington 38

City:

Clien: Dréam Finders p; 10202

Zebulon

Temperature: 36
Material(s) Tested: [ ] Slab [] Foundation [ Wall [] Masonry [ Other: Curb

Personnel: @ ~ Notified %ﬂ -
Concrete Supplier: ST Wooten Specified Strength: 3,000 psi Specified Slump:E_ inches

Weather Conditions: Sumy

Arrived On-Site: /:30 am Left Site: 2:00 pm

Steel Reinforcement Installed Per Plans:

Number of Trips: 1

Gt Ke_n_n_e_th YVést ____ofresults

Concrete Strength on ticket: 3,000 psi

TEST DATA
Trk | Bt | Tt mkane | a0 | sumpe | e | S| Vs | M | e | Tt |l
3,192 | 08:15 | 51 1166020 9.00 09:10 1.5 4.00 | 140.96 0.00 82 5 1
3,165| 11:21 | 51 | 1166034 | 9.00 12215 | 1.8 | 4.00 | 14130 | 3.00 84 5 2
Daily Set No. | Sample Type [Specified Strength Detailed Location
1 Concrete 3,000 psi Barrington 3B Curb first 1000 feet
2 Concrete 3,000 psi Barvington 3B Curb second 1000 feet
psi
psi
psi
psi

I L

e
.«0’
Ml

The above report is the field rendition of the author only and subject to review

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919} 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

100




Project Number: 230978C

@ - Proof Roll
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

Ciien: Dream Finders  pae. 020%

Project: Bal’rington 3B
. 7 ) =

! Pt —=p .‘ \
~ S ) qr } Tl hec roe
& 1! CORZ (A TTO~—

s '
Feri AN . i Y /! i
/ 2T 151 ) o L /r /,’ “ ",3‘ %w%w
i\ e T AR ey
a o ,f}"{" .‘( . I/i

e .
b 32 SNt e 2 Sho &2 .

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

Ti1 Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org
“ 101



Project Number:

@- Curb
FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

10/20/23

project: Barrington 3B client: Dream Finders Date:

. }

Al locations should be considered approximate and werc not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org | ,L-

102



¥680-0 'ON 2Sud917 ~ 619/Z IN ‘ubiojey -- 80| 8}NS ‘WNOY uolBulliam 00ZE - *V'd “ouj ‘salbojouysa) oo

aimeublg

— W

uiws sy Aq pawioped bupse) yibuans

£202/2111 1 Qg Hoday

Aq paiwgng

UOLOW “Y [9BYIIN

P8Isa} 10 pepradsul swsp By 0) A0 8)Bja S)NISBL ISBY ] Wd U] SIBOJOLLDS ] 082 JO [BACIIAE UM ioud BYJ oYUM iy W) 1daoxe ‘peanpoidas 8q Jou [eys podes Sty

silew Aqo *Aeswiey [aine ‘ajepsani) piaeq lew Aalysy  uonnqsia

‘6€-0 WLSV Yim aouepiadoe u| pawopad sisa) yibuang

sejoN

yiBuans ubisap uey) ssa =,

€ oo'L 046°€ FAwAS 00¥ 0886y 8¢ €202/L4/L L 3
2 00t 098'€ 5ZL 00 8Ly'8Y 82 E20Z/LLILL a
€ 001 000 1520 00'v 8£Z°05 82 £202/L1L1 o)
g 004 066'€ 1521 00’y 80105 8z €20Z/LL/LL g
z 00'4 086'Z 152} 00’y 906°L€ L £202/42/0L v
adAy Joyoey (1sd) {cun) () (sa1) (sAep)
ainyoeid ‘HoD :umceuw ealy Jajaweiq peoT 0m< seq@isal 2109

ISHIBWY Pidi4

,000°} 184 quno g¢ Buiueg :juswade|d Jo UORIOT

AY0Li60  pajdueg WY G1:80 PaxiN awil

‘01 4H 000¢ :(sAep gz) yBussg peyloads 0209911 R 3 BIE Z6LE  ONYOMIL

6'0vL  :(2d)ybrap wun 06 :(£d) peon o sz 0] :uoneso jueld

:payioadg 00'¥ (%) Juaju0) ay 4028 ajdweg 4,95 4y :aimjesadwa) UBJ00M IS :13)|ddng aja43u0)

‘payloadg 0s'L :(u) dwnig :Aq pazuoyiny INL :Aq pajdweg

s)se |edisAyd 832 £202Z/£2/0L :qeT] uj paAtaday ajeq

uonjew.oju] pial4

000€ :Wbuang ubisaq ‘ON qof jual)

000€ :ON XIN V06904121 ‘ON qor

G/€0S ‘ON qen ON ‘uoingaz / uojbuliteg BLLILTP

€202/02/0} :ise9 sjeq ‘ou ‘Buussuibuzg w1 nualn

L 10| :ebeq s)insay 3sa] yjbuasg 2u)‘saibojouyro|o Dy

103



#680-0 "ON 2suadi7 -~ 519/Z ON ‘ybiajey -~ g0 8)ng ‘Unod uolBulflom 00Z< - “V'd “au) ‘saibojouysaoen

yjwsg suyD Aq pauuopad Buisay yibuaiig

aineubig €202/L1/1 1 81eQ poday Aq papiwang

. \I§ UOLION "M [3BYIIN

PB8isa) 40 pajaedsul suie) dY) 0} AJUO 8)8jos S)INSI 8SBY] Yo Ju} S8IBOIUYD81 089 JO [ercidde uanum 1oud ay) InoYIm ‘in} Lt }J8IXS ‘PeONPOIde) 8q jou [feys poda i)
AileW Aqoy 'Asswey [aine ‘ejepsaniy piaeq Niliew Asjysy uonnquisig

'8€-0 WLSY Ulm aoueplodoe ul pawiopad sisey Yibuaag :sajoN

ybuens ubisap uey} sse =,

104

Z 00'L 0eg'e LSCL 00’y 909'0% 82 €202/LMLL El
€ Q0't oov'e JAxA" 00’y 6LL'ey 8¢ €c0ciLLiLL a
4 00t ove'e L1921 00'v 6102y 8¢ €20C/LHLL S
4 00'L 0es'e LS'CL 00'¥ 0 vr 214 €202/LLILL a9
Z 00’1 0LLZ 15721 00'¥y 120'v€ L €202/.2/0} v
adAy Jojoey (1sd) (1) (u) (sap) (sAep)
a4njoead P iete] cum:a._uw ealy i9jaweiq peoT 0m< sjeqisel 803

1Sy ieway plotd

, 0001 PU028S Qind g¢ uoibulueqg :JUsWBEld JO UOIEI0T

Ad G121 pajdweg WY LZ:1L PaXIN awi]

:01 IH 000¢€ :(sAep gz) yibuess payidedg ¥€099L 1 #ieo1L G9lE  ONNOniL

vl :(od)uBram yun 06 (Ao} proTjo 2215 LS ‘uopeaoT juejd

‘payidadg o0'v (%) 3uaguon iy Jov8 a|dweg 409G Jiy aunjesadwia)] UBJOOM 1S iglpddng 8ja12u09

paydedsg SLL *(up) dwnig :Aq pezuoyiny INL :Aq pajdweg

sjsa} |edisAyg AD 0°6 01 PRpPY 'SiED 00'E 1ajepm £202/£2/0L qeT ul paajasay areq

uonew.ojuj pjai4

000¢ :yibuang ubiseg :ON qop JusliD

000€ :ON XIW V0690112l :ON qor

9/€£0S :oN qel ON ‘uojngaz / uojbulieg ;3oafoag

€202/0Z/0L ‘ised 8jeq ‘ou} ‘Bupesuibug Wi BRUETI)

L 0| :ebed s)insay }sa] yibuaag ) ‘saibojoupsj oDy N




Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT

Project: Barrington Phase 3B cjieny, Dream Finders Homes 1y, 105023

City: Zebulon  poppan: Brian Jacoby Contractor; Kenneth West o

Temperature: %4 Weather Conditions: Sunny  Number of Trips: 1 b4

Personnel: William Andre  Notified BrianJacoby ~  of Kenneth West of results

1* Trip Arrived: 8:00am ~ Left: 9:00am 2™ Trip Arrived: Left; 4:00 pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on-site as requested by contractor. Tech performed Electrical Density Gauge (EDG) testing on the
stone subgrade for roadway Hallingsfield Way. Al tests passed within +/-3% of optimum moisture and with 100%
compaction.

AL~
VSIS

I3

s Willinwn, (Indn2.

TME's lpnsence on sitc is lo perform specific sérvices limited to that scheduled by others based on the understanding of our agreement with our client  This report is not en acceptance ot
approval of silc sctivities ‘esl sesults and inspections are rcpresentative of our observations only while onsitc a1 that specific time and location and may vary at other locations. The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly conveying progress of work in progress. Atno time will TMF be responsible for Safety considerations for other parties

Vios

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org



bio"Butizauibuay mmm | 5pS2-89b (616) | SbLP-£TSLT DN “AJRD | MNOD BYIEMEIH €01 | *du] ‘Bulisauibud

28 34l U0 SIALIEA 1YI0 10) SUOLITIPISIOI AI3JeS 10) 3(qk 3L
{14 3w ou 3y ‘ssaiBosd ut 3o Jo ssasdoud dur (1adoud pue 3o Aq yiom jo
Sunnpayos 41t uo paseq 51 Junsay Jo Aouanbays ayf “suousdo] S__Mh.uu.. Atea Aew puw
UOLIEO0{ PUR ML) OIS IRY) j€ ANISUC M AJUO SUOIEAIISGO INO JO AANEWASIIAN
UE SUOHIMITUL PUR RYNSIL IS} SIAL s jo | dde 10 d ue
100 53 30da3 SIYY JUMP N0 Yim 132 410 jo Juip PuUn 343 Uo paseq siayio
Aq poInpoydR 1eyl ©) pajun] $3d1Akes 190ds uklopod of s oNs Uo doudsasd s L

amsioly | amsie (u/5qD () (sq0)
-yl el (I e | Gnma | eese |0 | SO | powy |0
* M A M A P awnjop 1108 12M0
d0LO0OUd INIOd-ANO
"Ajuo uone0] aytoads Jo dANEIIPUI Sle SYNSS IS,
e N
S
2.
v
L
mw 0'00} Aem playsBuliieH 0F 6¢1 09'S 0€ 0¥l 0tt | 0E9%1 £
X 0°00L Aem pieysBuljieH Ovotl 09'§ 0£ort | o00v | 009yl | T
0°004 Aep pieysbuyieq obori 09's QT orl oLy 0L 91 I
% o “€od) .
(%) on (Au/san) amsiopy oN
uopoeduioy | P M0 uopear L Aswxosddy A3 TAW ks b._m_mn % b._“»oa sl

VLVA .LSAL 3DNVO ALISNAA DINOYLDATH

% 00l :uonoedwo)) "bay

arpuy weljip ©

Bpo[] Awmn [] Aempeoy (W uem [] Suippng [[] :paisa] uoneso] [eIauan

|suuosiad FNL

159, pounay 40 Kqooep ueug ‘PPYNON we go:g PMS YT we Qg PNS-UO PaAlLy

sz0e01 ¥ squuop siepury weasg MO g¢ aseyd CO”_.OC_‘_..mm woalold

08260z HequnN 1afo1d

106



Project Number: 230978C “
4

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS 5 OQIETFCS
35

Project: Barr ington Phase 3B ciient; Pream Finders Homes Date: 13,3223

All Jocations should be considcred approximate and were not surveyed. {é"

T™ Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www tmengineering.org

%



Project Number: 230978C

FIELD REPORT

Project: Barfington 3B ___ Client: Q{I?im F'Ldgﬁ Date: 1031/23

City: Zebulon ) Forman: Brian Contractor: Kenneth West

Temperature: 32 Weather Conditions: Overcast  Number of Trips: 1 ¥

Personnel: Erik Notified Brian  of Kenneth West of results

1 Trip Arrived: 9:30am Left: 11:30am 2" Trip Arrived; Left: 4:00 pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on site as requested by confractor.

Kenneth West grading crew was onsite to preform a proof roll the ABC stone for asphalt paving on Hallingsfield
Way. The proof roll was conducted with the city inspector present and was done with a fully loaded dump truck
and probed with a 1/2” steel probe rod by tech. All areas were found to be of firm bearing with no abnormalities.

v
’\wﬂ\f”’/

Signature: &W

TME's presence on site 1s to perform specific services limited to that scheduled by others based on the und ding of our \mh our cliemt ' i« o, acmpunce or
approval of site activities. Test results and inspections arc representative of our observations onty while onsite “at that specific time and location may vary 1 locations. The
frequency of testing is baxed on timefy scheduling of work by others end properly ving progress of work in p At no time will TME be responsible for Safety umsidcrauans for other parties

on the site
TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

\»
\108



@G\H EE%

Project Number: 230978C

@ - Proof Roll ?% 4

FIELD REPORT ATTACHMENTS

client: Dream Finders Dai: S

All locations should be considered approximate and were not surveyed.

TM Engineering, Inc. | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (219) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org "’*

109



Project Number: 230978C

@

FIELD REPORT

Project: Barrlngton Phase 3B (jien:. Pream Dream Finders Homes ... 11/0223

City:  Zebulon Forman: Brian Jacoby Contractor: Kenneth West

Temperature: 35 Weather Conditions: Sunny ___ Number of Trips: | v

Personnel: WilliamAndre  Notified BrianJacoby ~ of Kenneth West of results

1" Trip Arrived: 800sm  Left:930am 2™ TripAmrived; __ __ Left: 400pm
REMARKS

TME arrived on-site as requested by contractor. Brian Jacoby of Kenneth West grading stated that the Town of
Zebulon wanted stone density tests performed every 150 feet instead of every 300 feet, so he asked TME to return
to the site and perform 3 more density tests. Tech performed 3 additional Electrical Density Gauge (EDG) tests on
the stone subgrade for roadway Hallingsfield Way. All tests passed within +/-3% of optimum moisture and with
100% compaction.

el
;’iﬂ”

TME's presence on site is to perform specific services limted 1o that scheduled by others based on the d ding of our with our client. This report is not an  scceplance ot
approval of sitc activitien.  Test results and inspections sre ropresenlafive of our obscrvations only while onsite “an that spcclﬁc time and localion and may vary a1 other locahons The
frequency of testing is based on timely scheduling of work by others and properly ying progress of work in prog At no time will TME be responsible for Safety derations for other parties

on the site

TM Engineering, Inc | 103 Hiawatha Court | Cary, NC 27513-4743 | (919) 468-2545 | www.tmengineering.org

110



B10"ButiaauIbUBLY MMM | SHSZ-89F (6T6) | EvLb-E1S2Z DN ‘AR | LN0D eulemely €07 | "au] ‘Buuidauibul Wi

‘IN Y Uo $31URG IO 30§

nRIIPIsi0s Kjajeg 1) djqisuodsat 3q JWL
im 2 ou 3y ssa1301d ul om o ss31303d Fuikaauon Apadosd pu s1ouo Aq 10M JO
utnpayas Ajaus uo pateq st Junsay Jo AIUMNDAL Y| "SUOHEO| Y0 1B Kia AR pUR
UONBOL PUe WL SYINAIS 1RYL 18 USUO JJIYM AJUD SUOLBAIIEYO 300 JO AARRILISIAIIY
e suonaadsut pur NS 83T SIMMAL ous o macudde 0 d ue
1ou st podas s1y] WOD IN0 P e sno jo Bup PpUn oY} UO Poseq sYe
Aq pojnpayas ey o) pojtuy sodiasas oiioads udapad o R ais wo aoudsasd S AWE

) | emmopy | TP | oo w:%._,_ 7] G pi Gan —
Lpuaq g % o i A | PIOWIC | posem | piow | PR 1 agp0ig
M g M B BPM unfoA oS 1M
AOLD0Ad INIOJd-ANO
“Ajuo uoyeoo| 910ads JO dALEdIPUI 1B SHNSIL IS 4
m&
“h
x@
0’00t Kepn playsbuijiery 06t 09°¢ VL OV 08¢ oiovl | ¢
0001 Aem pieysBuijeny ovotl 09°¢ 0L 0%l 0L'¢ 06'St1 4
0001 Aep pleysbuijen 0v' 6t 09's 09°0F1 09°¢ 09°S¥1 I
(%) w (AsqD % O | ooy | WOD | oy
wopedwor aduey 14 Jo1 uopero’] 3531 Asuyxosddy ang TaW .M.h.--:aﬂ.a—w bM..MQ % .....“”M”n 3L

VLVA LSAL ADNVD ALISNAd DINOYLDATH

% 001 :uonoedwo)) ‘bay

Ipuy wer[p

W

[puuosiad FNL

PO Awinn [] Aempeoy [®] [lem [] Buipying [] :paiss] uoyeso [eiousn

1594 youuay O Aqooer ueug PPUNON we ggig NS ¥IT  we Qg PMS-UO PAAlIY

cuzortt ¥*Q sayio siepuiy wesig o g¢ oseyd COU_.@C_._._ eq Aeafoxg

08/60€Z HequnN 193foid

M



'ML‘:‘TDN SR ﬁg

PRIEST, CRAVEN, & ASSOCIATES, INC.

LAND USE CONSULTANTS

December 19, 2023

Michael Fowler

Capital Improvement Management Division
3324 Lake Woodard Drive

P.O. Box 590

Raleigh, NC 27602-0590

Re: Installed per Plans Statement Barrington Subdivision Phase 3
Section B for Public Water and Public Sanitary Sewer.

Mr. Fowler,
Engineer Certification Statement

I, Thomas F. Craven as a duly registered professional in the state of North
Carolina, having been authorized to observe periodically, the construction

of the project, Barrington Subdivision, Phase 3 Section B, hereby state

that, to the best of my abilities, due care and diligence was used in the observation
of the construction such that by my inspection of the constructed improvements
and my review of the as built survey data hereby certify that the (1) public
improvements, (2) private improvements and (3) public safety of the above
referenced project as constructed are in compliance with the requirements of the
improvements as prescribed in the approved construction drawings, approved
design documents, and / or any approved modifications, except as noted as
“strike throughs” on the “as built” drawings. Furthermore, I certify that the
“strike through” exceptions do not adversely affect the required performance

or public jiafety aspects of the improvements.

==

o =
Name:  |[(\Quu(P 5> | (QQQ.’Z\_

Seai: )
Thomas F. Craven, P.E. Registration Number 10956 "—.,f\s' S nesR” Q,’\;s‘
Priest, Craven & Associates, Inc. "",jf;’4s‘"§“"6' P?:‘\c“

PLANNERS / LANDSCAPE DESIGNERS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS

3803-B Computer Drive, Suite 104, Raleigh NC 27609, Phone: (919) 781-0300 Fax (919) 782-1288

G Projects 2013007 001 BARRING TONM' A BullisiASB 38:Raleizh ASB 121325 Ungmeer Certification with si2 line 12192023 doey

112



BrReuaon BB HG

DEVELOPER LIEN WAIVER AND RELEASE Vg@?

| the undersigned, am the owner of Barrington Phase 3B as indicated by my signature

below. ‘6
W

All work related to the Development of Barrington Phase 3B as shown on construction
plans by Priest, Craven and Associates, Inc. dated 02/24/2023.

DFC Barrington, LLC has not made any financial considerations for the supply of any
construction materials for the development of Barrington Phase 3B.

Witness the following signature this 9™ dayof ~J0LY 2024

%M,,La/

Name: James Woofter

{Signature)

Title: Vice President of Land Development

Company: Dream Finders Homes — POA for DFC Barington, LLC

State of ﬂm’}}’) /]thb ina___; County/City of b\) Is /(g

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _/ 9 day of JM /L; 3 ., 2024

/ ‘\“\mlmm,,,

My Commission Expires: _// / 55/&93 \“R P ;,,
Subdivision: Barrington Phase 3B ,‘KL TAR) '3 %
T i’

§ My Comm, g

m\\“‘

-u.,”"k,‘

11/23/202 |

"' "h UB L\ ‘ “‘f

" 40130000098

"4
tagyy OUNKY 3
"'anm\\“

N;..."
’
""Mmu

G

113



E‘- n[szla‘\‘&‘J ?3% -Ji:k” /O

18  Lzew WKNBS — 000~

CONTRACTOR’S FINAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN - UNCONDITIONAL /]/1’6

{To Accompany Application For Final Payment)

UNCONDITIONAL FINAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN

The un@signed Kenneth West, Inc., in consideration of Final Payment in the amount of

. , the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby waives and

releases its lien and right to claim a lien for labor, services, or materials fumished to DFC Barrington, LLC
("Owner”) to the following property:

Barrington PH3B (“Property”)
Owned by DFC Barrington, LLC (“Owner”)

Kenneth West, Inc. certifies that all of its sub-contractors(s), supplier(s) and/or agent(s) fumishing labor,
services or materials to orforitin connectionwith its Work at the Property have been paid in fullby Kenneth

West, Inc.

Kenneth West, Inc., forand in consideration of the above-referenced Final Payment, hereby unconditionally
waives, refeases and discharges Owner, its agents, assigns, attomeys and successors -in-interest, of and
from any and all past, present or future claims, demands, obligations, actions, causes of action, rights,
damages, punitive or exemplary damages, attorney’s fees, expenses, costs and/or compensation of any
kind or nature whatsoever, both at law and in equity, whether presently known or unknown, that Kenneth
West, Inc. ever had, now has or may hereafter have, foror arising out of, connected with, or in any way
resulting from Kenneth West, Inc. Work at the Property.

This Final Waiver and Release of Liens constitutes a representation by the undersigned Contractor, for and
on behalf of its Subcontractor/Supplier, that the payment referenced above, once received, CONSTITUTES
FULL AND COMPLETE PAYMENT FOR ALL WORK PERFORMED, AND COSTS OR EXPENSES
INCURRED (including, but not limited to, costs forsupervision, field office overhead, home office overhead,
interest, profit and general conditions costs, filing fees, and attorney’s fees) relative to all work performed
at the Property by its Subcontractors/Suppliers.

Kenneth West, Inc. acknowledges and agrees that this Final Lien Waiver and Release is executed and
delivered with the intent that the same be relied upon by Owner. This Final Lien Waiver and Release shall
inure to the benefit of Owner, its respective successors and assigns, and shall be binding upon Kenneth
West, Inc., its successors and assigns.

DATEDon ¢ Stwa  \P | 202Y4.

Kenneth West, Inc.

=,
[Kenneth West Inc. Name]

"GABNEE., Ne 27527

[Kenneth West, Inc. Address]

Page 3 of 10
46405040 vi

114

»«9"
w



E= VI SO She g |

Invoice: N5352173701
# DUKE INVO|CE Invoice Date: 5/16/2024
ENERGY@ Page: 1of1
PROGRESS Email sent to customer on 05/16/2024
Cust 1D: 000311746
Billto: DREAM FINDERS HOMES PO/ Cuosn:':;rNo:
7200 FALLS OF NEUSE RD., SUITE 202 Paymerit Terms: Niefi50
RALEIGH NC 27615
Amount Due: $4,494.00

Invoice for work or services performed at: 1632 Old Bunn Rd ZEBULON NC
BreRANGTON OB STRET Sawhs Pee

BARRINGTON 3& w I\

For questions about your invoice, please contact Mary Patterson at 919/882-5077

Line Date of Charge Dascription Net Antount
1 05/15/2024 UL UG for Lighting $4,200.00
UPFRONT UNDERGROUND SERVICE CHARGE FOR 7
LIGHTS
2 05/15/2024 $294.00
DEP ELECTRIC SALES TAX
Amount Due: $4,494.00

mvoice 1. (1S DS 21T 3100
vendor: M Dule Cone
Coding: A9 "DQ(\G‘T\ Y o)X}

Coding:

Coding:

Invoice Amount: $ 4. 4 % OC>

Retainage Amount: $__ (D

Total Payment: $ yad.op

Director Approval:

VP Approval:

Date:

To pay electronically, please allow 24 hours from the time this invoice is received and
use website https://www.e-blllexpress.com/ebpp/DukeEnergy. Enter your customer ID and billing zip code from above.

TO AVOID SERVICE INTERRUPTION, PLEASE DO NOT SEND MONTHLY UTILITY ACCOUNT PAYMENTS TO 1 S

i Please detach and return with your payment. Please indicate invoice number on check. ] e

Payment Coupon

Invoice Number: N5352173701
Please make check payable to: ACH Instructions:
Duke Energy Progress Wells Fargo - Progress Corporalion Code: 50126
o o e
arlotte - uke Energy Progress .
002062660000020 Customer ID: 000311746
Total Amount Due: $4,494.00
Fed Tax ID # 56-2155481
DREAM FINDERS HOMES T Amount Enclosed
7200 FALLS OF NEUSE RD., SUITE
.ZJXinES WOOFTER @ EIgEEGY
¢

RALEIGH NC 27615
PROGRESS

1814353335323137333730310000700004494008 115



Breesngwon 2% - #F (2

\ \ \";
N\ \i,f \/E‘;fﬁ

N =

Raleigh W ﬂt\a

3932
Notification of Conditional Acceptance

of Water and Wastewater Infrastructure in Raleigh Water Merger Communities
(Garner, Knightdale, Rolesville, Wake Forest, Wendell, Zebulon)

Project Name: BARRINGTON
Project Phase: PHASE 3-B

Permit Number(s): W - 3932

S - 5050

The City of Raleigh Water Department has completed field inspections and testing on the water
and/or wastewater infrastructure associated with the development project/phase referenced above.
Installation meets Raleigh Water specifications and the infrastructure is available for use. This
preliminary acceptance is conditional on a final review of digital as-built data, project records and
other submitted documentation. Formal notification of acceptance is pending and will be provided
on successful completion of the conditional review.

Inspector Name: MICHAEL R. FOWLER

Date: 06/10/2024

Comments:
FINAL / SIGNED ACCEPTANCE LETTER TO FOLLOW

Notles on Project Phasing: Acceptance occurs after water and sewer infrastructure in an approved phase is installed,
inspected/tested and the required supporting documentation has been received. Phases of construction must extend
from and/or connect to existing (or concurrently accepied) infrastructure to be considered for acceptance.
Acceptance boundaries are defined by the limits identified in the Raleigh Water approved utility phasing plan(s).
Acceptance of unapproved sub-phases and/or partially complete phases will not be considered. Additional
information can be found in the Raleigh Water Handbook at www raleighnc gov.

Municipal Building | 222 West Hargett Street | Raleigh, North Carolina 27601
One Exchange Plaza | 1 Exchange Plaza | Raleigh, North Carolina 27601 -
Mailing address: City of Raleigh | Post Office Box 590 | Raleigh, North Carolina 27602-0590

o

116



Docusign knvelope 1D CBCFCO33-441A-4ABU-B 1DE-1135810£3108

ZEBULON

KORTIL CAROLINA

Town of Zebulon

1003 N. ARENDELL AVENUE
ZEBULON, NC 27597

Inaminan annr

PBrerTugoN DR -H/g

INVOICE #

Spe———

voicen:_ Y0051 §

vendor: 1M1 Vowonw, ofg'.LL

24-00378

YOU CAN PAY ONLINE BY CRE Coding: 0{(1I QDQ("'\(,:‘ﬂ‘\(’] 5 )D) }

ACCOUNT 1D: PREIST  PIN: 798281

WWW.EDMUNDSGOVPAY.C(
YOU WILL NEED YOUR ACCO! Coing:

INVOICE DATE: 06/28/24
DUE DATE: 07/05/24

Coding:

[ vt sarar o,

Invoice Amount: § 110, MO . §)

Priest, Craven & Assoclates

Retalnage Amount: $__©

( quanmiTY/uNIT  serwice

1.0000
29.0000/L07
27.0000
731.0000/LF
731.0000/LF
969.0000/LF
27.5400

825.0000/LF

NEGETV E],

ﬂ JUL 0 g 2024

Tolal Payment: $
. ____ Directo; Approvak :’Lﬁﬁﬁzm_smm B)’ e o
VP Approval: msesusﬂwz..s “]5 ; ﬂ,w
Date; 7/9/2024 D s
: UNIT PRICE AMOUNT)
Barrington 3B fees
MAJORSUB  MAJOR SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT 300.000000 300.00
Barrington 3B fees
PLAT PER MAJ SUBDIVISION PLAT FEE/LOT 10.000000 250.00
Barrington 38 fees
RECIMPSF RECREATION IMPACT FEE - SINGLE 3,000.000000 81,000.00
Barrington 3B fees
STORMMAP  STORMWATER MAPPING FEES 1.750000 1,279.25
Barrington 3B fees
STORMDRA  Storm Drainage Constr, Inspect 1.200000 877.20
Barrington 38 fees
SIDEWALK  Sidewalk Construction Inspecti 1,200000 1,162.80
Barrington 3B fees
TRANSPOR  Transportation Impact Fee 1,200.540000 33,062.87
Barrington 3B fees
STREETCU Streets/Curb/Gutter Constr ins 2.950000 2,433.75
Barrington 3B fees
FVPA‘*I D- TOTAL DUE: $ 120,405.87

Town of Zebulon

PAYMENT COUPON - PLEASEND

1003 N. ARENDELL AVENUE

ZEBULON, NC 37597

{919)823-1806

Priest, Craven & Assaciates

julL

{2024

DESCRIPTION: Barrington 3B fees
ACCOUNT ID: PREIST PIN: 798281

ONG WITH YOUR PAYMENT

INVOICE i: 24-00378

DUE DATE: 07/05/24
TOTAL DUE: $ 120,405.87

(T

117



Dream Finders Homes LLC
14701 Philips Highway

..........................................................................................................................

..........................................................................................................................

TownofZe Town of Zebulon

Raleigh, NC 27615
Date Invoice Reference
9999 Bill Pay - Landbank
06728724  24-00378 YOBRNGTN, 999
Total Remittance
TownofZe Town of Zebulon

Raleigh, NC 27615
Date Invoice Reference
9999 Bill Pay - Landbank
06/28/26  24-00378 GOBRNGIN, 999

Total Remittance

Dream Finders Homes LLC
14701 Philips Highway
Jacksonville, FL. 32256

8949A-99990177
dul 16, 2024 $120,405.87
Ameris Bank
0612017542049488949
Payment Amt Retention Discount Total Payment
120,405.87 0.00 0.00 120,405.87
120,405.87 0.00 .00 120,405.87
Dream Finders Homes LLC
Check Number  B949A-99990177
Check Date Jul 16, 2024
Payment Amt Retention Discount Total Payment
120,405.87 0.00 0.00 120,405 .87
120,405.87 0.00 .00 120,405.87
WITH MICHOPRINTIED @ IEN ~—_ &
Ameris Bank
100 Southpark Bivd 061201754
Suite 104

St. Augustine, FL 32086

Date Check Number
Jul 16, 2024 8949A-99990177
Void sfter 90 days
Amount
Pay *One Hundred Twenty Thousand Four Hundred Five Dollars 87 Cents* $120,406.87
Dream Fipders s LL
To Town of Zebulon
The Raleigh, NC 27615 N
Order Per
of T o
PAYAB, S DOLLARS

5 MR A oo - L LK Ot B
R XDO0UY PERR Y FP

AED (MAGE DT

ORI

118

-



TTOT 'b HOBYIA  ALVA TYNIDRO
)

ROV
POV SCRVDNIS LOTN BV AN
T G0 NGHEZ 30 NAOL Tv Pl
FONVCHOTOw N 39 01 NOUDTRUSNGD Thv SUON

0601-162-616
9SZZ€ 14 ‘FTTANOSHOVI
aam ILINS ‘AVMHIIH SdITIHd T0L¥T

JTT NOLONIYYVE D4d
ANMO

) # NGl oo teasinsaud@ead __mc.w
SUFANIONE / SHOAIAUNS / SHANDISAQ BdVISANV'T/ SYANNY1d
8821-28 / 616 ¥ed 00£0-18 / 616 3uoyd
60942 "IN 'UBITEY ‘P01 WS ‘2aq Jaandwo) § - €08E

- “Jooapuely

g ok s "va
o -2

ZEGE-M 3 WLed weunedeq 743 Uhered )o O

da@i:ﬂu%!h—%&t%ﬁ-

U IO [ VR 10) P3SN SPOYISL UOTONERIT)

AL

U303-5 o umued jmounumdaq aRead qhoEy Jo Ly

T S ST 0 S0 TGS POy

TPITPUTE D1 0 OO0 DS T36HNL FTH J0) DIED SPONIGU BORIADIUO)

"PuR (ELTIN 20 Wnd S 0 LAOYS ¥ REAS orand
e R S R

TYAOUAAY DINLLLIWN34 A.LIS HOMTVY 40 ALD

DN] SZLVIDOSSY 23 NIAVE?) ‘1SAniJ

4RO MY S8 WO

"INVLINSNOD e =
3700 a3IP3 3q 200 A2 wABIAAS U2 S1QL KID 4P QK of) B0 104y
M 0 v _t_z_u_\/ u éﬁim&gsg.!:i%g:!iu;
S s soun
|
€202/02/20
J8¥jey) uoley

(s m
[l /3

20£-000'L-0 '00'8D
133HS ¥INOO

S1992lL4# L03r0ud 1Al

Buluue|d - UOJNGOZ JO UMO L

a3nodddv

SR

ftragtihe ALl

LOBZ b-GOLE 2

N 'NOVIEZ ‘YR NN R 10 0
YORTGITblb

S0E9Z DN FTWAALIS wns

T TTWAGLIARY 20 SAOLNRUSNOD HIH

VNITOHVY3 HLYON ‘NO1Ng3z

WHOLS NO1Ng3dZ 9€ 93SVHd d04 1VLLINGNS L11Ng9 SV

g€ 3I5VHd

NOISIAIAEMNS NOLINIddVE




T L e S AT

(R E

0090

8821-282/ 616724 00E0 1oL
SHFINIING / SHOAZANNS / SHANDISAA AAVISANVT/ SHINNVTA SLNV.LINSNOD 35N ANV

€082 TN

FH0Ud 3 NV 1d = AV GT1EIASONITIVH

SENWEEC NCUDITIGNGD Fbr N
57 TTARLIZAS 20 ROLSTRITNDD o= NET

Ze00-, PIAIN D50
@ EVE

i
YNMORVD FIZON 'NOTNEEZ OT1 NOLONAIVE D3C ‘A8 CRIOSNCCS]

2€ 2SvHd NOISIAIJaNS NOLeNRRvE

. ¢ ‘
# 1z2n| DN ‘SALVIDOSSY B NHAVY') ‘LSARJ i — = Q
—
422450, Jnem Bty
e | R AVM GT3IdSONITIVH
S R B o .
Ay panss( S Iy NOLvvaEE 3 LA o 7S NNV (€
& - KIvosBolv-sivovas |2l oCHL ostol  oorol ostb 00*p 0gtg ootg ogtL ootL 0gr3 009 08t 00tg [~ d 00+y og*e oote oSz 00T o5t oct osto 000 ogto-
oy G KT NGERON 0 89 G W N (2 AN - A i i S+ St SO -y S el bt Aol —
e it I ERNE St
ooy hore » > Y NN G
L UeUOL33 poresy 1o ) [£A0 A SILL eacIduly Siuouzso3 = 9 & oo
- sorn — = 2 (NsHos*
SCveD 10 CaENg cRAt L R e
=14 o] e seeesn e sz spoveio e E <QT
VN & (900} SPIEN N (@92 e£60E N AN ”
VI “yuogpusy m 85'508=dol] $eegsco. $Evorac. | 9revisdo
i ESEEY
S} UO WMOYS ST WNTAS BORIIIOD . ENGAY D2 TE4E ONY STRVONY.S LSOO PRSI SE— I m—ce———
uopaate: 20 N NEdva3a 52 £ N S B E v 0 obZ e obZ
TEEEM - HImwad uemyndag: 2119Rd Y8R Jo K1) 35 0. N3 LRGN
BEEA ‘xgol-:r‘.___-:u_a.i‘ 3 1>9ds pus.
a0 s RoAI0)
s ) o | i 712942 &bT
0%05-3 WLad wsumed; yaqey ONRLA ONY " 1
a_wxv_azsz.._suﬂeﬂ. ey e Of BAawsn - e - (%0508 00'92] | ®oso@a
23, TR 30 NWGLE 5 CaNORAN § F0WID i 43 /
5,00 541 10 UOIFUSIES PUs UOH33u103 531 ) Fos> YBiaimt Lo Ao 3 v S ST o 3 e aw o g 20 P S =l :
e
| IVAOYJdV SNILLIWYId 3115 HOE1VE 40 ALD o et I A
(%.26'08 6857 € 47-669% i
ST ABESA AT T T T T F
VR INFAFONY T NNZO-S ~ 3 R L et
(ENLGNE) Niv < SEMSS S
CIBOSRA NN BENES — - T T T
303G 2NIS . |
E GRS | O | | S T 5 MG - (e SR W NS ST Y |
T 0w 3NS5 @ HONYAG
R BOvED IWANRD ONLSKE 5 w3 'y
RIS 2N o ] w_.sn mm !
NWALUNED 2O NOR 7 | el - = =] zeeszaind - mn I mﬂ\ o
svvnsvs e ale e 23 i
EX] 13 3065110
e
2 3 5] 3 _ v N 106Nl
i & 3 444 a £r906=do.
e o R 1 e R ;ms.! =B v = pu ad
=) ’ 5x :
gee 85 T 2 2 oze
& T 88 o
13 by %8 o ah
DA00CS: e
i - e DA 000C,
s7ce e~ . ez
aze soreres . femgan e b9 2r s o &Te
P A 3 e zel 29708 TN €508 = A58 I
L e 99 : 352 @) on 5T09E SV NDa DT 207125 NG 9
LEPOSEATRINGE O 9 €0E XA NGEHT™ 50 ¥OE # AT INCENT™ £8.02% NI INDe 4O
oee

SOvaLEs
EN et o
ENVUBM.OF



L R N N R L 1 AL B 3N P £k SN Sl Eh L ST F T

eIz loma 9T IN 8ot

| 00Lo | SHBANION / SHOAIAUNS / SYINDISIA FAVISANVT / SUINNYd SLNVLINSNOD 3SR ANV

#133ns| DNJ ‘SHLVIDOSSY B NIAVYY) ‘LSANdd

CETe =T — Sonwat oI oD o PNIORvD FIZON NG EEE DT NOLONZRIVE D3 ‘A8 CRICENGES)

€ 28vHd NOISIAIdENS NOLONREvE m

TIVALNO AFLVMNNEOLS

1
3800 mawy 19ae i yBRIRY o p— e ay Ny Soar O3 000N 05 = Wl
= - rT— e N | | o BE e m R TR
S0 g ey TR0 N 26 Cu NUDRONDT TV 20N
uncidde | | e st ey
fuy panss) b 1o £ omE oy =
e e u —— = s R e o gz
{Zq_ v £ % OETM e s D bt onkoos iy S e e oA o
AL AEonuoaa( panasi ursq s eaosdde sty tnasedy puonsorg | | e o, TR 20 B 18 SE G § T
5B T SN 5 S8 e Gy "SR 20
b i S s AN o Caas Wﬂﬂwﬂw&
NG C.0 BN 5 5., 3He SavE Yo e N
e aAs T R Ty SR e
TVAOUddV ONILLIWYAd 915 HOIATVA 40 ALD
CIT DA -BOT 1IDA WEI2A - 00T 524
ost [} 0s+0 o000 20+ ostol ootoL (25 00 oste oore ostL oL 23] 009 [2] [elou-1 Osty 00ty os*e oce osT (o4 ogtl oot 050 [oleye] §
:
* | sosszainal
1202 062N
sz , obZ
wees o [
Y s 0o
B Ry .
S == SbT
00¢ . ooe I —
05421860, =S NP - SOTMAN .,
%05 0DL5" ,. ooe
/lmn(um
uma
= - 2| o S JES e P
5 a0

Coeat
(:0¢ 00 90T O AN
iz00E 0
TS

R N YT o)
(oo E oie
rheeo0- 0900, Welkgs=4 <%

o6, & a8 € g

sie cle

HAZON Avagy f ARG
AvCE NNNg a1o AV QTHSONTIVH

sle

I
&

~OvRES
SNz
ERaEres




i e N A e SR A e e B

SN WxE NOLDTRIGNED

F11d02d ANV Nv-1id

T TG LT =0 REOICTRENTT 5 N

P

REPECE )

TIVE1lN0 JFLYMNMNAOLE

ZERN 530z

N glgz ZQ!_QMN

JT1INOLONBRIVE D4 *A8 CRA0SNCeS)

a€ 2SVHd NOISIANIgENS NOLENRRvE N

QoL | o e o ) i e G e o i s -S4 SeM 2 | i S
SYIANIINT \w._oEMSW\mzm_zc_wmc AdVISANYT/ SHANNYId SLNVLINSNOD 35N aNYT
a1330s| DN ‘STLVIDOSSY 8 NIAVYE?) ‘LSAN]
[ se3uj0 maraau sorem wBioley FNGov3asis vy SaRONiE DN
Kool ] —— 04 |<w|.._=_.:~_. .._E&.lie!sasigbum 7 w&%ﬁ@{m,hﬁuﬁ
‘eacdds {leys aload R Sy, wnd ed
fm
] s [yt
om Auy sueid 1 3, M {00GPUBH LA 211qNd 5, Jﬁﬂﬁ.ﬂiﬁg‘_ﬁmﬁw
mavray Wy  109i0ud £ uoipnasto)
L teassdy oy | | o p LU o Ao
d0ALD TTOS05 -5 4 HuGad JmaenIedaq SoTINN AN YRR 10 AR
0% » . ooGPUEH SRARN 21N 3AND 313 J0 SUORED\I2 pLE
K .| Patosd sig) Jo)
TVE DI it i S 10 o Ut e ads omos 110
54019 541 0 UOSSUIXD pus o) 240 ) K180 B
I— e e 1) g s o ik
= = IVAOHddV ONLLLIWHAA SIS HOIT 1V 40 ALD

oc. @ o5 & ¢

OStL OO0 0%*9 009 0G*S
WsHos=1 s -
€ L0/ (€92 ) Co-894 110 AN
el
05T 534 - TGZ 1A = Seas
-
sl+ ogtl 00t 0s*0 ooto i a\&w%m Tein 7
e DS pEIE PO AN e
Obz  ZElsreEs |ty
L
b
200
g
[ele=h
el
oze
el I
oie ole

AVaSy
AVAA Dn_m_u_mmuz H

YIT I19A - 05T 534

osty ooty ogte oOte [o4-3¢4 [olopi4 (231 <24} [el=ye) 000
s (52 ) same ] 1282-100]
g [ FErEeOL
s C2r o]
., 8 H - -
oy e iserc8a®|  gpz

yTd

%eL0D)

%590 €416 - [
T
prpitee-sie

vaSy
AVM QTEESONITIVH

O9T DA - vST 1OA

00ty 056 OO'€  OSC 00T  OSH  00fL 080 000
sme_ﬁﬂuh e 1l
[sooraol] (TRIIEN IS _tast) acees o
obZ s el 5&3@373
SIS ,.‘.nnm,...@oom«ouh_o»/. -
abZ b 2
el
aoe
ole
= (NsHos= L
5 & o8 & oo
ale

AVaSE
AVAA Qn_m_mmijn_(I



i T N AT R T SN G S\ g i s

FH08d ANV NV 1d o m— Sl T e oo
AN

00 SGI-28L 616.7%4" 00E0-T8L/ 616 30004”60947 a-g08
" =< | SudaANIINT / SYOAIAUNS / SYANDISAA AdVISANYT/ SHANNV SLNVLINSNOD 350 ANV

a 13305 | "DN] 'SALVIDOSSY B NIAVYE) ‘LSATIJ

LCCv50- 200 RN D3 Oz

2€ 3SVvHd NOISIAIdaNsS NOLeNzziva

TIVELNO AFLVAWEOLS

~

[0 mawau iorem Wiy
" TRAGIGAY 1uauLd0fardq THAY JO 41D t_sqw__z
fenosdde | | US 1091040 ST 10J POSN SPOYIIUS SUOIIIRIYSOD put [BIAEw 1y, eld
v | | »
g # 3 Juaundedad sappan of(and Kl o A1)
sHom Auy A3y (EAEE PUTH SR 2GR jpads pue
AT YA ajoxd )
siuL i plend)
s e
JOAID
D505-3 Muttad Juamymdaq sapiin diand WR9Ed 1o Sy
0% = f RN 2190 3,400 382 Jo suonESy(ads pue

6. & o5 & *
Wsdos=1 5=

e WeHes=s ¢z
> 3H /. —g
:JM blZ 19A - OTT DA s

LITIDA-pYIZ 1A b&CT 194 - LT 19X

[2ley4 og*l oot 05*0 octo

BEU0E=1N0| 7 o=

os* ocH 05*0 [~}

G8T] OvvBE £C N | 98T

“igsz) oerorn N, (o5

{032 1 oEi6E v A (002198 00C=NI

bz | ) | TR
st
H Mﬂ”@lﬂm LS OA
| L [wesoml |
ooe AL poe

%160 Betvd ez
60| & e

O “soe N goe

@9\\8&.

Bie T
oie

Taie o
sle ale

Ry
. Avasy W
AVA QTEHSONTIVH AVA\ GELSENTVH \0
7/ i :
?ﬂ:.mw‘uh\wum

SheLEM o1




BO21-20L / 61601 00E0-LEL / 616 3UIN  60SLZ TN ‘YBjoIwd $07 11D dwio) @-£08s 100°600-120Z 1103l0ud |

/

. 3 / 1/ SUANNVId SL asn aNvt — vzothTs T mm<m
1-av NJ ‘SALVIDOSSV ¢ NIAVY )LSARI] | dVIN LNIOd i d NOILDAS € Hd NO.LDNI @

o TYLLIKENS NG SV
— = ov= ey

ASIASY TS

L

¥02JOLIO 16606 ZD'I0S02C  TBEVHZOSL
E0IOLID WSTDE  6AIWSIL SOTGIRUSL D005
WIIOLID LDWE  ZTEEVERT SLLLON  EOOS
TTAOLID 6926 GEGONEBRE GIU'SHOR 2005
WCAOLIO UEWOE  EELTAIONE STH6200SL 10405
2LOLID SEVOLE  (SUEWGONT Z00'SIOEL  00LDS
ESTROTIDE  (TETINT EELASL 5605
PSEIBNWE  BEERRE TITEYGHL 96805
ST SKOWE  RTSGEOOZ I9VLGOEAL €605
STZO60 MOOE  OVEVSERE LZEB0DL 26305
VIZEDVELIOE  WEVESKOTZ DZZSSLONL 16905
IZIUNIBSTWOE  TZESIGGNZ EOTTHUION 06505
0TI BIEE  GLTSEHMT 0TV 69905
61D SISEC 60O SLZUBL FANS
LT dOLID LLSROE  969L6OT SV LI (305
LIZAOLIDRVENE  EDGWIMNZ [OVEZION KK
TAOLIO Y606 LELSSE0Z TOTTS09  S6505
OSTOLIOBITRNE  HTINGNT [AUSIOWL  ¥ISS
19240160 EVO0E  WLEWEOIE SIS LIWEL  £B0S
Y9LAOLIDSSLVOE  SHUSHOGNIZ ESGBOLGSL BSOS
©ZdOLIEND MY'0E  SIIVIZORT SLLUSE 1805
WAOLIMITWIE  19ZOT6NEZ LUYIIREL OIS
65740110 VEOWE  SOTBGEGONT EIVOMGEL 6LSOS
$LJOLID MW WUBIORT PESSSL  UUSDS
LSTOLIO LUSOE  (SFESYORZ OB'SSOGSL LLSOS
O3LOLIDTEYE  Z9'N9NE0RL LOWGLBESL 9SS
TIZJOLIDTSVICE  S5PLOCT SUBIONL SLS0S
OLZdOLID L6560  WEYLLERE SETLO0SL WLSOS
STAOLID SSTH0E  TITONERT ESTWIEL €05
SOZJOLIOTLL'EE  CSTHEON SLEVEZDIL USOS
ULJOLIDTEOE  BSLUGLT WLLMIL  UOS
dOLYWWE  TUTWUGRT YIS0 6905
SAVULEL  LYORGRE LYOLIDL 8905

INODZTEIV0E  AOTIEBRZ VEELIGESL IS
ONOD JV'EDE  SETGES0ZL B6ULEAGSL 19905
INOD UL VOLLGESOTY ToSTUESL BN

WY ESR'EOE  DUGIYEIRZ TISSSBES  SSS05

WiH [8690F  TLISSG0ZZ ZE0TH009L S¥S05
WA VO0E  TIVEVSHOZZ BITLO09L  WYEOS

IDSTIW0E  TIOBMGORZ 9BIWION  OVS0S
S ST GSSISOTL WLLTVIONL  6ESOS
INOD SLEE  IOOTHEGOZY BIVEPION. BEVS

INOI £6T0E  WETIOGMRZ BELBTIOML  0ES0S
ONOD SROTE  WOZSEVGOC SHI DL S
INODISSS 0 I90TIGOEZ BIZGTROML SZS0S
ONOJ SSERDE  TVSBOGRT (BBINOL  OTS0S
ONODSEW'EOE  RALTHGOIZ EGL'SIZON STSOS
ONOD ESSEOE  WEGAEORT SISTLON FISOS
NIMSTS O SESLIEERZ SEOZ'OOIGRL L¥TF
SIS 6666 LDOTOWGIT TLSLUESESL YW
M35 66666 ELTOTVGORT THEZ'SGSESL SYIP
NAL P006 ]OE 605 OBE60Z VS0 ZI56SL 16
B EESE HINON  #Ld

( ,000T = .T dVIW ALINIDIA




RESOLUTION 2025-03
ACCEPTING ROADWAY, AND STORM DRAINAGE
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR BARRINTON PHASE 3B

WHEREAS, DFC Barrington, LLC the developers of Barrington Phase 3B requests the Town of
Zebulon assume ownership and maintenance of the roadway and storm drainage infrastructure
within the public right-of-way or dedicated easements of Barrington Phase 3B consisting of 698
linear feet (LF) of drainage infrastructure, and 825 LF of roadway:

e 825 LF of Hallingsfield

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has inspected said infrastructure; and
WHEREAS, DFC Barrington, LLC has completed all punch list tasks; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has received all required documentation needed for Dedication
and Warranty; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has received a Subdivision Bond from Eular Hermes North
America Insurance Company for completion of final asphalt roadway overlay, five-foot sidewalk,
SCM conversion, access ramps, signage, striping, and asphalt and concrete repair and etc; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon may accept an offer of dedication of streets, sidewalks, curb
and gutter, and storm drainage by resolution of the Board of Commissioners per the Town of
Zebulon Uniform Development Ordinance section 6.10.4.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of
Zebulon accepts dedication of the roadway, and storm drainage.

Adopted this 9th day of September 2024.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC - Town Clerk

125



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UPDATE
NORTH CAROLINA SEPTMEBER 9, 2024

Topic: FY 2025 Monthly Financial Report Addendum

Executive Summary:
A monthly report summarizing the status of the Town’s revenues and expenditures.

Background:

The attached financials are a summary of revenues and expenditures to date. These
monthly reports are provided to inform the Board of revenue and expenditure trends
throughout the year. The enclosed statements are through August 23, 2024.

Information:

Expenditures
With Fiscal Year 2024 almost closed with only one more month of sales tax and the final

quarter of utilities sales tax remaining, the revenues and expenditures appear to be the

following approximately:
o Revenues: $23,336,000 (up 10.3% from FY 2023)
o Expenditures: $19,165,000 (up 17.6% from FY 2023)

With approximately 2 months into Fiscal Year 2025 expenditures complete, the Town has
spent approximately 9% (~ $3,219,000) of its General Fund budget of $35,506,009. It is
important to note some larger early year expenditures — some vehicle and equipment
purchases, most all the annual property & liability as well as the workers compensation
premiums have been paid. This is why some departments have higher amounts of percent
of budget spent at this early point in the year. Some discussion on some early revenue
activity such as zoning fees and property taxes are below. The revenue and expenditure
statements are included for your review.

Revenues
e Property Tax (the Town’s largest revenue stream)
+ FY 2025 collections: $316,694 collected to date (~ 2.13% of budget).
+ Observations:
# 53% less than collected last fiscal year ($684,375).
# One month of vehicle taxes have been collected for FY 2025.

e Sales Tax (second largest revenue stream)
+ May’s sales (reports lag 3-months):
# $9,427 (4.5%) more collected than last May for all sales tax.
# $2,912 (3.2%) more collected than last May for “local” sales tax.
# “Local” sales tax (Article 39) is generated within, and returns to, Wake County.
# For every $100,000 in local sales, $3.55 comes back to the Town of Zebulon.

+ Year-to-Date comparisons (sales through the first eleven months of the fiscal year)

# $158,378 (+7.4%) more collected than at this time last year for all sales tax
# Collections represent 91% of budgeted revenues at 92% of the fiscal year.

178



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UPDATE
NORTH CAROLINA SEPTMEBER 9, 2024

# Robust sales and an increased share (resulting from recent census data showing
population increase) were factors in the collections exceeding budget.

o Utilities Sales Tax (5% of revenue stream): fourth quarterly disbursement to be received
September 15.
+ The first distribution of FY 2025 will not be received until December 15
+ Reflects natural gas and electricity sales and heavily weather dependent

e Permits & Zoning
+ $28,219 collected total (11% of budgeted revenues ($250,000))
+ 4.86% more than what was collected this time last fiscal year ($26,847).

e Parks & Recreation
+ 39,276 collected total (33% of budgeted revenues ($115,000)
+ 3.76% more than what was collected this month last fiscal year ($37,817).

e Transportation Impact Fees
+ $33,063 collected to date in FY 2025
+ 66% less than what was collected last fiscal year ($97,032).
+ Revenue placed in reserve for transportation projects to be spent within 10 years

e Recreation Impact Fees
+ $81,000 collected to date in FY 2025
+ 78% less than what was collected last fiscal year ($366,000).
+ Collections since inception of fee (January 2022) ~ $5,066,000

Policy Analysis: N/A

Financial Analysis: Budgeted revenue in FY 2025 is $35,506,009 while year to date
revenue collected is $913,718 (2% of budgeted). Budgeted revenue includes $11.1M Fund
Balance.

Staff Recommendation:
No staff recommendation or Board action is necessary. These are informational only.

Attachments:
1. General Fund Fiscal Year 2025 Expenditure Statement and Revenue Statement (as

of August 23, 2024)

179



%001
%0°0
%0°0
%L
%'y
%01
%T 9L
%512
%00
%e'e
%C0
%€ 0%
QLA 3NU3A3Y [ej0] JO %

%0
jejuawiu 308l Ul pajauIsaIuUNn

%T
$95UII7 1g SaXeL JBLYI0

%0
153121} 1§ saNjeuad
(spa@void puog) s82nos Buldueuly 18430 =
snoaue||a3sIN
S2IA19S 13 SB|eS M
sBulLIea U3WISIAU|
$99) 13 SHWISd B
_mu-._WE—:W>OMLUur__ paldlisay m
jeluawuIaA0S.23u) pa3oLISAIUN
S8SUBIN 1§ SAXEL JAYI0 I %0p
SoXe] WaJojeA Py

153491U] 13 Sall|EUSd |

SaXe| Walo|eA py m

|e3usWUIA0BIR3UI PRRILISTY

%9T
§994 g S3ULIRG

%P1
sBulUIEa JUBWYSAALY

%0
{speadoid

%S
S30|AJBS 1§ S3ES

puog) sa2inos Bujoueuld JSIO

SnOBUR||2ISIA

GZ0Z Ad - 918 OL 2NUBA3Y [B1OL JO % PUN4 [EI3UIL) UOINCSIZ JO UMOL

%9°C LULLL'ELe $ 00°600°90S°SE $
%00 - $ 00°66¥'290°L1 $
%0°0 - $ 00000052 $
%LGl 0Z'S00°L1 $ 000000 $
%6°¢ 10°956'0¥ $ 00000°Lv0°) $
%S'GC LLI'v19'2ZL  $ 00°000°00S $
%68 y6'.62'8¥L  $ 00°005'659°L $
%6°L 96'G€€'96)  $ 00'¥1596v'C $
%00 - $ 00°000'8Z€'e $
%86 00°€€L’02 $ 00°00§'502 $
%e'L 18°608°L $ 00°000°SC $
%S¢ 20'5¥6'£9€  $ 00°000°.68'vL $
PadII0D % QLA SNU3AY INUDAIY pajetuysy

S9NUIAJY |ejo L

pajeudosddy asueeg pun4y
(spaadold puog) sa2inog Buioueul4 JaYylO
SNoBuUe||RIsSIN

$30I/USS B SOJeS

sBuiuies juawysanuj

$99) g siused
|ejuswiwianobisiul pajolysay
|ejuawutanobiajul pajouysalun
SISUBIIT B SaXe] JBYI0
1sai19)u| B sanjeusd

S9Xe| WalojeA py

seliobeje) enusnay

aNN4d TVY3INID

§202/0€/9 polad Bujunosoy oy

$202/€2/8 Jo sY G202 - p20ZIuBWRlelS BNnUaADY
NOTINg3Z 40 NMOL

VEITOHYD HIHON

NO'INdAZ

180



%1°6

%91
%0°S
%9°Le
%L1
%181
%eS
%L L1
%S9
%LCl
%L1
%L L1
%8S

ax3 %

£s2'612'e$

166'0Z$
Zr1'6eCs
6.€°25$
800°'c$
9Z'6eL’LS
065'8817$
gLeelas
99v'6.2$
v.1'621%
L¥8'022$
6€0'v.L$

2€S' PSS
QLA einjipusdxg

600°905'S€$

059°78C'1$
20L°LBL VS
00€°69Z$

09v'6.2%

¥.6'062'9$
9/1°'061'6$
4 CATA R
¥81'€0E'V$
v.P'GLO'LS
GpS'e88’Ls
006°2€9$

00E'v¥6$
junowly doiddy

¥202/€¢/8 30 sV

sainjipuadx3g jejo |

1INIWAOTIATA DINONOD3T ® ALINNWWNOD 069
NOILVIHOIY B SHEVd 029
ONIY33ANIONI 069
1118 T13MOd 045
Jdi4 0€s
SNOILVHIdO-SHHOM JI1daNnd 0¢s
32170d ols
1NOW 1O3rodd 8 ALYIdO™Ud-SHIOM JI1and 00s
ONINOZ ANV ONINNV1d o6vy
NOILVYLSININGY ocy
JONVNIH ocy
AQOd4 ONINY3IAO0O Oly
juauzedaqg #ydeqg
aNN4d Tvd3aNao

§20Z/0€/9 polad Buiunodoy 1oy
G20 - P20z uswalelg ainjipuadxy
NO1Ng3Z 40 NMOL

VERITOHYD HMEHON

NOITINddZ

181





